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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012;

or

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission File Number 001-33133

METABOLIX, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its arart

Delaware 04-315828¢
(State or other jurisdiction of (.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organizatioi Identification No.)
21 Erie Street Cambridge, MA 02139
(Address of principal executive offict (Zip Code)

(Registrant's telephone number, including area)¢€#7) 583-1700

Securities registered pursuant to SectR(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Name of exchange on which registere
Common Stock, par value $.01 per sl The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC
(NASDAQ Global Market

Securities registered pursuant to SectR(g) of the ActNone
Indicate by check mark if the registramaiwell-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Reof the Securities Act. Yell No [

Indicate by check mark if the registranhot required to file reports pursuant to Sectidror Section 15(d) of the Act. Yed No

Indicate by check mark whether the regidt(1) has filed all reports required to be filgdSection 13 or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wemjuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementsHe past 90 days. Yesl No O

Indicate by check mark whether the regigthas submitted electronically and posted ocdtporate Website, if any, every Interactive

Data File required to be submitted and posted @untsio Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8 232.405 of tthapter) during the preceding
12 months (or for such shorter period that thestegmt was required to submit and post such filéss. No O



Indicate by check mark if disclosure ofiniguent filers pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiK (Section 229.405 of this chapter) is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, toltest of registrant's knowledge, in definitive prax information statements incorporated by
reference in Part Il of this Form 10-K or any amerent to this Form 10-KO

Indicate by check mark whether the regidtis a large accelerated filer, an accelerated fi non-accelerated filer, or a smaller

reporting company. See the definitions of "largecderated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smalleporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act:

Large accelerated fileEl Accelerated filerO Non-accelerated fileEd Smaller reporting companixl

(Do not check if a
smaller reporting compan'

Indicate by check mark whether the regidtis a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2atf. Yes O No [

The aggregate market value of the votimgj @on-voting common equity held by non-affiliatesnputed by reference to the price at
which the common equity was last sold on the NASD@I@bal Market on June 30, 2012 was $43,387,737.

The number of shares outstanding of tgestant's common stock as of March 22, 2013 wa36%4227.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Registrant's definitiveX®r Statement to be filed with the Securities amdHange Commission (the "Commission"™)
pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with 842 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held oryN@, 2013 are incorporated herein
by reference into Part Il of this report.
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Forward Looking Statements

This annual report on Form 10-K contair@fard-looking statements" within the meaning oA2f the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchaogef 1934, as amended. In particular, statememtsained in the Form 1K; including
but not limited to, statements regarding our futwsults of operations and financial position, bhass strategy and plan prospects, projected
revenue or costs and objectives of managementifore research, development or operations, areafaRlooking statements. These
statements relate to our future plans, objectigrgectations and intentions and may be identifiedibrds such as "may," "will," "should,"
"expects," "plans, contemplates,” "believe," "estiraat" "predicts,” "potential," and "continue,"
or similar words.

anticipate," "intends," "tatgéprojects,

Although we believe that our expectatiorestzased on reasonable assumptions within thesliofiibur knowledge of our business and
operations, the forward-looking statements conthinghis document are neither promises nor guaentOur business is subject to
significant risk and uncertainties and there candassurance that our actual results will noediffiaterially from our expectations. These
forward looking statements include, but are nottéihto, statements concerning: future financiafggenance and position and management's
strategy, plans and objectives for research andldgment, product development, manufacturing amdnaercialization of current and future
products, including the commercialization of ousgmlymer products. Such forward-looking statemanssubject to a number of risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual resultsfterdnaterially from those anticipated includingtlwout limitation, risks related to our limited
cash resources, uncertainty about our ability toiiseadditional funding, dependence on establisainganufacturing source for our products,
risks related to the development and commerciatinaif new and uncertain technologies, risks asgediwith our protection and
enforcement of our intellectual property rightswasl as other risks and uncertainties set forflbweunder the caption "Risk Factors" in
Part I, Item 1A, of this report.

The forward-looking statements and riskdeg presented in this document are made only #seadate hereof and we do not intend to
update any of these risk factors or to publicly@mrce the results of any revisions to any of oawéwd-looking statements other than as
required under the federal securities laws.

Unless the context otherwise requiresiedéirences in this Annual Report on Form 10-K tceetabolix,
company" or "the company" refer to Metabolix, IrcDelaware corporation and its subsidiaries.

we,” ‘our,” "us,” our

PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

Metabolix is an innovation-driven biosciermompany focused on bringing environmentally fillgrsolutions to the plastics, chemicals
and energy industries. We have core capabilitiesiarobial genetics, fermentation process engingechemical engineering, polymer
science, plant genetics and botanical sciencewanidave assembled these capabilities in a wayhtsallowed us to integrate our
biotechnology research with real world chemicalieegring and industrial practice. In addition, vavé created an extensive intellectual
property portfolio to protect our innovations atmgether with our technology, to serve as a vaki&indation for future industry
collaborations.

The markets for petroleum-based plastiesnicals and fuels are among the largest in thieafjleconomy. Issues associated with the
prolonged use of petroleum-based products incllatip waste management and pollution, limitedifdasl availability and price volatility,
and global warming and climate change. We belibag & substantial global market opportunity existdevelop and
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commercialize our technology to produce sustainableewable alternatives to petroleum-based predaoctuding advanced biopolymers,
biobased industrial chemicals and bioenergy.

Metabolix was formed to leverage the apitit natural systems to produce complex biopolynfrens renewable resources. We have
focused on a family of biopolymers found in natcatled polyhydroxyalkanoates, or ("PHAs"), whictcocnaturally in living organisms and
are chemically similar to polyesters. We have destrated the production of PHAs at the industrialesd¢o produce PHA biopolymers and
biobased industrial chemicals, as well as proofarfeept production of PHB, a subclass of PHA bigmar, in agriculturally significant crop
plants.

PHA Biopolymers Platform .

Driven by consumer demand for more sustdénmaterials, improved performance of bioplastigims and the availability of commodity
plastics produced from biobased sources, the Frég@roup predicts that global demand for biobabemtjegradable plastics will surpass
1.1 million tons per year by 2015. With our diffeteated PHA bioplastic resins, we believe we aleaaer in the development of bioplastic
materials.

From 2004 through 2011, we developed amgdheommercialization of our PHA biopolymers throwgtechnology alliance and
subsequent commercial alliance with a whallyned subsidiary of Archer Daniels Midland Comp&®DM"), one of the largest agricultur
processors in the world. Under the commercial adga ADM was responsible for resin manufacturingl Betabolix was primarily
responsible for product development, compoundirgyketing and sales. Through this alliance, the @nigs established a joint venture
company, Telles, LLC ("Telles"), to commercializd A& biopolymer products. ADM completed constructimfithe initial phase of its
commercial manufacturing facility, which began protion of biopolymers for the joint venture in 20I@lles conducted significant product
and commercial development activities with potdraistomers, marketed and sold product to customader the tradenames Mirel™ and
Mvera™, and developed a network of business peastaed distributors before ADM terminated the conuiagialliance early in 2012.

In 2012, our objective was to advance essrdiscussions with third parties with the goatsifiblishing a new commercial model for
our PHA biopolymers, to work closely with our cangstomers to provide product from existing inveptduring the transition phase and
ensure ongoing development of PHA biopolymer pregjuo narrow our market development focus to higlne market segments as the
foundation to successfully build the business, tarngistablish a new manufacturing and supply cheipexly sized to our business.

After the termination of the Telles joirgnture, we retained significant rights and assste@ated with the PHA biopolymers business
consistent with our intent to launch the businessgia new commercial model, continuing businessatons, marketing biopolymer
products, and identifying alternate manufacturiagability. We hold exclusive rights to the Metakdichnology and intellectual property
used in the joint venture. We acquired all of T&#gproduct inventory and compounding raw matetaitding more than 5 million pounds,
product certifications and all product trademariduding Mirel and Mvera, and we retained all codad pilot plant equipment in locations
outside of the Commercial Manufacturing FacilityGhinton, lowa. We have no obligations under thdgkr account totaling $433 million
which was funded by ADM to construct the CommerMalnufacturing Facility and to provide working cegpito Telles.

Through Telles, we learned extremely val@atformation about how customers and brand owasrenvisioning the use of PHA
biopolymers in their products. Based on these &utyns, we remain confident that Metabolix biopogrs provide an important solution to
those wishing to reduce dependence on petrolewduceeplastic waste in the environment, and utiiee solutions to meet sustainable
packaging goals. We have demonstrated that ouolyioers, marketed under the Mirel
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and Mvera brands, share the physical propertigetwbleum-based resins for performance and dutyhitid can be processed using existing
equipment and post-processing techniques. Therelifte is that Metabolix biopolymers display unidpiedegradability properties. Mirel is
certified to biodegrade in soil and water environtsgas well as home composting and industrial astipg facilities (in areas where such
facilities are available). Mvera is a certified qoostable film grade biopolymer intended for indiadttomposting.

After termination of the ADM commercialialhice in early 2012, we restructured the biopolgimrsiness, retaining a core team in our
biopolymers group to provide continuity with techogy, manufacturing process, and markets. Durint2@e established Metabolix Gmk
a subsidiary located in Cologne, Germany to sesva facal point for our commercial activities inrBpe. This cost effective location is
intended to enable us to directly access the Earopgarket, which is the largest for bioplastics. &l&® took steps toward establishing a new
commercial model for our PHA biopolymers busin&¥e. worked closely with our core customers to sugpbduct from existing inventory
as a bridge to new supply. We evaluated the patleayiplications for our biopolymer products androaed our market development focus to
three high value market segments, as followsil() &nd bag applications, (ii) performance add#ivend (iii) functional biodegradation. In
March 2012, we began directly booking product sates shipping product from inventory to our custesn®uring the second half of the
year, we developed, sampled and launched two nedupts: Mvera B5008, a compostable film grade, 8001, a polymeric modifier fc
polyvinyl chloride ("PVC"). In addition, we signexdh agreement for demonstration production with Binticos SA, a toll manufacturer,
based in Leon, Spain.

During 2013, we expect to continue to udstig inventory to continue to develop the markedt to supply new and existing customers.
We continue to explore alternative options to dighta new biopolymer manufacturing and supply ehabperly sized to our business.

Biobased I ndustrial Chemicals Platform.

The combined global market for conventidoak-carbon ("C4") and three-carbon ("C3") indisdtchemicals is estimated at more than
$10 billion annually. C4 chemicals are used in epilons ranging from higperformance engineering plastics to spandex. Chiclads have
applications in paints, coatings, diapers and ddéss

We have developed technology for produ€dgand C3 chemicals from biobased sources, ndbtsd feedstocks that are currently
used to produce most industrial chemicals today b@leve that, by using renewable feedstocks iatarged microbial fermentation process,
our technology platform will enable cost-effectim@duction of biobased chemicals as "drop in" repaents for petroleum-based products.

Our process for creating biobased indusifeand C3 chemicals involves engineering metalpmithways into microbes that, in a
fermentation process, produce specific PHA striesttinat serve as precursors for the chemicalsughrour PHA technology, we are able to
control the microbe biology to achieve high concatimns of specific, naturallgecurring PHA that accumulate inside cells as tineyabolize
sugars. This intracellular accumulation of the bigmers inside the microbes is a unique and difféa¢ing aspect of our technology. When
the fermentation is completed, we use a noveliaigr developed recovery process known as "FASast(acting, selective thermolysis) that
converts the biopolymer to the target chemical gi$ieat.

During 2009, we completed all work under OuS. Department of Commerce National Institut&t#ndards and Technology grant, a
$2 million grant aimed at producing C4 chemicatsrfrrenewable sources. We were able to achieve #edechnical milestones outlined in
this grant. In 2010, we continued to scale up oicBemicals technology and continued efforts omibal recovery and purification. We
made progress toward production of biobased gamuhadiactone
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("GBL") samples for shipment to potential customemsl we expanded exploratory partnership discussion

In 2011, we entered into a joint developtragreement with CJ CheilJedang ("CJ") to contitmugdvance and refine our production
technology and assess investment options for threrercialization of biobased C4 chemicals via fertaton. During this collaboration, we
developed a detailed market and economic analysimiging all aspects of an investment to commaesdbiobased C4 chemicals.

In the C4 program, we have produced GBihdustrial scale and demonstrated a chemical prifiit meets or exceeds the existing
industrial specifications. In 2012, we completed pineliminary design for a commercial scale plargriable production of biobased GBL ¢
through an established conversion process, butaln@BDO"). This plan, which could be implementedder a potential future collaboration,
includes specifications for all of the componerftsur fermentation and recovery process. In cortjonowvith our technical progress, we
expect to continue discussions with industry leadéth the goal of forming the industry alliancescassary to successfully bring our biobi
C4 industrial chemicals, including GBL and BDO amtommercial production.

We believe that developing and commerdiadibiobased C3 chemicals could represent anotlracave market for our technology. In
2011, we undertook a market analysis of the glateket for acrylic acid, a C3 chemical, to asskesnarket participants, renewable
technology competition, economics, intellectualpeny status, and end markets.

In 2012, we continued scale up of ferméataaind optimization of microbial strains to produmiobased C3 chemicals. We also
successfully scaled up recovery of acrylic acidrfrdried biomass using the "FAST" process in our Qréaige laboratory. We also provided
sample quantities of dried biomass for conversiobiobased acrylic acid for customer evaluation.Wlkeve that strategic alliances will be
required to commercialize C3 chemicals, and in 20d8expect to continue to engage in partnerstspudisions.

Crops Platform.

We are harnessing the renewable naturéanfpto make bioplastics, renewable chemicalsbémehergy from crops. The focal point of
our plant technology efforts is around polyhydrouiysate (PHB), the simplest member of the broagipadroxyalkanoate (PHA) family of
biopolymers. While applications for PHAs have faedisnainly on their use as biodegradable biopladtiese polymers have a number of
other unique features that will allow their usether applications, such as the production of chahintermediates and their use as value-
added animal feeds. We are creating proprietagsysto produce PHB in high quantity in the leasegiomass crops or seeds of oilseed
crops for these multiple applications.

Our work in crops highlights our leadingyeccapabilities and research targeting multi-geqeession and transformation of plants.
Researchers at Metabolix have designed novel, fgeite expression systems to increase producti®t8fin plant tissue. The science
behind this shift in metabolism is complex since goal is to significantly increase production éf8°to be viable at industrial scale without
impairing the ability of the plant to thrive in itmtural environment. Using tobacco as a demoimtraystem for proof of concept, our
researchers have published results demonstratgtbduction of high levels of PHB, up to 18%éaves and 9% in the biomass of the
entire tobacco plant, can be achieved. In additidiobacco, we are developing different genetiareegying systems for different plant crops
including switchgrass, oilseeds and sugarcane.

. Switchgrass,a high yielding, warm season, perennial grassishatiigenous to North America, holds promise asop to
target for commercial PHB production. The renewdibéds industry is showing a high level of intergsswitchgrass as an
attractive biomass to energy crop for
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cellulose-derived production of ethanol and othefuels. We are engineering switchgrass to prodRidB in the leaves of
switchgrass for use either in bioplastics, or gsezursor to industrial chemicals.

. Camelinais an industrial oilseed crop that has been intteduto the high plain regions of Canada and pdutiseoUnited
States. Due to the high oil content (~35%) of @sds, its frost tolerance, short production cyé40 days), and insect
resistance, it is receiving considerable attengi®ma platform for the production of industrial puots. We are conducting
research to develop an advanced, genetically neajiiamelina for co-production of bioplastics alavith vegetable oil,
biodiesel fuel, and/or oleochemicals. In 2010, wtalelished Metabolix Oilseeds, Inc., a researchpaom in Saskatchewan,
Canada to further pursue our research with indalsiiiseed crops.

. Sugarcaneis a high yielding biomass crop that grows welfropical climate zones including South America, thalia, parts
of Asia, and select temperate regions in the Ui 1 its high biomass production, it is a suitdblget for co-production of
bioplastics with sugar and lignocellulosic matetiadt can be used for the production of liquid $u&Ve are collaborating with
the Australian Research Council to further pursuieresearch to maximize bioplastic production i ldaf tissue of sugarcane.

In 2011, Metabolix was awarded a $6 millgmant by the U.S. Department of Energy ("DOE"gtmineer switchgrass producing
10 percent PHB, by weight, in the whole plant amnddvelop methods to thermally convert the PHB-&imiig biomass to crotonic acid and a
higher density residual biomass fraction for prdauncof bioenergy. Crotonic acid is a platform chiemhthat can be readily converted thro
simple, known chemical conversion steps to a rafigemmodity chemical intermediates including prieme, butanol and maleic anhydride.

In 2012, Metabolix was awarded three neanty for leading-edge crop research targeting rgeltie expression and transformation of
plants including important biofuel and food cropanding from these three grants is expected td apiaroximately $1.0 million and will run
through 2014.

In 2013, we expect to continue to advamsearch under our grants, focused on increasing@btBiction in switchgrass and develoy
a thermal conversion process for crotonic acid.niéy also seek to establish alliances with partttecommercially exploit this platform. We
are in the process of capturing intellectual progpgained in our work in crops and will be evalagtihe possibilities of monetizing that
intellectual property.

We are developing an extensive portfolianééllectual property covering our inventions mog-based technology and have been
awarded more than 30 patents in this area to thaseldition, Metabolix researchers and academil@lbofators have published our research
results in peer reviewed scientific journals.

Market Opportunity

Our targeted markets of plastics, chemiaat energy offer substantial opportunity for inatien and value creation. These are all very
large markets facing substantial pressures to redoergy consumption, greenhouse gas emissiornhamyerall impact on the environment.
The limited long-term availability of fossil fuetsd volatile oil prices are driving the demandrfwre sustainable alternatives in plastics
manufacturing, chemicals and energy.

The Plastics Market

The world's annual consumption of plastatenials has increased from around 5 million torihe 1950's to nearly 240 million metric
tons today and is estimated to be $0.5 trilliosize. Durability and lightweight properties, as Meed a number of applications from packaging
to engineering-grade
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automotive materials, continue to drive this expuia growth in the plastics market. However, aonigy of plastics are made from fossil
feedstocks, including crude oil and natural gass Téliance on fossil fuels ensures that plasticipy is impacted by fluctuations in the cos
natural resources. A more concerning issue isthiesie fossil feedstock-based plastics do not biadiegand congest landfills. According to
the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, an ed@th&1 million tons of plastic entered the U.S. mipal solid waste stream in 2010. It is
estimated that 20-25 percent of landfill weighpliastics. In addition, every year approximately0@®, tons of plastic waste ends up in the
world's oceans.

While recycling estimates for certain prousuch as PET plastic water bottles fluctuatesrat 20 percent, only 8 percent of the total
plastic waste generated in 2010 was recoverecfyrecting. Plastic water bottles are also the fagtesving form of municipal solid waste in
the United States. More than 4 billion pounds of Rlastic bottles end up in landfills or as roadditter. This puts a tremendous strain on
overflowing landfills and introduces environmentahcerns that were not present 50 years ago. Témses are driving increased consumer
and business demand for biodegradable plastimaliges. In addition, many plastic items, particylaingle use items such as bottles and
caps, cups, lids and straws, and grocery bagsnteeétier in the environment where they can becamg@nificant problem. Plastic waste can
create a significant monetary burden on state acal governments.

According to the Freedonia Group, globahdad for biobased and biodegradable plastics willenthan triple to over 1.1 million tons
2015. The Freedonia Group cites consumer prefesdiocenore sustainable materials, improved perfoeeaf bioplastic resins and
commodity plastics produced from biobased soursgbakey factors driving this growth. Accordingi@ consulting firm, Industry Experts,
the global bioplastics market was estimated attB6dsand metric tons in 2007 and is expected tchr&e million metric tons by 2017,
growing by a compound annual growth rate ("CAGR"22 percent during that ten-year period.

Market research institute Ceresana prethetisthe global bioplastics market will reach mewes of more than $2.8 billion in 2018,
reflecting average annual growth rates of 17.8gr@rcAccording to Ceresana, Europe was responigiblbout 48 percent of the market in
2010, followed by North America and Asia-Pacifihid is effectively four times the size of the marke2007. Strong growth is also
predicted for South America as a result of produrcincreases in Brazil. In 2010, starch-based bitfs accounted for the majority of
bioplastic demand, followed by polylactic acid (1. Other biobased plastics, such as PHA/PHB utesle, polybutylene succinate ("PBS")
and fossil fuel-based biodegradable plastics retesl approximately 17 percent of global biopladémand. Ceresana expects non-
biodegradable plastics made from renewable feekistocincrease their market share from the eigttgrg seen in 2010 to more than
48 percent by 2018.

The growth in plastic use has generallyeexied overall economic growth as plastics haveashigw markets with new product
applications based on their functionality and &pitio meet user requirements. The market will gargito investigate and adopt more
sustainable resin alternatives to produce plastidycts from blow-molding, thermoforming, and filgnade and other manufacturing
processes.

The Chemicals Market

There are a large number of chemicals msdwhich enable the manufacture of most indusarial consumer goods ranging from
automobiles to food packaging. Major chemicals padslinclude building block chemicals, such as letiy and propylene, and specialty
chemicals such as lubricating oil enhancers andnphieeutical intermediates. The vast majority ofralvals produced today use non-
renewable resources such as oil, natural gas basdheir basic raw material.
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Under the umbrella of the global chemicarket are conventional C4 and C3 industrial chatsjavith an estimated market of more
than $10 billion annually.

The C4 chemical market is estimated at@pprately $3 billion, growing at approximately fopercent annually. C4 chemical products
are used in a wide range of applications includingineering plastics, fabrics and fibers, persoaet products and in semiconductor
manufacturing. Conventional C4 chemicals are predwdmost entirely from fossilased hydrocarbons such as natural gas, oil or Todhy
there are only testing and sample quantities didsed C4 chemicals on the market.

Global demand for C3 chemicals is estimaittegreater than $8 billion per year based on s#lefme billion pounds annually, and the
global market is projected to grow at a rate ofragjpnately five percent per year driven by incregsiiemand in Asia, including China and
India. Conventional C3 chemicals, including crudeyhlic acid, glacial acrylic acid and acrylates; ased in products such as superabsorbent
polymers ("SAPs"), water treatment chemicals, cogti(decorative, automotive, and paper) and adégsiv

Due to the volatility of fossil feedstocksd demand for renewable solutions from brand osvaed consumers, the market is currently
experiencing an increased demand for biobased claésnin fact the global biobased chemicals maskptedicted to grow to more than
$76 billion in 2015 from $36.9 billion in 2009, wia CAGR of 12.67 percent from 2010 to 2015.

Escalating prices for both acrylic acid @sdmain feedstock propylene affect the economafqaroducing C3 chemicals, driving increa
interest in new, renewable alternatives. These presesses aim to reduce or contain costs and wupte production from the volatility of
petroleum markets.

Regulatory mandates and government polaiesiriving market adoption of biobased C4 anctck&nicals into the industrial chemical
supply chain. Growing awareness among both manufastand consumers for products containing renlewaimtent may also become an
increasingly important factor in driving conversimnbiobased chemicals over the long run.

Fuels and Bioenergy Markets

The issues surrounding petroleum previodiEgussed have given rise to increasing demaniiéds produced from renewable sources.
Certain states are considering legislation to adipé on the environmental and energy security fisna renewable fuels by requiring their
use.

In December 2007, President Bush signediaw H.R. 6, the "Energy Independence and SechAxty' which includes a historic
Renewable Fuels Standard ("RFS") calling for asti& billion gallons of ethanol to be used nati@eiby 2022; an increase from the nine
billion gallons of ethanol used in 2008. This lawegm growth plan for ethanol is intended to spsiciimmercialization from cellulosic
feedstocks such as switchgrass, crop residuestiprgaste, and many other materials from all negiof the country. Beginning in 2016, an
increasing portion of renewable fuels must be adedrbiofuels, starting at three billion gallon2Bil6 and increasing to 21 billion gallons in
2022. The National Commission on Energy Policyneates that the new RFS and the increased fueleaféig standards in the law will redt
domestic oil use by more than four million barne¢s day by 2030.

While ethanol is typically produced fronarsth contained in grains such as corn and graghsion, it can also be produced from
cellulose. Cellulose is the main component of ptaitwalls and is the most common organic compaumeéarth. The production of ethanol
from corn is a mature technology that is not likiysee significant reductions in production cd$te ability to produce ethanol from logost
biomass will be an important factor in making itquetitive as a gasoline additive.
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According to Pike Research, the global pmidn and consumption of biofuels will more tharutle in the next decade, from
$82.7 billion in 2011 to $185.3 billion in 2021. Withe increasing worldwide demand for fuels fr@newable sources and the emerging
demand for renewable plastics, chemicals and cleimizrmediates, there is a long term opportutdtgreate an alternative to the petroleum
model based on the co-production of renewable gremd chemicals from crops. The commercializatibrenewable fuel and chemicals co-
produced in proprietary crops could create renesvplalstics, chemicals and biofuel with favorableresnics.

Formation of Metabolix

Metabolix was formed in 1992 to leverage dbility of natural systems to produce complexpwrs from renewable resources as a
means to serve the growing needs of society fatiplanaterials and chemicals without dependendinde fossil resources.

Polymers are found in nature in a wide eaafjorganisms including microbes, plants and aliniRolyhydroxyalkanoates ("PHAs") also
naturally occur within certain organisms, includimicrobes. These microbes use PHA to store energyansume it for food when needei
is this characteristic that gives our PHA biopolysheir biodegradability.

Though PHA polymers are found in naturejrtproduction in wild-type bacterial strains ifficient and costly for commercial
purposes. In 1981, Imperial Chemical Industrie€("} developed a controlled fermentation processgia wild-type bacterial strain to
produce a PHA copolymer that they introduced uridetrade name Biopol. While a handful of applicas were developed for Biopol, the
cost to produce the polymer using the naturallyuadag bacterial strains that were available attitme was prohibitively high and its
performance properties were limited. Commercialratvas not possible, but the Biopol assets renddiagely intact and were eventually
sold to Monsanto, Inc.

By the late 1980s, tools for genetic engiimgy had advanced significantly, and microbes vedneady being genetically designed to
produce various products, such as protein drugthé\Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Drvé@IPeoples, our Chief Scientific Offic
working in the lab of Dr. Anthony Sinskey, a membépour Board of Directors, identified the key gemequired for the biosynthesis of our
PHA biopolymers and invented and patented theftfiastsgenic systems for their production. The dggeaetically engineered production
organisms, instead of wild-type strains, broadlganded the number of compositions that could beenaad enabled the tight level of control
and high efficiency and productivity that are regqdifor cost-effective industrial manufacturing.

Metabolix was formed in 1992 to exploitdbeadiscoveries. In order to fully capture the opyaty, we acquired Monsanto's patent estate
related to biobased plastics, which included thapBIi assets, in 2001. We have since fully develapeohtegrated manufacturing process
using transgenic strains for fermentation and @ipetary recovery process. This integrated manufawy process is available for use in
commercial manufacturing going forward. We have asveloped proprietary plastic formulation teclogyl and we are also developing our
platform technology for co-producing plastics, cligats and energy in crops such as switchgrasgeaasand sugarcane. In addition, we are
applying our proprietary technologies to our indiasbiobased chemicals platform.

Our Technology and Core Capabilities

We believe we have one of the most advanagdbilities to perform metabolic pathway engiimeein the world and that we are skilled
in our ability to integrate the biotechnology wevel®p into large scale industrial production praess We believe that we have
unprecedented capabilities with respect to harnggkie metabolic pathways involved in the productéa wide range of bioplastic
monomers and the ability to polymerize, accumudaig harvest these bioplastics
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from living cells. We believe that we are develapkey capabilities in the areas of biopolymer pridievelopment and customer technical
service support.

We have demonstrated that our technologlycane capabilities enable us to:

. design and engineer living organisms to perforrarées of chemical reactions that convert a fee#tsioan end product in a
highly efficient and reliable manner;

. integrate that organism into a reliable, largees@adlustrial fermentation process;
. develop highly efficient recovery technology fbe product;

. tailor our end product from that process to suit customers' needs;

. develop new applications and commercial oppdtiesifor these products;

. develop new formulations and compounds of theducts; and

. provide sales and technical service supportitacastomers.

Product Development Process
Biology and Genetic Engineerir

While most biotechnology products todayailre identifying a single gene to produce one pmtee have identified and chromosom:
inserted a series of genes to produce severalipsaad have done so in such a way that they anessed to execute the right reactions
right times. This work is at the forefront of aestiific discipline referred to as "Synthetic Bioldgvhich has become the focus of intense
research and design activities. There have beey m@am entrants, both academic and venture-baclkedigt companies, in this general field
primarily targeting biofuels, either advanced deldic ethanol or next generation technologies. \&leetse that we have advanced capabilities
based on over 20 years of development taking staitye gene/pathway discovery through the entingevaélivery chain to a commercially
viable technology and business. In addition, weehdeveloped core competencies in plant sciencet wensformation and the development
of advanced multigene expression technologiegitooducing novel, multiple trait synthetic pathwagt biomass plant crops.

Industrial Fermentation Process Engineer

We have tightly integrated our fermentatoale-up research capabilities with our genetigrerering capabilities to create a feedback
loop where data from fermentation experiments eadity influence microbial design and where micableingineering approaches can guide
the fermentation group to structure the optimatgxeols (recipes) for running fermentations. Basedhis technology we have demonstrated
the ability to produce a range of different biopoBrs on a common fermentation platform.

Chemical Process Engineering

Another element of our product developnmotess involves process chemistry and chemicaheeagng to separate the biopolymer
from the biological cell material once fermentatisrtomplete. We have a dedicated team that hasafezd a proprietary process for
recovery of PHA biopolymer at the industrial scaMe have invented a recovery process that prodeEdsbiopolymer at a high level of
purity without damaging the structure of the polyraad has operated effectively at a commerciaksicathe manufacture of Mirel. We have
successfully demonstrated our ability to efficigrigiolate the range of polymers necessary to meeeapand our range of target applications.
These polymers can be routinely produced free frelhdebris and processed into resin pellets.
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Our capabilities in fermentation and reagvier producing PHA biopolymer, including Mirelakie been successfully translated to the
development of biobased industrial chemicals. Wieeldemonstrated fermentation at pilot and induséidale and recovered GBL using a
proprietary thermolysis process in tonnage quastitWhen fermentation is completed, our novel reppprocess known as "FAST" (fast-
acting, selective thermolysis) converts the biopwys, poly-4-hydroxybutrate ("P4HB") for C4 chensg;goly-3-hydroxyproprionate for C3
chemicals, directly to GBL and acrylic acid, redpesty. The FAST recovery process is a proprietéyw-cost, energy-efficient approach to
recover high-purity biobased chemicals directlyrirdried or whole fermentation broth. We believe maohnology is differentiated and that it
allows diversification of feedstock from existingskil sources to renewable sources and this Wél @bst advantages. For chemicals, we are
tailoring products and purity levels to meet customind market needs.

Polymer Science and Product Developn

In the area of PHA biopolymers (Mirel ana/drla) our product development process involvesrial the polymer to provide the prod
properties and meet the processing requirementpfific customer applications and then compounthiat material for delivery to
customers. Our product development team has caabideexpertise in polymer science and to datedbkasloped advanced formulation and
processing technology for injection molding, bloamd cast film, sheet, and thermoforming. We hase aloved blow molding, non-wovens
and foam applications beyond the proof of conctgles We will continue to work with customers tdiogpze formulations to conform to
their commercial specifications as commercializatb our PHA biopolymers expands.

In sum, we have successfully integratedabdities in biology, genetics, fermentation pragesgineering, chemical engineering and
polymer science. We believe this integrated seapfbilities will be a source of competitive adeayg. These same capabilities are being
applied to our plant crop programs, where we intendevelop an industrial system to co-produce lagtjcs or chemicals with cost
advantaged biomass for bioenergy, and to our iatedrbio-engineered chemicals program. We believeapabilities can also be applied
successfully to other biobased plastics, chemeadsenergy projects.

Business Strategy

Our goal is to be the leader in discoverafeyeloping and commercializing economically atikee, environmentally sustainable
alternatives to petroleum-based plastics, chemaradsenergy. To achieve this goal, we are buildipgrtfolio of programs that we believe
will not only provide an attractive slate of commiafl opportunities and create value for our businbst will also generate leading and
competitive intellectual property positions in fiedd. Key elements of our strategy include:

Creating a Product Portfolio of PHA Biopolymers —Our strategy is to establish our position in thekaawith premium priced produc
that address specialized segments that can bedseswgpetitively by the distinctive properties obpolymers. Through several years of
interaction with customers, we have developed fdatinns of our polymer suitable for injection maidi blown and cast film, sheet and
thermoforming. There is the potential to refinesthgrades further and to tailor them for specifistemer performance requirements and
applications. In addition, our technology may allosvto develop new formulations and processingogris to extend the use of Mirel and
PHA polymers into blow molding, non-woven, foam datéx applications.

Establishing a Supply Chain for our PHA Biopolymers Business—We continue to evaluate a number of manufactuaimdy supply
options that would enable us to build capacitydnjanction with growing customer demand. We aresiering options for small-scale,
short-term toll manufacturing to scale up our iny&® technology and products, and intermediate-garaléuction to build the market for
those
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products, with a long-term goal of establishing Miescale cost-effective manufacturing. Our comnarsirategy is to build a presence in key
markets that will enable us to base-load a futowedost plant.

Continuing Microbial Research and Process Devel opment —We have identified opportunities to improve ouoghuction strains and our
fermentation and recovery processes. We believesipaificant reductions in the operating and capibst to manufacture Mirel biopolymers
can occur as we successfully exploit these oppitiesn\We also believe that our technology is relauml we expect to be able to successfully
transfer our technology to commercial scale pradaadbn an ongoing basis.

Managing Existing | nventory —We expect to work closely with core customers tovjate them with access to existing inventory as
manufacturing and supply chain are establishedwiWalso use some inventory to continue certaindorct development activities
representing high value applications for our praduse of purchased material from third partiesbiending and property enhancement will
allow us to leverage the value of our existing imeey as well as to further tailor products to magtomer needs.

Market Positioning and Technical Support —We have refocused our technical and business ofgwant team to support existing
customers and to educate and develop the prospextstomer base for our Mirel and Mvera biopolypraducts. This team is focused on
positioning our biopolymers as premium priced, &ggcmaterials that are environmentally attractalernative to petroleum-based plastics
and lower performance bioplastics. The focus of #ffort is to build a pipeline of customers acrasange of applications. It is our goal to
establish customer relationships that will lead mommitted stream of demand for our biopolymens@agstablish a new manufacturing
supply chain.

Extending Our Technology to Sustainable Production of Biobased Chemicals and I ntermediates —We believe that our technical
capabilities can be applied to produce importaobased commercial chemicals and chemical interrtesdthrough biological conversion of
sustainable feedstocks such as sugars. Throughtegrated bio-engineered chemicals program, we lsanducted research into the
development of sustainable solutions for chemiaat$ intermediates, including widely used C4 andr@8strial chemicals. Our unique
FAST process enables very efficient recovery ajeéted molecules based on our PHA technology. Weesking to establish strategic
partnerships or other collaborations to advancengerunialization of these programs.

Advancing Plant Crop Research —We believe that we are pioneering the technicat@ss of introducing multigene traits into plant
crops for the production of plastics and chemiotdrimediates directly in the plant. Our plant cptgtform is currently in the research phase.
We are in the process of capturing intellectuapprty gained in our work in crops and will be ewdilng the possibilities of monetizing that
intellectual property, while we continue work irapt crops under government grants.

Partnering our Programs —As appropriate, we may seek to leverage our tecigyahnd establish strategic partnerships with anaare
industry leading companies that can provide actesssources and infrastructure valuable for conerakring our plant crop and industrial
chemicals platforms. These partnerships may tad&dotm of large-scale strategic collaborationgnare limited collaborations with partners
having complementary strengths, for example indfinery operations or marketing. We will also cant to seek funding through
government grants or other government programsdaah@romoting development of biobased plasticsfaats.

Furthering our Leading and Competitive I ntellectual Property Position —We have built a patent estate around our platform
technologies and a variety of inventions relevarthe commercialization of PHA biopolymers inclugliklirel and Mvera. We continue to
extend this patent estate within our core busiasssell as within other commercial opportunitiestia area of biobased plastics, chemicals
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and energy. We have licensed our technology, areteviippropriate, we will continue to license oueliectual property to others in fields
outside our areas of interest. Some of the areaich we may seek to establish leading and coniypeintellectual property include:

. intermediates and chemicals produced by microki@héntation;
. plant varieties to co-produce plastics and eneegy.(ethanol and biodiesel); and
. plant strains that optimize crop yields and proicestaits for conversion to energy.

Building Governmental Awareness of Our Approach —Policy makers are seeking opportunities to redegeddence on imported fos
fuel, decrease carbon dioxide emission, and adtard§ill and pollution issues. In recent years,werked closely with several groups and
individuals in the United States and Europe to asslithese issues. We intend to continue to pursugovernmental affairs initiatives to ra
awareness of our solutions and enable legislatiandan facilitate and accelerate the adoptioruofpooducts.

PHA Biopolymers Platform
Overview

Following the termination of our commercadliance with ADM early in 2012, we restructurds biopolymers business, retaining a core
team in our biopolymers group to provide continwif$h technology, manufacturing process, and markéte worked closely with customers
during this transition to understand their procuséds and to match them to available inventorpdiition, we held constructive discussions
with various potential manufacturing and commeizé#ion partners for PHA biopolymers. Establishingew manufacturing and supply
chain for our PHA biopolymers business is a keyifofor us. In 2013, we expect to continue to dgvelar customer base using existing
inventory and to transition to new supply, while @mtinue to explore alternative options to estdibi new biopolymer manufacturing and
supply chain properly sized to our business.

Former Alliance with Archer Daniels Midland Company

From 2004 through 2011, we developed agdeommercialization of our PHA biopolymers throwgtechnology alliance and
subsequent commercial alliance with ADM Polymerpoation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ADM, onetbé largest agricultural
processors in the world. The Commercial Alliancadfgment between Metabolix and ADM Polymer speciffeddterms and structure of the
alliance. The agreement governed the activitiesadoigations of the parties to commercialize PHAgdulymers, which have been marketed
under the brand names Mirel™ and Mvera™. Theseites included the establishment of a joint veatosompany, Telles, to market and sell
PHA biopolymers, the construction of a manufactyfacility capable of producing 110 million pounofsmaterial annually (the "Commerc
Manufacturing Facility"), the licensing of techngipto Telles and to ADM, and the conducting of was research, development,
manufacturing, sales and marketing, compoundingaaintinistrative services by the parties.

Telles was formed to: (i) serve as the camuial entity to establish and develop the comna¢roiarket for PHA biopolymers, and
conduct the marketing and sales in accordancethatlyoals of the commercial alliance, (ii) assisthe coordination and integration of the
manufacturing, compounding and marketing activitée® (iii) administer and account for financialttees on behalf of the parties. Metabolix
and ADM each had a 50 percent ownership and vatitegest in Telles.

Under the Commercial Alliance Agreement ADMs permitted, under limited circumstances, tmbeate the alliance if a change in
circumstances that was not reasonably within tiérobof ADM made the anticipated financial retdram the project inadequate or too
uncertain. The agreement provided that, upon teatioin by ADM due to a change in circumstances, kiata would be
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permitted to continue to produce and sell PHA bigpers, and ADM would be required to perform mamwtiiaing services for the Company
for a period of time following the termination (gett to certain payment obligations to ADM). OnuJary 9, 2012, ADM notified us that it
was terminating the commercial alliance effectiebfuary 8, 2012. ADM had undertaken a strategierewof its business investments and
activities and made the decision to focus resousaéside of Telles. As the basis for the decisiDM indicated to us that the projected
financial returns from the alliance were too unaiert

The Commercial Alliance Agreement with ADdhited the rights of both ADM and Metabolix to wowith other parties or alone in
developing or commercializing certain PHAs produttedugh fermentation. These exclusivity obligati@nded upon termination of the
alliance. Also, upon termination of the alliancegtisbolix intellectual property licenses to ADM Polgr and Telles ended, with Metabolix
retaining all rights to its intellectual properDM retained its Commercial Manufacturing Facilibcated in Clinton, lowa, previously used
to produce PHA biopolymers for Telles.

After termination of the Commercial Alliamé&greement, the parties entered into a Settledgrdement in which the parties agreed to
specific terms related to the winding up and dissoh of Telles. Under this Settlement Agreemerd,purchased certain assets of the joint
venture for $2,982,000 including Telles's entirgeimtory, exclusive and perpetual rights to all efl@s's trademarks, and all product
registrations, certifications and approvals forl@gk PHA biopolymers. Pursuant to the Settlemgreément, ADM relinquished any claims
with respect to certain co-funded equipment presipacquired by Metabolix and situated at locatiotieer than the Clinton, lowa
Commercial Manufacturing Facility, and Metabolixdahelles waived any rights to post-termination nfanturing and fermentation services
under the Commercial Alliance Agreement.

Current Capabilities and Scope of our Operating Businessin PHA Biopolymers

In the first quarter of 2012, we restruetlithe biopolymers business, retaining a core iaaour biopolymers group to provide
continuity with the technology, manufacturing pres@nd markets. This team has expertise in thatess required to maintain and grow an
operating business. We have established a subsldizated in Cologne, Germany to serve as a fogitfor commercial activities in Europe
and have begun hiring additional staff for our saled technical support team. We have continuagbtk closely with customers during this
transition to understand their product needs amdatch them to available inventory. After the coatigin of the Telles windp arrangement
we had more than 5 million pounds of inventory. ©@uirent estimates indicate that we have adeqoaémtory to supply the needs of
strategic customers as we transition to a new gugmplrce.

We plan to continue to build our supplyich®uring 2012 we signed an agreement for dematistr production with Antibidticos SA,
toll manufacturer based in Leon, Spain. Under délgieement, technology transfer to Antibiéticosssemtially complete. However, we are
aware that Antibiéticos is in a process of finahoéstructuring, and our ability to obtain biopolgnproduct from Antibiéticos will depend on
the outcome of that restructuring. Through our gegaent with Tianjin GreenBio as a PHA supplier,bedieve that we will have the
potential to develop and commercialize additiortdArbiopolymer products. In addition, we have iritid a feasibility study to define our
priorities for a low-cost manufacturing site fonfpterm commercial scale production of biopolymeand potentially biobased chemicals.
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We believe we are well positioned to lautieh PHA biopolymers business under a new commermdel based on several key factors
with the objective of creating a high margin, higrlowth business opportunity.

PHA Biopolymers Business Metabolix 2013 and Beyonc

Customers and Markets Focus on strategic customers
high margin segments as
foundation for busines

Initial Manufacturing Scale Targeting 10 kilotonnes
annually, then expand capital
investment and capacity
according to deman

Business Partners Ability to engage multiple
partners
Technology Base Opportunity to deploy state-of-

the-art technology with
improved yield and recovery
processe

Value Chain Potential to create integrated
chain controlled by Metabolix,
potentially with chemicals
integration

Mirel biopolymers were produced succesgfatlindustrial scale for two years under the jeimture with ADM. The product was
produced at very high quality and in a targetedjeanf grades suited to different customer usesn@furward, we see the potential to deploy
our latest technology into industrial productioraatinitial scale that is well matched to custosemand, and to develop plans to grow
capacity in tandem with the growth outlook for ouarkets. In addition, we marketed Mirel biopolymfensmore than two years on behalf of
Telles and demonstrated market acceptance andahd lalue proposition with over 50 customers. \&feeha highly differentiated
technology resulting in a premium product with glreven ability to price at over $2.25 per pound higher, depending on the application
and market. Going forward, we anticipate our mangeand product development activities initiallycésing on three areas to provide high
value material to customers in key markets (i) fdmd bag applications (ii) performance additived @ii) functional biodegradation.

The Value Proposition of Mirel Biopolymers

We believe Mirel biopolymers offer the bdeat potential range of properties and procesgitigris compared to today's existing
bioplastics. We believe Mirel's unique combinatidrbeing both biobased and biodegradable whiledtpgomparable functional properties
petroleum-based polymers stands alone in the lEtiptamarketplace. We are positioning Mirel biopoérs as a specialty material that can
serve conventional plastic functional needs (wigetroleum-based polymers may satisfy), deliver fiswetionality that can be leveraged to
reduce system costs (e.g. new end-of-life solutms®d on broad biodegradability) in addition tiis§gang consumer preference for
environmental responsibility (which petroleum-bapetiymers cannot address). Consequently, we expgeice Mirel at a premium as a
specialty product as compared to the price of laajeme commodity polymers, but comparable to a loemof specialty polymers. Our
strategy is to enter the market with premium pripeatiucts that address specialized segments thditecaerved competitively by the
distinctive properties of Mirel biopolymers. Mireiopolymers can be produced in pellet form (fottiar processing and re-sale as finished
goods or components by customers), in densifieth fand as a blend with other biodegradable matedals we may also provide Mirel
biopolymers in other forms as may be determinedunycustomers.
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We believe that the principal advantageslioél biopolymers will be the ability to use renalile feedstocks and the biodegradability
properties of the materials combined with theif@enance when compared to alternative productsb@lieve Mirel biopolymers are unique
compared with other biodegradable (both petrolenthranewable resource based) plastics when evdlbaszd on the following factors:

Biodegradability—Mirel biopolymers will biodegrade due to the aatiof microbial agents in a wide variety of condiisp including
home and industrial compost systems, soil, anaeebiironments such as those found in anaerobastigs and septic systems, and marine
and fresh water environments. The rate and exfavirel's biodegradability will depend on the siaed shape of the articles made from it as
well as the specific end-of-life environment. HoweMike all bioplastics and organic matter, Mipgpolymers are not designed to
biodegrade in conventional, non-active landfillsafy plastics marketed as biodegradable only degreaeontrolled municipal industrial
compost facility.

Biobased Feedstocks-Because fossil feedstocks are the primary raw miadfer the plastics industry, prices of conventbpolymers
can be adversely affected by fossil fuel supplyuisons and price volatility. Mirel biopolymerseaproduced using a biobased feedstock,
which may lead to a more predictable cost struotthren compared to petroleum-based plastic. Biobfeststocks recycle carbon through
photosynthesis, which removes carbon dioxide freenatmosphere. Conversely, the use of fossil feekisesults in release of carbon that
been sequestered underground for millions of yeareasing atmospheric carbon dioxide that aces g®enhouse gas ("GHG"). Producing
Mirel biopolymers based on renewable resourcegtber sequesters carbon dioxide in addition tocedureliance on finite petroleum
resources. If the polymer is ultimately biodegradednd-of-life this carbon dioxide is recycled eragain creating a GHG neutral cycle. The
overall GHG balance for production of Mirel is dagent on the source of process energy (heat andmpousing renewable energy sources
in addition to the feedstock can in certain circtanses result in net reduction of GHG emissions.

Performance Enhancement—Mirel biopolymers can improve the properties andgrenance of other polymer materials including P
and PLA.

Property Range—Similar to petroleum-based plastic, Mirel biopokrs possesses a particularly broad range of furatiroperties,
varying from hard and stiff to soft and flexible.

Processability—Mirel biopolymers can be processed in many tygesxisting conventional polymer conversion equipirtbat are
currently being used for petroleum-based plasttb wiinimal adjustments.

Upper Service Temperature—Mirel biopolymers will withstand temperatures ixcess of 106 C, i.e., the boiling point of water, an
important threshold. Some formulations of Mirelfidymers can withstand temperatures up to%30

Resistance to Hydrolysis—While Mirel biopolymers will biodegrade in mariaad fresh water environments, they are resistant to
reacting with cold or hot water over the intendésldpan of the product.

Biobased and Biodegradability Certification

Mirel biopolymers have the advantage inrttegketplace of being both biobased and biodegtadeliile having comparable functional
properties to petroleum-based polymers. Howeveiday's marketplace there is sometimes confudiontahe use of the terms "biobased"”
and "biodegradable."” We have committed to followimdustry guidelines when making these claims. Miiepolymers have received the
Vincotte certifications of "OK Biodegradability Sofor natural soil

17




Table of Contents

biodegradability, "OK Biodegradability Water" faieEh water biodegradability, "OK Compost" for corsadility in an industrial composting
unit, and "OK Compost Home" for compostability ionhe composting systems. Vincotte is the recogniz@dpean authority on materials
inspection, certification, assessments and techir@aing. We believe that Mirel biopolymers ahetonly non-starch bioplastics to gain all
four Vingotte certifications. In addition to thengotte certifications, Mirel biopolymers have beentified compostable by the Biodegradable
Products Institute ("BPI"), an independent Northekican certifier of compostable material. BPI derdition shows that Mirel biopolymers
comply with the specifications established in thragkican Society for Testing and Materials stande®dM D6400 for composting in a
professionally managed composting facility. Mveigpelymers have received the Vingotte certificatafriOK Compost" for compostability

in an industrial composting unit.

Regulatory Requirements

Some applications for which Mirel may béalle, such as food packaging, plastic-coated peyges, and lids for disposable cups,
involve food contact, which, in the United Statesegulated by the U.S. Food and Drug Administrai'FDA"). The FDA process for food
contact requires the submittal of a dossier, wisahnade up of a number of extraction studies cotedugnder specific guidelines.

In 2010, Mirel F1005, F1006 and F3002 gsagere cleared for use in non-alcoholic food cardgplications. The conditions of use
range from frozen food storage to boiling watetaf00°C, including microwave reheating. Mirel istable for a wide range of injection
molded food service and packaging applicationsuthiolg caps and closures, and disposable itemsasufidrks, spoons, knives, tubs, trays,
and hot cup lids. The clearance also includes mtsdiuch as housewares, cosmetics and medicalgagka

In early 2012, Mirel biopolymers in botlnfiand thermoforming grades were cleared for ugead contact applications including paper
coatings, bags, cups, trays, and squeeze bottteapplication to EFSA (European Food Safety Autigpfior approval of Mirel biopolymers
in film grade for use in food contact applicatiespending in the European Union.

Trends and Opportunities for Mirel Biopolymers
Branded Product

The market for branded products and seswaéh attributes of environmental responsibilitydasustainability is an emerging business
opportunity. We expect that by co-branding prodticsés use Mirel and Mvera, Metabolix and its custosnwill be able to jointly promote
environmental responsibility. We believe that proghs are positioning products as environmentabpaoasible or superior to gain a
competitive advantage as they believe consumeeetes are shifting. We believe the use of Mirddranded products either directly or for
packaging will facilitate and enhance customefsres to exploit this trend.

Regulated Market

Regulatory action, such as bans, taxesidigls, mandates and initiatives, to encouragetisuticn of renewable and sustainable
materials for petroleum-based incumbents is inéngadt is notable that there are bans on singkeplastic bags being mandated in areas
around the world. In the geographic segments wiegyelatory drivers exist, we expect that Mirel lbpners can meet requirements for
biobased content or biodegradability that favorévisiopolymers over conventional petroleum-basedtpis. In addition, producers are now
anticipating regulatory change and are initiatinggpams to introduce sustainable materials to fh@iducts prior to or in an attempt to
forestall implementation of such regulation. Weidngd that as awareness of our practical and affdedaternative grows, the pace of
regulatory change may accelerate.
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Market Segments for Metabolix Biopolymers

Although there are significant opporturstacross many market segments, we are initiallydiog on three main market segments: film
and bag applications, performance additives andtiomal biodegradation. These markets have thegést need for materials that are
biobased and biodegradable either for brandingeydlacause of regulatory requirements, or becaodedradability offers a useful property
such as new end-of-life solutions like compostingumaerobic digestion. In addition, our biopolymienpart improved performance qualities
when used as an additive and blended with othemnpals including PVC. To approach these market satgnee expect to conduct certain,
focused product and market development activitresuding working with potential customers to det@re their specific needs, and we have
begun the process of qualifying our material fataie customer applications. As new inventory beesrmavailable, we expect that these
activities will accelerate.

The performance profile of our biopolymeoqlucts is closely matched to the needs of theviolig market segments:
Film and Bag Application

The compostable bag market is growing aadowners and retailers are motivated by regylaod consumer demand. Compostable
bags are the single largest application use forpostable materials. The driver for this markehis dngoing need to reduce and eliminate
organics (food scraps and yard waste) from munligygate streams and landfills. Applications suckiagle-use retail bags, industrial can
liners, kitchen compost bags and organic lawn aafilbags have a strong need for the industrial ostapility offered by our Mvera
biopolymer products. In 2012, we developed anddhed Mvera B5008, a certified film grade resin mated for use in bag and film
applications where industrial composting is theireéesfinal route of disposal. We plan to developlitidnal Mvera products suited to the
needs of the marketplace for film and bag applcesti

Performance Additive

We are developing PHA biopolymers as penfarce additives. Metabolix biopolymer resins atkezimiscible or highly compatible as a
dispersed modifier with a broad range of biobasetigetroleum-based materials and can improve arahgerformance attributes such as
impact strength, heat resistance, barrier profgemiecessability and plasticization through blegdiith these materials. We are initially
focused on developing polymeric modifiers for P\&olymer with a diverse use pattern ranging fremstruction materials to medical
applications and an estimated global demand ofeqipiately 35 million metric tons per year. In P\V&Cgompounded product is typically
formulated with about 2@0% performance additives used to improve the @satality and performance of PVC products. We aresbbpinc
biobased, polymeric modifiers for semi-rigid aneixible PVC compounds. We have shown that our palimmmeodifiers can provide a step
change in impact modification, plasticization amdgess modification when added to PVC. We havestisovn that our bioplastic polymeric
modifiers have the potential to improve PVC impasistance beyond that achievable with leadingmeljc modifiers and at the same time
serve as a non-migrating, non-phthalate plasticlne2012, we sampled and launched 16001, a polignmeodifier for PVC and are working
with customers to identify suitable applicationstlte technology that may allow us to broaden ttdr@ssable market opportunity for our
materials, beyond our traditional focus on thoseketa requiring biodegradation. In 2013, we expeatontinue to develop polymeric
modifiers based on our PHA technology suitablesfuinancing the performance of targeted polymersirBuwtpplications include toughening
of polylactic acid (PLA) where the ability to addsethe inherent brittleness of this material caidghificantly expand the potential
applications that can be served. We believe thaaM#ix has the potential to develop a family afimsed and fully biodegradable impact
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modifiers with improved functionality compared tarent fossil derived materials while also beinghaised and biodegradable.
Functional Biodegradatiol

Applications such as agricultural film (rollfilm, field film, bale wrap and greenhouse filrepd netting, erosion control netting and
fencing have a strong need for the soil biodegritilabffered by Mirel biopolymers. In the casefidld and mulch agricultural film, Mirel
biopolymers will biodegrade naturally after use aad be tilled into the field after a growing seasbhis can avoid the costs associated with
the labor of removing the film from the fields atie associated disposal costs. In horticulturepeeof Mirel biopolymers can eliminate the
need and cost of removing plant pots when plardimdjthe subsequent costs associated with dispasabmpared to existing bioplastics in
the market, Mirel biopolymers offer biodegradapiliéxcellent toughness and strength, and long sveif life prior to use. We do not believe
that existing products provide the robust perforogaim use combined with the biodegradability thateMbiopolymers offer.

PHAs are naturally metabolized and thigprty is useful in a number of applications inchgldenitrification of closed water systems
such as aquaria. Mirel polymers are offered inte iarket where they demonstrated particular vajueontrolled release of energy and
carbon, resulting in a self-regulating system otivgathe need for expensive controls and chemioahde as required in competing solutions.

Studies have noted that the world's ocehow increasing levels of persistent plastic plsiof a size ingestible by marine creatures at
the bottom of the food chain. Larger plastic iteams also accumulating in substantial quantitieseitain parts of the ocean, and marine birds
and mammals have been found dead from ingestiggtting tangled in plastic debris. Mirel biopolyrealow brand owners the opportunity
to offer a product that will biodegrade if releaseith the environment or in applications where mardegradation is a key attribute
(e.g., erosion control).

We have an extensive inventory of Mirelgmtymer grades available for uses requiring biodégtion.
Industry Landscape

The plastics market is large, with manybkished players. The market has grown aroundhibenizal processing of oil and natural gas,
and is concentrated in the conventional, non-bicattaple petroleum-based segment.

Established companies in this segment deelDow Chemical, DuPont, BASF, Ineos, LyondellBeRsABIC and Mitsubishi Chemical,
among many others. The price of conventional petmolbased plastic is volatile, as it is dependameiroleum as a key manufacturing
input. In addition, the non-biodegradability of eentional petroleum-based plastics makes themgiengiin and harmful to the environment
and creates significant waste.

A few companies, such as DuPont, DSM, Arkeamd Braskem have taken steps toward plastiesilmasrenewable resources, and are
commercializing conventional plastics that useding blocks derived from renewable resources agpoments. These products are generally
not biodegradable. Other producers of petroléaased plastics, including BASF, and Samsung, h@dywre certain petrochemical grades
are biodegradable in industrial compost environsdnit are otherwise persistent in the environraadtare still subject to the volatility of
and natural gas prices.

Our most comparable competitors are irbibdegradable, renewable resource based plasticesggwithin which there are three
distinct technologies: PHA, polylactic acid (PLA)dstarch-based biodegradables. Just as a widstyafidifferent petroleum-based plastics
now serve the needs of the market, we believetiiese three product classes are more complemehtarcompetitive.
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We believe that of these three product classeIMffers a broad range of properties and procgssitions, and will address a large
proportion of opportunities as an environmentattyaative yet functionally equivalent alternativedonventional petroleum-based plastics.
Unlike PLA and most starch-based biodegradablessiMan:

. biodegrade in natural soil and water environmgincluding the marine environment,
. biodegrade in industrial or home composts,

. remain functional in a wide range of temperatetings, and

. not break down in everyday use.

Companies active in the PHA plastics segrmatude Kaneka, Tianan, Tianjin, EcoMann and aanproducer in Brazil. The key
players in PLA and starch-based biodegradableigtaisiclude NatureWorks, Mitsui Chemical, Teijinpamont and Biome. In addition,
there are companies that compound blends of vanisrials, including bioplastics.

Summarized below is an overview of the stdulandscape for conventional, biobased and lgiatble polymers.

Biodegradability Based on Petroleun Based on Renewable Resourc
Biodegradable Synthetic Biodegradable: PHA:
BASF (Ecoflex™) Kaneka (PHBH)
Dupont (Biomax™) Tianan (PHBV)
ShowaDenko (BionolléM) Tianjin (SoGreeri™")
Mitsubishi Chemical (GS Pla) EcoMann (EM)

Samsung (PBAT

Zhejiang Hisun (PBAT) PLA:
NatureWorks (Inge™ )
Mitsui Chemical (LacedM)
Starch-based:
Novamont (Mate-Bi ™)
Biome

Non-biodegradable Conventional petroleurbased plastic Dupont (Sorond (~30% biobased)

Dow Chemical (Soybean
Polyurethanes)

Arkema (Nylon 11)
Braskem (polyethylene

Biobased Industrial Chemicals Platform
Overview

The combined global market for conventidBdland C3 industrial chemicals is estimated atentioan $10 billion annually. These
fundamental building block industrial chemicals éapplication to a broad range of industrial anascaner products. We view this marke
attractive both commercially and technologically lee development and deployment of our PHA fermagorn and FAST recovery
technologies. We believe our technology can be ts@doduce these chemicals from renewable feekistoust effectively as "drop in"
replacements in the industry supply chain for coie@al chemicals produced with oil priced at ooab $90 per barrel; we believe our GBL
product will ultimately be very attractive at evenver oil prices.
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Our objective is to develop and commerze@ahiobased industrial chemicals starting with 84 then C3 through partnerships with
industry leaders. Our business strategy is to fstrategic alliances where our partners contribeitméntation and manufacturing capabilities,
access to market channels in the value chain datbdeassets, and Metabolix contributes intelldqiuaperty, proprietary technology and
process engineering capabilities to enable comération of a new source of supply for competitivest-effective biobased industrial
chemicals to meet rising global market demand.

In our biobased industrial chemicals platfpour C4 program is most advanced in developrioemird commercialization. We have
developed our proprietary fermentation and FASDvecy processes to produce biobased gamma-butiwaka¢'GBL") at industrial scale.
Through an established synthetic route, our biah&L can be converted to biobased butanediol ("BPthe workhorse of the C4 industry
value chain that enables access to broad segmfethis market.

We have also demonstrated that our teclgyakdirectly applicable to the manufacture oftda@sed acrylic acid, the primary industrial
chemical in the C3 industry value chain. We havai$ed initially on engineering production straiosfermentation and validating our FAST
recovery process for production of biobased acagicl.

Market for C4 and C3 I ndustrial Chemicals

Global demand for conventional C4 industfemicals is estimated at approximately $3 hillamnually, and has been growing at a rate
of approximately four percent per year. C4 chemicatlucts include BDO, and related chemicals indgdBL, tetrahydrafuran ("THF")
and pyrrolidones. These chemicals are used attinaluscale in a wide range of applications inchglengineering plastics, resins and
solvents, auto parts, spandex, fabrics and filpensonal care products and in semiconductor maturfag. According to industry sources,
manufacturing in this sector is concentrated asdpdive companies represent approximately 60%h@fmarket. Today, conventional C4
chemicals are produced almost entirely from folsaged hydrocarbons such as natural gas, oil or Eoehermore, there are only testing and
sampling quantities of biobased C4 chemicals omthgket. Industry experts currently estimate thatfirst commercial scale supply of
biobased C4 chemicals might begin to enter the etpldce in the 2014-2015 timeframe and will inijiaepresent a small fraction of the C4
market.

Global demand for C3 chemicals is estimaitegreater than $8 billion per year based on s#l8illion pounds annually. The global
market is projected to grow at an annual rate grahan five percent driven by increasing demanisia, including China and India.
Conventional C3 chemicals, including crude acrgbiad, glacial acrylic acid and acrylates, are usq@toducts such as SAPs, water treatment
chemicals, coatings (decorative, automotive, aqépaand adhesives.

Industry experts believe that escalatinggs for both acrylic acid and its main feedstoapylene affect the economics of producing
chemicals and have created an interest in produ€hfifom renewable routes. These routes may serkadtice or contain costs and to
uncouple production from the volatility of petrotaunarkets, in addition to providing the optioniariease the bio-content of key consumer
products, such as diapers and decorative paints.

Industry experts also believe that reguiatoandates and government policies seeking tease utilization of biobased chemicals will
become meaningful drivers for the market adoptibbi@based C4 and C3 chemicals into the industhamical supply chain. In addition, we
believe that brand owners are beginning to actisek more renewable options from their supplyrcpadducers. We also believe that
growing awareness among both manufacturers andiggars for products containing renewable content alsy become an increasingly
important factor in driving conversion to biobasdmicals over the long run.
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Metabolix PHA Technology and FAST Recovery Process

Conventional C4 and C3 chemicals are preddlrough established synthetic routes utilizieggchemical-based feedstocks. Our
process for creating biobased industrial chemicaislves engineering metabolic pathways into miethat in a fermentation process
produce specific biopolymers that serve as precsifen the C3 and C4 chemicals. Through our PHAmetogy, we are able to control the
microbe biology to achieve high concentrationspefcific, naturally-occurring biopolymers that acauate inside cells as they metabolize
sugars. This intracellular accumulation of the bigmers inside the microbes is a unique and difféating aspect of our technology. When
the fermentation is completed, a novel recoverg@ss known as "FAST" (fast-acting, selective thdysis) that we have developed converts
the biopolymers, poly-4-hydroxybutrate ("P4HB") o4 chemicals, poly-3-hydroxyproprionate for C3mieals, directly to GBL and acrylic
acid, respectively. In addition, known and commamigicticed catalytic processes can be used tceffestively convert GBL to BDO.

The FAST recovery process is a proprietiamy;cost, energy-efficient approach to recovethhpyrity biobased chemicals directly from
dried or whole fermentation broth. Our results stibat 80 percent of the dry weight of the microlgiells from fermentation is PHA. We h:
shown that we can recover 90-95 percent pure clapioduct in a single recovery step. In additite, residual biomass from the
fermentation step is converted to char, and cae®gcled and combusted for process heat, makinGAI®T process energetically self-
sustaining. Further, the water evaporated duriegitlying of the whole fermentation broth can beycésd after the product is isolated to
eliminate wastewater and minimize make-up wateuireqnents.

We believe our technology is differentiated that it allows diversification of feedstockrr existing fossil sources to renewable sot
and this will offer cost advantages. Based on ogleustanding of industry economics, inputs and dasers, we believe that our FAST
process for biobased industrial chemicals may predwconomic advantages in deployment such as loapital investment and lower
manufacturing cost under future anticipated oit@rcenarios. We have the ability to repurposdiegisermentation assets and leverage our
common FAST recovery process platform to manufacturange of chemicals and intermediates allowitogvecapital entry strategy. In
addition, with the elimination of fossil fuel inuwvith our process, we believe our biobased C4G#dhemicals can be produced with a
significantly lower carbon footprint as comparedtmventional chemicals, provided renewable energged to power fermentation. Finally,
our dried biomass step provides the option forstife transportation and handling of the chemicadsaotimization of the recovery plant
location. We believe this could be a particulatiyaective option for C3 chemicals, where acrylitddacan be a challenging product to ship and
store.

We began our program in biobased industhiaimicals in 2007 when we received an Advancetifi@ogy Program ("ATP") award
from the U.S. Department of Commerce's Nationditlne of Standards and Technology. The programdessgned to create a class of
biobased routes for producing important industrfe@mical intermediates, reducing our nation's dépece on fossil-based feedstocks and
providing the nation with competitive advantagepdatymers, chemicals and agriculture, all whileugidg adverse environmental impacts.

The $2 million award funded our integrabéatengineered chemicals ("IBEC") program to degedastainable solutions for widely used
C4 industrial chemicals. Over the three year gpaniod of our IBEC project, we achieved all of iregram milestones. We demonstrated
that we could engineer microbes to produce a rah@A polymers though the fermentation of planthded sugars. We also demonstrated
that these biopolymers could be converted intoreesaof C4 industrial chemicals. At the conclusimiithe project in 2009, we had developed
a scalable first generation industrial productiaorobe.
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Beginning in 2010, we focused our effontstioe technology and commercial development ospiexialty C4 chemicals segment that
includes GBL as well as BDO, THF and the pyrrolidenOur initial focus has been to develop a comialescale process to directly produce
biobased GBL. We may also use an additional exjgtimthetic route to convert biobased GBL to biedaBDO, allowing us to access this
broad segment of the C4 market.

During 2010, we completed our first largads fermentation demonstrating scale-up of bioth&BL by a factor of 250 times with the
strain performing essentially as expected basati@prior laboratory results. Our recovery andfiration efforts continued and we made
progress toward production of biobased GBL samfpleshipment to potential customers for testing. &l&® expanded exploratory
partnership discussions focusing on both upstreairdawnstream aspects of the value chain.

Building on those discussions, in July 20¥&tabolix and CJ CheilJedang announced the execat a joint development agreement to
continue to advance and refine our production teldyy and assess investment options for the comatization of biobased C4 chemicals
via fermentation. CJ BIO, a division of CJ Cheildrg, is a world leader in fermentation based rebeand development and manufacturing
producing a range of nucleotides, and amino aaidjding lysine. The two companies worked clogelglevelop a detailed market and
economic analysis examining aspects of an invedttnezommercialize biobased C4 chemicals.

In 2011, we continued refining and scaling fermentation and thermolysis processes andumed an in-depth analysis of the market
opportunity for "green” GBL. We successfully contlgta trial fermentation run at the 60,000 litedustrial scale. We recovered the biomass
from the production runs and, using our FAST tedbgyy extracted tonnage quantity of our biobased. &B use in pilot testing by potential
customers.

We tested the GBL product produced usingRHA fermentation and FAST technologies and camdid that the material met the
existing industry specifications for convention@®IG The existing industrial chemical specificatioenchmark for GBL is 99.7% purity for
general chemical grade. In addition, we sent out G&mples to a private laboratory to test for thespnce of Carbon 14 (a test for fossil
carbon), and the results using this well estabtigkst showed that the carbon in our GBL samplestsitbe requirements for being design
“renewable.”

We also worked with a prospective downstrg@artner and demonstrated at laboratory scalelitiéy to convert our biobased GBL to
N-methyl-2-pyrrolidone ("NMP") and meet industry sfieations. According to industry sources, overpcent of GBL consumption is for
the manufacture of NMP, which is used as a solirehibe oil extraction, electronics applicationajrg strippers, magnetic wire coatings and
engineering resins.

Based on meeting our internal milestongsroflucing biobased GBL at industrial scale andtmgendustry specifications, we have
continued to conduct a series of exploratory pastrip discussions focusing on both upstream anchdtream aspects of the C4 value chain.

In 2012, we completed the preliminary dadiyy a commercial scale plant including all of teenponents of our fermentation and
recovery process to generate biobased GBL. In oatippn with our technical progress, we expect taticme discussions with industry leac
with the goal of forming the industry alliances aesgary to successfully bring our biobased C4 imdlisthemicals, including GBL and BDO,
into commercial production. In addition, we arereutly exploring potential GBL applications in highlue-added specialty segments where
high purity and biobased molecules are in high detand can provide customers with additional coitipetadvantages.
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Progressin our Biobased C3 Research and Development Program

Today, the global market for C3 chemicphanarily acrylic acid, is estimated at $8 billiannually. The primary synthetic route for
making conventional acrylic acid is the use of gtepe oxidation which converts propylene to crudey/lic acid and glacial acrylic acid. Tr
synthetic route to make acrylic acid relies almesgtrely on fossil-based hydrocarbons. Based orirdarnal market assessments, we believe
that there will be a clear and growing demand ftwand owners for biobased acrylic as it is usethimumer-facing products such as paints,
diapers and detergents.

Based on our success demonstrating ountéafly to produce biobased C4 chemicals, we agetiag the significant market for C3
chemicals, and specifically the production of bsdxh acrylic acid for deployment of our technolo@yr initial efforts were focused on
establishing a clear technology and intellectuapprty strategy for production of C3 chemicals vdttly minor modifications to existing
manufacturing infrastructure. The additional corsidion we have anticipated early in our programeweelop acrylic acid is the inherent
difficulty working with the molecule as it is highteactive and corrosive and has to be handledryrdeer conditions.

Our objective is to develop and commerz&ah new route to the production of biobased acadid and acrylic esters with the goal of
being cost competitive with fossil-based C3 chetsieaan oil price of $90 per barrel. Our strategio develop the new process and, given
downstream processing and market considerationg with a strategic partner early in the developtr@sle to develop the technology for
successful commercialization.

In 2011, we undertook a market analysithefglobal market for acrylic acid to assess theketgarticipants, renewable technology
competition, economics, intellectual property statind end markets. We reached the conclusiopthdticing biobased C3 chemicals could
be very attractive for deployment of our technology

Based on this analysis, we began reseathiavelopment in 2011 to extend our PHA fermeataéind FAST recovery technology into
the production of acrylic acid. We successfullyieegred microbes that accumulate poly-3-hydroxypngate ("P3HP") and we
demonstrated small scale (20-30L) fermentation.af¥e developed refinements to our FAST recoveryrtetogy adapted to the unique
properties of acrylic acid. In our process, P3HPr&luced by fermentation, then the dried biomas®nverted directly to acrylic acid at
commercially attractive yieldsA major advantage of our process is that it av@idy additional chemical conversion steps.

In 2012, Metabolix continued scale up afrfentation and optimization of microbial strains fiesting. We also continued development
and optimization of our FAST recovery technologytoduce biobased acrylic acid or acrylate estersatch the chemical specifications of
conventional chemical counterparts. In addition,swecessfully scaled-up recovery of acrylic acadrfrdried biomass using the "FAST"
process in our Cambridge laboratory and providesoda quantities of dried biomass for conversiobitbased acrylic acid for customer
evaluation. In 2013, we expect to continue partmprdiscussions to bring our biobased acrylic atid commercial production.

Industry Landscape

The current global market for C4 and C3neitals is based almost entirely on fossil-baseddgatbon feedstocks. In general, the
conventional C4 and C3 markets in Europe, North Acaeand Japan are led by several establishedhatienal companies. The C4 market is
expected to grow at a three to four percent ragx the next five years. In addition, in 2008 theees some contraction in the C3 market dt
the recession and a decrease in the market fotrootien materials, including paints and coatifgslustry sources estimate a return to
historical growth rates for C3 acrylic acid of apgmately five percent annually based on the oltlfmo improved economic conditions and
an increase in adoption of SAPs in China.
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The nature of the chemicals industry histily follows a wellestablished trend where innovation and technolegfve to leverage ne
feedstocks that provide cost advantage. As potaadtexnatives to the primary synthetic routes entiy deployed by the industry, there are
several alternative bio-based routes being devdltperoduce biobased C4 and C3 chemicals. Basedoanalysis of the market, we
believe that over time, new capacity built to proel€4 and C3 will increasingly be based on tectgyotbat leverages renewable and less
volatile feedstocks.

Our closest competitors are developing &seldl technologies to produce biobased C4 and G8ghra variety of routes at industrial
scale. These include Genomatica, Myriant, BioAm# X/Dow, Cargill/Novozymes, and Novomer.

Summarized below is an overview of the stdulandscape for conventional and biobased CACGithdustrial chemicals.

Industrial Chemical Market

C4 (GBL, BDO, NMP, and

THF)

C3 (Acrylic Acid)

Top 5* Producers (Conventional
Routes)

Biobased Alternative Routes

BASF

Dairen Chemical
ISP (Ashland)
LyondellBasell
Mitsubishi

*Represent >60% of the glob
C4 (BDO) marke

Arkema

BASF

Dow (Rohm & Haas)
LG Chemical
Nippon Shokuba

Genomatica (Direct to BDO
fermentation)
Metabolix (PHA Fermentatior

Myriant, Bioamber, Reverdia,
(Succinic acid production
followed by conversion to
BDO)

Arkema (Glycerol catalytic
conversion to Acrylic Acid)
OPX/Dow,
Cargill/Novozymes/BASF
(3HP Fermentation)

MATRIC (Chemical
Conversion of Lactic Acid
*Represent >50% of the global Novomer (ethylene oxid
C3 acrylic acid market conversion to B-propiolactone
followed by conversion to
acrylic acid—only biobased if
ethylene oxide is derived from
EtOH)
Genomatica (fumaric acid
metathesis with ethylene)
Metabolix (PHA Fermentatior

Crops Platform
Overview

The petroleum industry is based on a globadel where fossil resources are extracted fraetrth. Once captured, the fossil resource
feedstock is transported to refineries where 9@edris used to produce fuel and the remainingetBgmt is used to produce industrial
chemicals, including plastics. With the increasivayldwide demand for fuels from renewable sourcesthe emerging demand for biobased
plastics, chemicals and chemical intermediatesh@lieve there is a long term opportunity to createalternative to the petroleum model
based on the co-production of renewable energychadicals from crops.

Our objective is to develop patented tetbgyto enable commercialization of renewable frad chemicals co-produced in proprietary
crops. Our business strategy is to leverage oelléctual property and PHA technology in microbed emake the research adaptations and
breakthroughs
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needed to create proprietary systems to produge3hbldroxybutrate (PHB, a subclass of PHAS) inlderes and stems of high yielding
biomass crops or in the seeds of industrial oilse@the of our approaches leverages our FAST regdeehnology to convert PHB in plant
biomass to chemicals and densified biomass for @mion to biofuels with favorable economics. Irseéd crops, we are also investigating
use of PHB-containing meal as an enhanced feedesuppt to deliver prebiotic effects and enhanced feonversion ratios.

Over the course of this program which begane than ten years ago, we have engaged in ocdiibns with academic institutions and
secured more than $16 million in government grémtsdvance this research. In our research to datdave achieved proof of concept for
our proprietary technology for producing PHB biggies in demonstration crops and crops of agronamécest including tobacco, oilseeds,
switchgrass and sugarcane. We have also filedhfelléctual property covering our inventions angieheeen awarded more than 30 patents to
date. Further, our researchers and academic caddive have published our research results in rge@ewed journals.

In 2011, we were awarded a grant by theategent of Energy ("DOE") for development of RenblgaEnhanced Feedstocks for
Advanced Biofuels and Bioproducts ("REFABB") to damstrate the production and recovery of chemigalw fcrops. This three year,
$6 million grant is expected to enable us to inseegelds of PHB in switchgrass plants and congilot testing to convert the PHB-
containing biomass to crotonic acid using our FA&GJovery process. Crotonic acid can be convertedviariety of chemical intermediates
that are typically produced from non-renewable ueses. In addition to the value of the biomasgf@ducing biofuel, this process could
create a pathway from crotonic acid to chemicarimiediates that are currently valued at over $B@miannually. In 2012, we were awarded
three new grants for leading-edge crop researgetiag multi-gene expression and transformatioplafits including important biofuel and
food crops. Funding from these three grants is e®geto total approximately $1.0 million and wilirr through 2014. We expect to continue
work in the crop program in 2013 under our graftsysed on switchgrass and oilseeds.

PHB and FAST Recovery Technology for Crops

PHAs are a natural component of numerogarasms in multiple ecosystems. In microbes, PH&satural intracellular stores of
carbon and energy that accumulate as discrete lgsanithin a cell when faced with a nutrient lintiten. These granules of biopolymer car
isolated and converted to materials. Based on priwk demonstrating the production and recoverldfA from microbial fermentation,
researchers at Metabolix are developing proprieganetic engineering systems to produce PHB fromfood crops. Precise insertion of
novel pathways in plants is challenging due tortbed for and the complexity of introducing multipdeeign genes and the lengthy time
required for the cross-breeding of plant generatimaving new gene systems. Our researchers haigmedsxpression systems for PHB
using three genes (thiolase, reductase and PHAasg®} which are required to increase productidPHB in plant tissue. A key considerati
in the work is to shift metabolism in the planincrease PHB production but to not impair the abiif the plant to thrive and reproduce. We
have developed different genetic engineering systemdifferent plant crops including tobacco, eéss, switchgrass and sugarcane. In
research published to date in our program, we hal@ved the following levels of PHB as a percdmirg weight in our plants: Tobacco
(18% in leaves; 9% in whole plants), Oilseed/Canze(iL6% in seeds; manuscript in development), &gitrss (7.7% in leaves) and
sugarcane (4.8% in leaves).

Our current research in biomass cropsimanly focused on increasing PHB yield in switchgs to a target of approximately 10 percent
dry weight of the plant. Switchgrass is a commdiscend ecologically attractive, non-food energggthat is indigenous to North America.
Switchgrass is an attractive biomass to energy tirapis generally considered to be a leading aidifor cellulose-derived production of
ethanol and other biofuels. It is a high densitsepeial crop that can grow on
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marginal land and does not require substantialtiputerms of water or fertilization. It also g capability of sequestering significant
amounts of carbon dioxide from the atmospheresinabt systems.

In tandem with this work, our researchergehbeen developing methods based on our FAST eegtechnology which uses heat to
convert PHB in the plant biomass to crotonic ahat tan be recovered and then serve as a platteemical to produce other chemical
intermediates such as propylene, butanol and malgigdride. We envision that the residual densifi@inass produced using the FAST
process will be a higher energy, transportabledtsat (similar to coal) that can be readily intégdawith existing power generation or for
gasification to produce infrastructure compatibtzebergy.

Our current research in oilseed cropsdsi$ed on increasing PHB yields in camelina seedsrameasing carbon capture and deposition
of storage compounds. These research efforts ayetéa towards producing bioplastics and/or enhdhiacémal feeds with prebiotic effects.

Plant Science Research Milestones

Tobacco: We evaluated the utility of a plastid transfation in engineering a robust system for expressfanmultigene,
biosynthetic pathway for the production of the liéggic PHB in tobacco. We showed that tobacco hasapability to produce high
levels of PHB, up to an average of 18 percent dright in leaves and nine percent in the biomaskeéntire plant. These plants w
the subject of a field trial in 2009. The significa of this work was as a demonstration systeraliadco for development of our
technology. Results were published in 201 Plant Physiology

Switchgrass: In 2001, Metabolix was awarded an Agriculturdustries of the Future (IOF) grant from the Deparit of Energy, a
5 year, $7.5 million grant involving seven univées and two national laboratories. This was oust firant supporting development
technology to produce PHAs in biomass crops toagse feedstock for a biomass biorefinery. During ¢inant, we completed work
demonstrating the first successful expressionfahational multi-gene pathway in switchgrass. 1920the IOF grant was replaced
with a grant from the USDA and research contindédu results of our work in switchgrass were pulgésim 2008 in th@lant
Biotechnology Journakhere up to 3.7% dry weight PHB was reported indsaand up to 1.2% in a whole switchgrass tillars,
representative portion of the plant. We have sulbsetly increased levels to up to 7.7% in leaf #sand up to 2.3% in a whole tiller.
In 2011, Metabolix was awarded the Department afrgym REFABB grant to further increase PHB produtiio switchgrass to a
target of approximately 10% dry weight of the plartiis work includes developing new methods baseduw FAST recovery
technology to convert PHB in the plant biomassraianic acid using heat. Biobased crotonic acidsmme as a platform chemical to
produce other drop-in chemicals, such as propylentnol and maleic anhydride which are currendlpgd at over $80 billion
annually.

Oil Seed/Camelina: Camelina is an industrial crop that grows welhe northern U.S. and Canada. We continue ttuateaco-
production of PHB bioplastics with seed oil and mea&amelina. In 2008, we established a two yeaearch collaboration with not
oilseed experts at the Donald Danforth Plant SedDenter ("Danforth Center"), a leading not-forffin@search institute in St. Louis,
Missouri. This collaboration was supported finaitgiby a $1.14 million grant from the Missouri Lifeciences Trust Fund to the
Danforth Center. Metabolix assembled a team ofhssies in St. Louis to work closely with the DartfoCenter's principal
investigators with the purpose of achieving tecahgmals for stable production of biobased pladiosctly in oilseed crops. High
levels of PHB have been produced in oilseeds andt@&DA-APHIS regulated field trials of PHB-produgi@amelina have been
conducted. In 2010, Metabolix
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established Metabolix Oilseeds, a wholly owned @@arasubsidiary of Metabolix, in Saskatoon, Sadk@tean, to produce robust
oilseed germplasms with engineered value-addetd fiai commercial crop production in western Naoktherica. Oilseeds that can be
used for the production of bioplastics, renewablendicals, and enhanced feed ingredients are clyramer development.

Sugarcane: Sugarcane is a high yielding biomass cropghats well in tropical climate zones including Soémerica, Australia
and parts of Asia. In 2007, we entered into a mreseeollaboration with Australia's Cooperative Rash Centre for Sugar Industry
Innovation through Biotechnology ("CRC SIIB") towa#dop sugarcane lines for the production of bigjdas Together with the CRC
SIIB we achieved a bioplastic content level of BeBcent in sugarcane leaves. During 2010, we foranemllaboration with the
Australian Research Council and The University aé€nsland to further research with sugarcane. Uhdecollaboration we
evaluated the use of new promoters to drive gepeesgion and achieved PHB levels as high as 4d&@peof leaf dry weight. This
research was published in March 2012 inRhent Biotechnology Journal

Recent Progress

In 2011, Metabolix was awarded the $6 willREFABB grant by the DOE to engineer switchgmsslucing 10 percent by weight PHB
in the whole plant and to develop methods basenliofrAST recovery technology to thermally convleg PHB-containing biomass to
crotonic acid and a higher density residual bionfiggion for production of biofuel. Crotonic adila platform chemical that can be readily
converted through simple, known chemical conversieps to a range of commodity chemical intermediatcluding propylene, butanol and
maleic anhydride, which are currently valued atrc@&0 billion annually.

To date, we have reported PHB productionpfo 7.7 percent in switchgrass leaf tissue upnogrietary genetic engineering and
breeding technology. We have also achieved prognsnults in the model plant tobacco where PHB petdn of up to 18% dry weight in
leaf tissue and nine percent dry weight in wholntd have been achieved. The approaches demodstrgeevious work will be applied to
the ongoing research with the goal of increasirgleirels of PHB to 10 percent in switchgrass, allewe believe could be commercially
viable, if attained. In 2013, we expect to contilm@dvance research focused on increasing PHBiptiod in switchgrass and developing a
thermal conversion process for crotonic acid.

In 2012, we were awarded three grantsdfading-edge crop research targeting multi-geneesspon and transformation of plants, and
builds upon our years of experience in transfornglagts for bio-product production. Funding froredlk three grants is expected to total
nearly $1 million and will run through 2014. In dmy, we initiated work on an ARPA-E funded projectvork with the University of
Massachusetts Amherst ("UMASS Amherst") to helpaéase the natural ability of camelina to produd¢e amnd add the production of energy-
dense terpene molecules that can be easily convietteliquid fuels. In April, Metabolix Oilseeda,wholly owned subsidiary of Metabolix,
was awarded a grant for the development of capécitging for commercial-scale polyhydroxybutyrd®HB)-producing camelina. In
December, we announced receiving a subaward uhde&dvanced Research Projects Agency—Energy ("AEP®Ao work with the UCLA
Henry Samueli School of Engineering and AppliedeBce to redesign carbon fixation pathways to irsehe efficiency of capturing energy
from sunlight. This research is expected to in@ezsbon fixation and subsequent storage prodypisition in camelina and other plants.
will work with UCLA Engineering to investigate alternative biochemical pathway that theoreticalhyld allow a plant to capture twice as
much CO, using the same amount of light, with the end géaihproving the productivity of both food and fuglops.
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The Potential Benefits to Producing Renewable Energy and Chemicals from Plant Crops

We believe we can engineer a commercidesyshat co-produces biobased bioplastics or crematong with biomass for conversion
to energy (such as steam, electricity or biofuathsas ethanol or biodiesel). This concept, calédiomass biorefinery," is based on the co-
production of energy and higher value biobasediplas biobased chemicals. It is analogous to ttsdagergy/petrochemical industry where
synthetic plastics are derivative value-adding potsl along with energy produced from petroleum matdiral gas. We believe the co-
production of biobased plastics or chemicals witargy in an integrated system will offer superioomomic value and efficiency as comp:
to a single product system.

We envision the following potential bengfid our approach:

Integrated Value Chain Opportunity for Biobased @heals and Biofuels: In a fully realized Metabolix crop-based biatirstrial
production system, the value chain begins withgtteevth of crops containing PHB followed by polyntecovery to produce
bioplastics or biobased chemicals and processimgsidual biomass for generating energy or biofuel.

Crop Diversification: The production of PHB in crops provides an appaty for farmers to diversify their crop plangisito a crop
with higher income potential and potential for re€ld risk exposure.

Source of High Value Biobased ChemicalsPHB can be used directly as bioplastic ancetivd a number of valuable, biobased
industrial chemicals. Adoption of PHA bioplastic texdals derived from our PHB in consumable goodsid@void long term
accumulation of plastic waste in landfills, roadsidoceans and inland waters. PHA bioplasticsudisefiodegradable under ambient,
marine and anaerobic conditions. Production of &selol industrial chemicals from crops would servespond to the emerging
demand for renewable content and would decouplmicta production from the market volatility for pefeum feedstocks.

Greenhouse Gas Reduction with Bioenergy Productioithe cultivation of crops producing PHB can péayital role in the reductic
of global or local greenhouse gas emissions. Pa#roacal plastics and chemicals require petroleuimodis a feedstock and for proc
energy during production. In contrast, using crgpgroduce PHB uses C{Orom the atmosphere to form the biopolymer in dddito

generating energy results in a reduced carbon rfiobtp
Intellectual Property

Our continued success depends in largeopastr proprietary technology. We rely on a comalion of patent, copyright, trademark and
trade secret laws, as well as confidentiality age®ts, to establish and protect our proprietarytsig

We own approximately 365 issued patentsagmtoximately 150 patent applications worldwida] &ve have licensed from third parties
approximately 40 issued patents and patent apjaicatvorldwide. In 2012, we filed 14 new patentlaggtions based on inventions including
methods of processing Mirel biopolymers and contjmss for end user applications, use of PHA-coritgjbiomass to produce biobased
industrial chemicals, and PHA expression systenmsiamobes and plants. We were also granted or alio#B patent applications, 5 in the
United States of America and 38 internationally2@12. The inventions covered under these patealisde novel multi-gene encoding
systems in microbes, novel feedstocks for produBiHgs, PHA adhesives, and PHA biopolymers for madapplications. We continue to
seek and evaluate new technologies for possil#adiog opportunities which may enhance our compdnysiness competitiveness.

Our extensive patent portfolio covers, agother things, the fundamental biotechnology ndeéderoduce Mirel biopolymers and a
range of biobased chemicals as well as biopolymerpositions, processes and derived products. Thaded patents and patent applications
include patents covering
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our core technology that are owned by Massachusesttitute of Technology ("MIT") and exclusivelycénsed to us. Under the MIT licensing
agreement, we pay annual license fees. In additioter this licensing agreement, we are obligaiqzhy royalties on sublicensing revenue
and sales of products, if any, covered by the §edmatents.

Our intellectual property portfolio incluslpatents directed to compositions of polymersegewectors, expression systems in plants anc
microbes, devices, coatings, films, as well as oddtof manufacture and use. The terms of such {gadea set to expire at various times
between 2013 and 2030.

In 2007, we entered into an exclusive I8&eagreement with the University of Massachusettewell ("UMass Lowell") relating to
United States Patent No. 5,883,199. The licensgdthtdogy was developed by inventors at UMass Lawg# have granted nonexclusive
sublicenses under this patent to BASF Corporatiqréduce and market blends of PLA and polybutytedipate terephthalate ("“PBAT") and
to NatureWorks, LLC to make, use and sell blendBloA with certain other polymers, including polypléne succinate ("PBS"). In 2007 we
entered into an agreement granting Abbott Laboiega@n exclusive worldwide patent license for the af our multi-gene expression
technology in pharmaceutical product applicatidis. expect that from time to time we may grant farticenses and sublicenses under our
patents and the patents we have licensed from phiriies as appropriate and consistent with thenteroialization of our own products.

Our registered U.S. trademarks incliitabolix, the Metabolix four-leaf desigielles, Mirel , the Mirel heart-leaf desigMveraand
Biopol. These marks and certain other trademarks hawgebaksn registered in selected foreign countries.

Employees

As of December 31, 2012, we had 93 fulletiemployees. Of those employees, 60 were in rdseat development, 7 were in sales and
marketing and 26 in general and administration. Aghour research staff, 23 hold Ph.D.'s and 32 hwldters' or bachelors' degrees in their
respective disciplines. Our technical staff hasegtipe in the following areas: microbial genetigiginformatics, metabolic engineering,
systems biology, plant genetic engineering, ferewom process engineering, chemical engineeringoahgner science and engineering.
Most of our employees are located in Massachudéttse of our employees are subject to a collediavgaining agreement. We consider our
relationships with our employees to be good.

Research and Development Expenses

During the years ended December 31, 20021 2nd 2010, we spent approximately $23.2 millg2%.4 million and $23.7 million,
respectively, on company-sponsored research arglagaent activities.

Corporate and Investor Information

Our company was incorporated in Massackagetiune 1992 under the name Metabolix, Inc.dpt@&mber 1998, we reincorporated in
Delaware. Financial and other information about@ampany is available on our website (http://wwwtabelix.com). The information on o
website is not incorporated by reference into #mnisual report on Form 10-K and should not be cameidito be part of this annual report on
Form 10-K. We make available on our website, freeharge, copies of our annual report on Form 1@uarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments toetheysorts filed or furnished pursuant to Sectioa}l8r 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act") as smoreasonably practicable after filing such niatetectronically or otherwise
furnishing it to the Securities and Exchange Corsiuis (the "SEC"). In addition, the public may reaml copy any materials that we file w
the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 1%t@efet, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549. The public miatain information on the
operation of the Public Reference Room by calllmg$EC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Also, our filings wite 8EC may be accessed through the
SEC's website at www.sec.gov.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our operations and financial results atgext to various risks and uncertainties that cdwalde a material adverse effect on our busir
financial condition, results of operations andtiagling price of our common stock.

Risks Relating to our Financial Position
We have a history of net losses and our future profitability is uncertain.

We have typically had net operating lossese being founded in 1992. At December 31, 20L2 accumulated deficit was
approximately $242.0 million. Since 1992, we hagerbengaged primarily in research and developnrehearlystage commercial activitie
Because we have a limited history of commercialafi@ns and we operate in a rapidly evolving indyste cannot be certain that we will
generate sufficient revenue to operate our busimed$ecome profitable.

Our ability to generate revenues in ther4tean is highly dependent on the successful cornialkzation of our first and only product
family in the market, PHA biopolymers, which is gatt to many risks and uncertainties as descriedolb Our other technologies are still in
the early stages of development. We may never leetalmanufacture and sell other products develap#dour technology on a commercial
scale. The success of our plant crop and industniainicals programs will depend on our ability btain suitable partnerships and
collaborations for commercialization of those tedogies, and our ability to obtain funding from gorment grants and other sources. Ev
we are able to obtain suitable partnerships to ceroialize our technologies relating to the producif biobased plastics and chemicals in
crops and biosourced industrial chemicals, andegare manufacturing arrangements for our biopolgmee expect that it will take time for
our manufacturing to ramp up to an economical se@iée the market for our products expands. Assaltewe expect to have significant
losses and negative cash flow for at least the sewtral years, as we incur additional costs apéreses for the continued development and
expansion of our business, including the costst#t#ishing manufacturing capacity and ongoing agpe of research and product
development. The amount we spend will impact oulitalbo become profitable and this will depend,gart, on the number of new products
that we attempt to develop. We may not achieveaara}l of these goals and, thus, we cannot proastirances that we will ever be
profitable or achieve significant revenues.

Even if we can successfully manufacture seitlour products, whether we are able to genergi®fit on any of these products is highly
uncertain and depends on a number of factors indutie cost of production, the price we are ableharge for these products, and the
emergence of competing products.

We will need to secure additional funding and may be unable to raise additional capital on favorable terms, if at all.

The Company held unrestricted cash, caslvalgnts and investments of $46,281 at Decembg2@12. We believe that these resources
and the cash to be generated from existing gramt®&pected product sales will be sufficient to troes projected operating requirements for
at least the next twelve months. We continue te fagnificant challenges and uncertainties and, @sult, our available capital resources
may be consumed more rapidly than currently expledte to (a) lower than expected sales of our yoper products as a result of slow
market adoption; (b) increases in costs relatadestart-up and operation of commercial manufaeguoperations with third parties;

(c) changes we may make to the business that affeiing operating expenses; (d) changes we mayg toatur business strategy;
(e) changes in our research and development speptiins; and (f) other items affecting our foreeddevel of expenditures and use of cash
resources. Accordingly, we may need to raise aaftitifunds to support our operating and capitatiaeand longer term, we will
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require significant additional financing to contanto fund our operations. We may attempt to okddiitional funding through public or
private financing, collaborative arrangements gittategic partners, or through additional creditdi or other debt financing sources to
increase the funds available to fund operationsvéd@r, we may not be able to secure such finarnaiagtimely manner and on favorable
terms, if at all. Furthermore, if the Company issaquity or debt securities to raise additionabfjrour existing stockholders may experience
dilution, and the new equity or debt securities haye rights, preferences and privileges senitindee of our existing stockholders. If we
raise additional funds through collaboration, lisieiy or other similar arrangements, it may be resngsto relinquish valuable rights to our
potential products or proprietary technologiesgi@nt licenses on terms that are not favorablagdompany. Without additional funds, we
may be forced to delay, scale back or eliminateesofrour sales and marketing efforts, researchdanélopment activities, or other
operations and potentially delay product developrnirean effort to provide sufficient funds to caniie our operations. If any of these events
occurs, our ability to achieve our development emahmercialization goals would be adversely affected

Risks Relating to our Biopolymers Business
We may not be able to obtain sufficient biopolymer manufacturing capacity on a timely or economical basis.

After termination of the commercial alli@@DM retained its ownership of the Commercial Miatturing Facility in which our PHA
biopolymers were produced. While we retained cenae-commercial manufacturing equipment for pilint production, we do not
currently have a facility for commercial scale miauturing of biopolymers.

In 2012, we entered into an arrangemertt Aittibioticos S.A. for demonstration productionbabpolymers at the Antibioticos facility
Leon, Spain, with the intention, upon successfuhgletion of the demonstration phase, to enterantommercial manufacturing agreement
under which Antibioticos would provide toll manufagng of our PHA biopolymers. However, Antibioteés experiencing financial
difficulties, and we cannot be certain that Anttios will be able to complete the demonstratiartodulfill its obligations if we enter into a
commercial manufacturing agreement. We are awartethtibidticos is in a process of financial resturing, and our ability to obtain
biopolymer product from Antibi6ticos will depend tire outcome of that restructuring. Further, wencdibe certain that other suppliers,
including Tianjin GreeBio, will be able to supplyooluct meeting our requirements.

We continue to evaluate various manufaatudptions. However, our biopolymer manufacturieginology is highly complex.
Construction of a new manufacturing facility or rifadtion of an existing facility to make it suitlgbfor our manufacturing process could be
time-consuming and expensive. We cannot assuréhawe will be able to successfully manufactugbiymers in a timely or economical
manner, or at all. We cannot assure you that wehaile the necessary funds to finance the congiruot modification of a commercial
manufacturing facility, or that we will be abledevelop a manufacturing infrastructure in a timalyeconomical manner, or at all. We may
depend on obtaining commercial partners to finamador construct commercial manufacturing facsitier biopolymer production.

Since our manufacturing process has nobgeh run at commercial scale at any location dtieer ADM's Commercial Manufacturing
Facility in Clinton, lowa, our future manufacturiegsts are uncertain and may ultimately be highen tve expect. If the commercial
manufacturing capacity that we build or otherwibgam is not appropriate to the level of market dadh manufacturing costs may not be
economical. If we fail to develop adequate manufidey) capacity and expertise or fail to manufachimpolymers economically at large sc
or in commercial volumes, the commercializatioroof biopolymers and our business, financial coadiind results of operations will be
materially adversely affected. Further, if we failobtain or maintain third party toll compoundisgrvices on
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acceptable terms, or to establish our own compagndicility to provide such services in a timelydatonomical manner, the
commercialization of biopolymers and our businéssncial condition and results of operations wlbo be materially adversely affected.
There is the further risk that the quality of tteenercial product manufactured for us may not lxejpiable on a consistent basis.

We may not be able to obtain raw materialsin sufficient quantities or in a timely manner.

We expect that the production of our bigpwér products will require large volumes of feed&tcADM was the sole source of the
dextrose (corn sugar) that was the primary fee#tdtmcthe production of Mirel under the ADM commizdcalliance. With the termination of
that commercial alliance, we are now free to exptbe use of other feedstocks. However, we camealiqi the future availability of any
particular feedstock or be sure that we will beeablpurchase it in sufficient quantities or inmadly manner. Many of our current and
anticipated products are blends of PHA biopolymwth other materials. Processing agents, additweksother materials blended with Mirel
formulations may only be available from limited soes. If raw materials cannot be obtained in sigfitquantities or at acceptable prices,
ability to produce our products may be impaireé, ¢bst of our formulations may increase, and osirtass will be adversely affected.

Our biopolymer products may not achieve market success.

We currently have limited customer commitisefor commercial quantities of our biopolymer giwots. Some prospective customers are
currently evaluating and performing tests on owdpicts prior to making large-scale purchase datisibhe successful commercialization of
our PHA biopolymers is also dependent on our custshability to commercialize the end-products thay make from our PHA
biopolymers, which may never gain market acceptance

Market acceptance of our products will depen numerous factors, many of which are outsfdriocontrol, including among others:

. public acceptance of such products;

. our ability to produce products of consistent gyatiat offer functionality comparable or supetiorexisting or new polymer
products;

. our ability to produce products fit for theitémded purpose;

. our ability to obtain necessary regulatory appte for our products;

. the speed at which potential customers qualifiyRHA biopolymers for use in their products;

. the pricing of our products compared to competiproducts, including petroleum-based plastics;

. the strategic reaction of companies that marketpaditive products;

. our reliance on third parties who support or cdrdistribution channels; and

. general market conditions.

We currently have limited marketing, sadesl distribution experience and capabilities. Qimrie revenues will be materially dependent
upon our ability to identify and hire new employeesl augment our own resources by entering intalalision arrangements and
collaborations with third parties. If we are unatdedevelop or obtain access to sales and markatidglistribution expertise, sales of our
biopolymer products, if any, may be adversely aédc
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Other Business Risks
We may not be successful in the development of our crop-based platform or our industrial chemicals program.

We are at an early stage of developingebknology and processes to produce biobasedqdastd chemicals in plant crops, including
switchgrass, sugarcane and oilseed. Our chemigelafment efforts are also at a very early stafe.t€chnological challenges associated
with these programs are extraordinary and we map@able to overcome these challenges. Complefisnch development work will
require a significant investment of both time anahey, if it can be completed at all. In order tdamb the financial resources to complete this
work, we will rely on government funding and stgitecollaborations, which may not be available ooegptable terms, if at all.

We cannot predict the costs of producirabbsed plastics or chemicals in plant crops oruymrivg) chemicals through biological routes,
given the stage of development of these programms.ahticipated methods for manufacturing biobasastips and chemicals in crops and for
producing bio-engineered chemicals and energy igtdyhcomplex processes in which a variety of diffties may arise and there are
extensive regulatory requirements to be met. Tleeess of our industrial chemicals program will adlepend on the cost of the sugars tha
will use as feedstocks, relative to the price dfgdeum. Given these uncertainties, we may notdbe ® successfully produce biobased
plastics or chemicals in plant crops or biosourdesemicals in an economical manner.

We may rely heavily on future collaborative partners.

We may enter into strategic partnershipgeteelop and commercialize our current and futasearch and development programs with
other companies to accomplish one or more of thevitng:

. obtain capital, equipment and facilities,

. obtain funding for research and development programmoduct development programs and commerciabzactivities,
. obtain expertise in relevant markets,

. obtain access to raw materials, and/or

. obtain sales and marketing services or support.

We may not be successful in establishinguaintaining suitable partnerships, and we maybeadble to negotiate collaboration
agreements having terms satisfactory to us ol.a&alure to make or maintain these arrangemenésdelay or failure in a collaborative
partner's performance under any such arrangemeulkd bave a material adverse effect on our busiaeddinancial condition.

We face and will face substantial competition.

We face and will face substantial compaitirom a variety of companies in the biodegradateleewable resource-based plastic
segment, within which there are three distinct tedbgies: PHA, PLA and starch-based biodegradaliesbelieve that these product classes
are more complementary than competitive. Howeueah @roducts are, nonetheless, suitable for uagamge of products at a price which
may be lower than our premium priced product offgsi Companies that could be considered our cotopetnclude, but are not limited to,
Kaneka, Tianan, Tianjin and EcoMann in the PHA fitasegment, NatureWorks, Mitsui Chemical, Teijfgvamont, and Biome in PLA and
starch-based biodegradables, as well as all gith@ucers of petroleum-based plastics. Many ofdleesnpanies have longer operating
histories, greater name recognition, larger custdrases and significantly greater financial, sale$ marketing, manufacturing, distribution,
technical and other resources than Metabolix. @urpetitors may be able to adapt more quickly to neemerging technologies and char
in customer requirements. In addition, current potgntial competitors have
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established or may establish financial or strategjationships among themselves or with existingaiential customers or other third parties.
Accordingly, new competitors or alliances among petitors could emerge and rapidly acquire significaarket share. We cannot assure
you that we will be able to compete successfullgitagt current or new competito

Changesin government regulations may have an adverse effect on demand for our products.

One of the key markets for our biopolymeoducts is as compostable and biodegradable sutiestiior non-biodegradable petroleum-
based plastics. This market is driven in part byslaregulations and policies designed to encousageandate the increased use of
biodegradable alternatives to petroleum-basediptadh addition, we are in the early stage of dgpi@g plant crops for cproducing plastic
or chemicals together with biofuels. The markettfimfuels is heavily influenced by governmental $anegulations and policies mandating or
providing incentives for fuel alternatives. There aumerous companies and trade associationsgbegssively oppose these policies. The
phasing out or elimination of these or similar laavsl regulations may adversely affect the demanthéocrop-based products we are
developing and deter investment in the researchdamdlopment in such products or biofuels, whichuld@dversely affect our business.

Our products are made using genetically-engineered systems and may be, or may be perceived as being, harmful to human health or the
environment.

Mirel is a new material that has been poedlby genetically-engineered microbes using sdgeaved from genetically engineered corn
as a feedstock. Our future products may be prodincgdnetically-engineered crops or through ferragon using genetically-engineered
microbes. We may incur liability and/or legal expes if there are claims that our genetically-engiieé crops damage the environment or
contaminate other farm crops. Some countries hduptad regulations prohibiting or limiting the prmtion of genetically-engineered crops
and the sale of products made using geneticallinerged organisms. Such regulations could harnbosiness and impair our ability to
produce biobased polymers in that manner.

The subject of genetic engineering of crapd other species has received negative pubbaitiyhas aroused public debate. Government
authorities could, for social or other purposeshiit or regulate the development and use of gesibt-engineered organisms or products
made from such organisms. Social concerns couldradly affect acceptance of our products.

Our success will be influenced by the price of petroleum relative to the price of biobased feedstocks.

Our success will be influenced by the adsiur products relative to petroleum-based plasditd chemicals. The cost of petrolebaser
plastic is in part based on the price of petrolelimmdate, Mirel has been primarily manufactureschggiorn sugar, an agricultural feedstock.
ADM supplied all required agricultural feedstockpest of our strategic alliance. If the price oéupi sugar feedstocks were to increase and/or
if the price of petroleum decreases, our biobasedyzts may be less competitive relative to petnoldased plastics and chemicals may not
be competitive. A material decrease in the cosbofventional petroleum-based plastics and chemitalsrequire a reduction in the prices of
our products for them to remain attractive in therketplace or reduce the size of our addressahiketa
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We face risks associated with our international business activities.

We expect to establish international macitufidng and to expand our international commeraparations and activities. In particular, our
biopolymer resins may be obtained from supply sesimutside the U.S. and we expect that a subdtpotigon of our biopolymer sales will
be to customers in Europe. Such international lessimperations are subject to a variety of riske@ated with conducting business
internationally, including:

. economic or political instability in foreign cotries, which could impact our customers and sepglireducing customer
product orders, increasing bad debts, and potgntiatsing delays or stoppages in production;

. fluctuations in foreign exchange rates;

. pricing of raw materials in foreign countries rélatto the costs of such materials in the U.S.;

. compliance with U.S. and foreign import and exmantrol regulations and policies;

. compliance with foreign permitting, registrationdagulatory requirements with respect to manufaaguand importation of

our products and raw materials;

. the imposition of taxes, tariffs, quotas, tréderiers and restrictive trade policies;
. the possibility of inconsistent laws or regubais; and
. uncertainties relating to foreign laws and théoecement of remedies in foreign jurisdictions.

In addition, we currently have only a snsdlff located in our European office. Expansioowf European activities will require
additional resources located in Europe, as wethadgime and attention of our U.S. based managear@htechnical personnel. We do not
know the impact that these regulatory, geopolitiaad other factors may have on our internationalriess in the future.

If we lose key personnel or are unable to attract and retain necessary talent, we may be unable to develop or commercialize our products
under development.

We are highly dependent on our key techrind scientific personnel, who possess uniquemébion related to our research and
technology. If we were to lose the services of ¢hieglividuals, we may be unable to readily findabiie replacements with comparable
knowledge and experience necessary to furtherem@arch, development and commercial programs. @@gess depends largely upon the
continued service of our management and scierstiéiff and our ability to attract, retain and motévhighly skilled technical, scientific,
management, and marketing and sales personnelugeofthe unique talents and experience of mamyoscientific, engineering and
technical staff, competition for our personnelnteihse. The loss of key personnel or our inabitititire and retain personnel who have the
required expertise and skills could have a matadakrse effect on our research and developmemt®#nd our business.

We are subject to significant foreign and domestic government regulations, and compliance or failure to comply with these regulations
could harm our business.

The manufacture, use, sale and marketindig is subject to government regulations in th&. and other countries, including
requirements for government approval of food canggplications. Our plant-crop and biobased chelnpicaducts will also be subject to
government regulation in our target markets. Inuh®., the EPA administers the Toxic Substancesr8GloAct, or TSCA, which regulates the
commercial registration, distribution, and use lnémicals. A similar program exists in the EuropEaion, called REACH (Registration,
Evaluation, Authorization, and Restriction of ChealiSubstances). The use and handling of GBL itialitarget of our biobased industrial
chemicals program, is regulated by the U.S. DE/Ae Hilure to comply with governmental regulatioms®
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obtain government approval for our products coadeha material adverse effect on our results ofadjwas and financial condition.
Governmental regulation or negative publicity codéday, reduce or eliminate market demand for eadpcts which could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations arahfiral condition.

Our current and planned activities alsmlag the use of a broad range of materials thatarmay be, considered hazardous under
applicable laws and regulations. Accordingly, we subject to a number of foreign, federal, staid,lacal laws and regulations relating to
protection of the environment, the storage, uspatial of, and exposure to, hazardous materialsvastes, and health and safety.
Compliance with these laws and regulations coulddstly and could delay or even preclude commaezeitdbn of our products for certain
applications.

If we were to violate or become liable undavironmental, health and safety laws, we conddii costs, fines and civil and criminal
penalties, personal injury and third party propeid@ynage claims, or could be required to incur suttistl investigation or remediation costs.
Moreover, a failure to comply with environmentalbkacould result in the revocation of environmepeimits, which could prevent us, or our
strategic partners, from conducting business. Bnwirental laws could become more stringent over,timposing greater compliance costs
and increasing risks and penalties associatedwathtions, which could harm our business. Accogtimviolations of present and future
environmental laws could restrict our ability tgpexd facilities, pursue certain technologies, angdrequire us to acquire costly equipment,
or to incur potentially significant costs to compljth environmental regulations.

We may not have adequate insurance and may have substantial exposure to payment of product liability claims.

The testing, manufacture, marketing, ahe shour products may involve product liabilitgkis. Although we currently have product
liability insurance covering claims up to $4 milliper occurrence and in the aggregate, we mayenable to maintain this product liability
insurance at an acceptable cost, if at all. Intamdithis insurance may not provide adequate @gengainst potential losses. If claims or
losses exceed our liability insurance coverageguld have a material adverse effect on our busiaed our financial condition.

Potential future acquisitions could be difficult to integrate, divert the attention of key personnel, disrupt our business, dilute stockholder
value and impair our financial results.

As part of our business strategy, we maysicker acquisitions of companies, technologiesamsets that we believe are a strategic fit
with our business. Acquisitions involve numerowksi any of which could harm our business, inclgdin

. difficulties in integrating the operations, tediogies, existing contracts, accounting and perebof the target company and
realizing the anticipated benefits of the combibadinesses;

. diversion of financial and management resoufices existing operations;

. the price we pay or other resources that we dewatgexceed the value we realize, or the value wéddrave realized if we
had allocated the purchase price or other resotwcaisother opportunity;

. potential loss of key employees, collaborators strategic alliances from either our current bussrasthe acquired business;
. assumption of unanticipated problems or latentlltés; and
. inability to generate sufficient revenue to offaetuisition costs.
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Acquisitions also frequently result in treeording of goodwill and other intangible asseksch are subject to potential impairments in
the future that could harm our financial resultsatidition, if we finance acquisitions by issuirapeertible debt or equity securities, our
existing stockholders' ownership interest may teteti, which could lower the market price of ourrooon stock. As a result, if we fail to
properly evaluate acquisitions or investments, vag mot achieve the anticipated benefits of any swtjuisitions, and we may incur costs in
excess of what we anticipate. The failure to sufodly evaluate and execute acquisitions or invesiis or otherwise adequately address
risks could materially harm our business and firgmesults.

Risks Relating to Intellectual Property
Intellectual property protection for our productsisimportant and uncertain.

Our commercial success will depend in parbur obtaining and maintaining patent, tradeetesond trademark protection of our
technologies in the United States and other justaahs, as well as successfully enforcing thislietdéual property and defending this
intellectual property against third-party challesgk particular, we place considerable emphasishdaining patent protection for significant
new technologies, products and processes in theedUBitates and in foreign jurisdictions where wanpb use such technologies.

Our patent position involves complex legiadl factual questions. Accordingly, we cannot potettie breadth of claims that may be
allowed or enforced in our patents or in third-paratents. Patents may not be issued for any pegradifuture pending patent applications
owned by or licensed to us, and claims allowed uadg issued patent or future issued patent owndidemsed by us may not be valid or
sufficiently broad to protect our technologies. Elaver, we may be unable to protect certain of ot@ilectual property in the United States
in foreign countries, and there will be many coigstin which we will choose not to file or maintgiatents because of the costs involved.
Foreign jurisdictions may not afford the same prttms as U.S. law, and we cannot ensure thatgorneatent applications will have the same
scope as the U.S. patents. Additionally, any isqsdnts owned by or licensed to us now or in tieré may be challenged, invalidated, or
circumvented, and the rights under such patentsrmoagrovide us with competitive advantages. Coitgrstmay also design around our
technology or develop competing technologies.

We could incur substantial costs to brinigssor other proceedings in which we may asserpatent rights against others or defend
ourselves in suits brought against us. An unfaverabitcome of any such litigation could have a matadverse effect on our business and
results of operations.

If we are not able to defend the patentamte secret protection position of our technolsgiken we will not be able to exclude
competitors from developing or marketing competghnologies, and we may not generate enough resgmm product sales to justify the
cost of development of our technologies and toea@hbr maintain profitability.

We also rely on trademarks to establishagket identity for our products. We may not obtagistrations for our pending or future
trademark applications, and there will be many ¢aes in which we will choose not to file trademadgistration applications because of the
costs of filing and prosecuting such applicatidasforcing or defending our registered and unreggstérademarks might result in significant
litigation costs and damages, including the ingbtld continue using certain trademarks. In thenétieat we are unable to continue using
certain trademarks, we may be forced to rebrangpmducts, which could result in the loss of braacbgnition, and could require us to
devote resources to advertise and market brands.
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A substantial portion of the technology used in our businessis or may be owned by or subject to retained rights of third parties.

Some of our intellectual property rightv@deen licensed from academic institutions. Tlaelamic institutions generally have the right
to terminate our license in the event that wettaihake required payments or otherwise breachghbicable agreements. We also have, and
expect to have in the future, research and devedopagreements with academic institutions that dewelop intellectual property. The
academic institutions generally retain rights abertechnology for use in certain fields. Even tifothe rights of the academic institutions
generally limited to the noncommercial academic msgarch fields, they may obtain rights to comima#lycexploit developed intellectual
property in limited instances. Furthermore, ouhtigto intellectual property developed under reseand development agreements with
academic institutions are not always certain, aag be in the form of an option to obtain licenghts to such intellectual property. If we fail
to exercise our option rights timely and/or we anable to negotiate a license agreement, the adadestitution may offer a license to the
developed intellectual property to third partiesdommercial purposes. Any such commercial expioitecould adversely affect our
competitive position and have a material adverfeeebn our business.

Some of our patents may cover inventioas Were conceived or first reduced to practice ynatein connection with, government
contracts or other federal funding agreements.giivernment may retain rights that could have aifsagmt impact on the commercial value
of the developed intellectual property.

Our employees, consultants, collaboratmrstomers and vendors who use our information aaiénials may develop new intellectual
property relating to our products and technologi¥s.generally enter into agreements with such perpooviding that inventions conceived
by them in the course of rendering services to il our exclusive property or that we will hatie option to license such rights. However,
these agreements may not be honored and may ectieffly assign intellectual property rights to Egforcing a claim that a party illegally
obtained intellectual property rights is difficudtxpensive and time consuming and the outcomeggedittable. The failure to obtain such
rights for Metabolix or to prevent others from dhtag such rights could adversely affect our coritjvet position.

Third parties may claim that we infringe their intellectual property, and we could suffer significant litigation or licensing expense as a
result.

Various U.S. and foreign issued patentsmerdling patent applications owned by third pamidst in areas relevant to our products and
processes. Such third parties may claim that wenipé their patents. For example, we are awar@wipetitors with patents relating to
biobased plastics. Such competitors may allegewthanfringe these patents. There could also betiegi patents of which we are not aware
that our technologies may inadvertently infringeatldition, because patent applications are maiediain secrecy for a period of time after
they are filed, there may be currently pending @ptibns, unknown to us, which may later resulssued patents that our technologies may
infringe. If third parties assert claims againstlleging that we infringe their patents or otheellectual property rights, we could incur
substantial costs and diversion of management ressin defending these claims, and the defent#eesé claims could have a material
adverse effect on our business. In addition, ifdtipiarties assert claims against us and we arecoessful in defending against these claims,
these third parties may be awarded substantial despas well as injunctive or other equitable falgainst us, which could effectively block
our ability to make, use, sell, distribute, or medrgur products and services in the United Statedmad. We cannot currently predict
whether a third party will assert a claim agairstar pursue infringement litigation against us; can we predict the ultimate outcome of any
such potential claims or litigation.
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In the event that a claim relating to itgelual property is asserted against us, or thantigs not affiliated with us hold pending or issue
patents that relate to our products or technolagymay seek licenses to such intellectual propmrghallenge those patents. However, we
may be unable to obtain these licenses on acceptatohs, if at all, and our challenge of the paenay be unsuccessful. Our failure to obtain
the necessary licenses or other rights could ptatersale, manufacture, or distribution of somewfproducts and, therefore, could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

Werely in part on trade secretsto protect our technology, and our failureto obtain or maintain trade secret protection could limit our
ability to compete.

We rely on trade secrets to protect somzuotechnology and proprietary information, espigiwhere we believe patent protection is
not appropriate or obtainable. However, trade seeme difficult to protect. We vigorously pursuenfidentiality agreements and contractual
provisions with our collaborators, potential cusers) employees, and consultants to protect oue sadrets and proprietary know-how.
These agreements may be breached and we may reoadlaguate remedies for such breach. While weeas®mnable efforts to protect our
trade secrets, our employees, consultants, coatsagt scientific and other advisors, our potertigtomers, or our strategic partners may
unintentionally or willfully disclose our proprigtainformation to competitors. If we were to enfera claim that a third party had illegally
obtained and was using our trade secrets, our@fent efforts would be expensive and time consgy@nd the outcome would be
unpredictable. In addition, courts outside the EthiStates are sometimes unwilling to protect tsmheets. Moreover, if our competitors
independently develop equivalent knowledge, metlaadisknow-how, it will be more difficult for us #nforce our rights and our business
could be harmed.

Risks Relating to Owning our Common Stock

An active trading market for our common stock may not be available on a consistent basis to provide stockholders with adequate liquidity.
Our stock price may be extremely volatile, and our stockholders could lose a significant part of their investment.

An active trading market for shares of common stock may not be sustained on a consistesig.bThe public trading price for our
common stock will be affected by a number of fagtamcluding:

. reported progress of our business and technologgigigment, relative to investor expectations;

. changes in earnings estimates, investors' peresptiecommendations by securities analysts orailuré to achieve analysts
earnings estimates;

. quarterly variations in our or our competitoesults of operations;

. general_ market conditions and other factorslated to our operating performance or the opergigrgormance of our
competitors;

. future sales of our common stock;

. future issuance and/or sale of preferred stock;

. announcements by us, or our competitors, of adgprsi, new products, significant contracts, comnarelationships or

capital commitments;

. commencement of, or involvement in, litigation;

. any major change in our board of directors onagement;

. changes in governmental regulations or in th&ustof our regulatory approvals;

. announcements related to patents issued to us @oopetitors and to litigation involving our inettual property;
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. a lack of, limited, or negative industry or secugnhalyst coverage;
. developments in our industry and general econoumglitions; and
. the other factors described elsewhere in these&k'Rastors."

As a result of these factors, our stockbrddnay not be able to resell their shares athove their purchase price. In addition, the stock
prices of many technology companies have expertendge fluctuations that have often been unrelébetie operating performance of those
companies. The valuations of many biotechnologymames without consistent product revenues andregiare extraordinarily high based
on conventional valuation standards, such as poiearnings and price to sales ratios. These tygulices and valuations may not be
sustained. Any negative change in the public'sqpien of the prospects of biotechnology compao@gd depress our stock price regardless
of our results of operations. These factors mayelamaterial adverse effect on the market pricgiocommon stock.

Our financial results may vary significantly from period to period which may reduce our stock price.

Our financial results may fluctuate assuteof a number of factors, many of which are me®of our control, which may cause the
market price of our common stock to fall. For thes@sons, comparing our operating results on ageoi period basis may not be
meaningful, and you should not rely on our paatltess an indication of our future performancer fhancial results may be negatively
affected by any of the risk factors listed in tH&sk Factors" section and, in particular, thedoling risks:

. failure to produce commercialized products or talftustomers for these products;
. the unpredictability of government funding for soofeur programs;

. failure to estimate or control costs;

. difficulties in collecting payments due from tmsers or licensees;

. adverse judgments or settlements in legal desput

. expenses related to acquisitions, mergers ot y@ntures; and

. other one-time financial charges.

Provisionsin our certificate of incorporation and by-laws and Delaware law and our shareholder rights plan might discourage, delay or
prevent a change of control of our company or changesin our management and, therefore, depress the trading price of our common stock.

Provisions of our certificate of incorpaoat and by-laws and Delaware law may discourageyds prevent a merger, acquisition or
other change in control that stockholders may amrdiavorable, including transactions in which stackholders might otherwise receive a
premium for their shares of our common stock. Thesgisions may also prevent or frustrate atterbgteur stockholders to replace or
remove our management.

We have adopted a shareholder rights penpurpose of which is, among other things, tcaeck our Board's ability to protect
shareholder interests and to ensure that shareghalgeeive fair treatment in the event any coertakeover attempt of the Company is made
in the future. The adoption of the plan was intehdie part, to address the risk that a third padyld acquire our Company at a price that
not reflect the full value of our business and fehnologies. The shareholder rights plan couldeniakore difficult for a third party to
acquire, or could discourage a third party fromuagiag, our Company or a large block of our Compampmmon stock.

In addition, Section 203 of the Delawaren&@al Corporation Law prohibits a publicly-held Bwhre corporation from engaging in a
business combination with an interested stockhplder
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generally a person which together with its affésbwns, or within the last three years has owh®&¥, of our voting stock, for a period of
three years after the date of the transaction iiclwtihe person became an interested stockholdEssithe business combination is approved
in a prescribed manner.

The existence of the foregoing provisiond anti-takeover measures could limit the pricé itmeestors might be willing to pay in the
future for shares of our common stock. They coldd deter potential acquirers of our Company, thereducing the likelihood that our
stockholders could receive a premium for their camrstock in an acquisition.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We do not own any real property. We cutieleiase approximately 28,000 square feet of offiod research and development space
Erie Street, Cambridge, Massachusetts. Our leaghifofacility expires in May 2014, with the optido renew for two additional five year
periods. We also lease approximately 13,700 scfeeteof office and laboratory space at 650 Suffstieet, Lowell, Massachusetts where the
majority of our general and administrative emplayaee located. Our lease for this facility expireMay 2014. Our wholly-owned
subsidiary, Metabolix GmbH ("GMBH"), leases approately 2,500 square feet of office space in Colp@ermany. The lease has a
termination provision that allows the GMBH to ehe fease at a fiscal quarter end with a six monttta period. Our wholly-owned
subsidiary, Metabolix Oilseeds, Inc. ("MOI"), loedtin Saskatoon, Saskatchewan, Canada, leasexiappiely 3,300 square feet of office,
laboratory and greenhouse space. MOI's leasebdeeffacilities expire in August 2013.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On February 17, 2012, a purported sharehaldss action, Hilary Coyne v. Metabolix, Incictrard P. Eno, and Joseph Hill, Civil
Action 1:12-cv-10318 (the "class action"), wasdila the United States District Court for the Digtof Massachusetts, naming the Company
and certain officers of the Company as defendditits.class action alleges that the Company maderialat@srepresentations and/or
omissions of material fact in the Company's disales during the period from March 10, 2010 throitgldanuary 12, 2012 press release
announcing that ADM had given notice of terminatadrihe Telles joint venture for PHA biopolymerd,ia violation of Sections 10(b) and
20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act and Rule 10bRg class action seeks certification as a cletssra compensatory damages in an
unspecified amount, plaintiff's costs and attorhéses, and unspecified equitable or injunctivéefelhe plaintiff filed an amended compla
on October 15, 2012 that supersedes the initialptaim and demands identical relief based on sukisthy similar allegations. On
December 14, 2012, the defendants filed a motiatigmiss the amended complaint, which plaintiffpaged, and on which the court has not
yet ruled.

On March 7, 2012, a purported derivatiwedait, Childs v. Kouba et al., Civil Action 12-08%the "derivative action™), was filed in
Massachusetts Superior Court for Middlesex Coumtyhehalf of the Company against members of thefaoyls Board of Directors for
alleged breaches of their fiduciary duties and tasea nearly identical set of alleged facts asétasserted in the class action. The derivative
action seeks compensatory damages in an unspeaifiednt, plaintiff's costs and attorneys' fees, @ampecified equitable or injunctive
relief. The parties in the derivative action filedd the court granted a joint motion to stay thévdéve action until after resolution of the
anticipated motion to dismiss in the class action.

We are currently unable to assess the pilitysof loss or estimate a range of potentiakla$ any, associated with these matters because
they are at an early stage.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ@Mal Market under the symbol "MBLX." The followirigble sets forth, for the period
indicated, the high and low sales prices for oumegmn stock, as reported by the NASDAQ Global Marf@tour two most recent fiscal
years:

Common Stock Price

2012 2011
High Low High Low
First Quartel $ 6.1C $ 234 $ 12.7¢ $ 7.77
Second Quarte 3.2C 1.8C 10.9¢ 6.5(C
Third Quartel 2.32 1.32 7.74 4.0¢
Fourth Quarte 2.1¢ 1.07 5.54 3.2¢

The close price of our common stock, asnegl by the NASDAQ Global Market, was $2.04 on &he22, 2013.
Stockholders

As of March 22, 2013, there were 34,365,&24res of our common stock outstanding held bgtdékholders of record.
Dividends

We have never declared or paid any casdetids on our capital stock and do not expect yoang cash dividends for the foreseeable
future. We intend to use future earnings, if anythie operation and expansion of our business.fAtuye determination relating to our
dividend policy will be made at the discretion afrdoard of directors, based on our financial ctonj results of operations, contractual
restrictions, capital requirements, business ptagsmrestrictions imposed by applicable law arfteofactors our board of directors may de
relevant.

Equity Compensation Plan Information
Please see Part Ill, Item 12, for informatiegarding securities authorized for issuancesundr equity compensation plans.
Unregistered Sales of Securities

On October 4, 2012, the Company issuedd®6sBares of common stock to participants in it¢aidelix, Inc. 401(k) Plan as a matching
contribution. The issuance of these securitiexégpt from registration pursuant to Section 3(apf2he Securities Act of 1933 as excluded
securities.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

During the quarter ended December 31, 20iE2e were no repurchases made by us or on oaifpehby any "affiliated purchasers," of
shares of our common stock.

Stock Performance Graph

This graph compares the percentage changeniulative total stockholder return (change atktprice plus reinvested dividends) on
common stock with the cumulative total return foe t
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NASDAQ Composite Index and the NASDAQ Biotechnolaggex for the periods set below. This graph assua®100 investment in o
common stock at a closing price of $23.80 per sbharBecember 31, 2007. The comparisons in the graphot intended to forecast or be
indicative of possible future performance of oumooon stock.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Metabolix, Inc., the NASDAQ Composite Indexd the NASDAQ Biotechnology Index

3180 -
%160
2140
%120
2100
580
$60
540
520 -
$n L L 1 1
12/07 12/08 12/09 1210 12Mm 1212
—H— Metabollx, Inc. — % — NASDAG Composite -==-f3--- NASDAQ Biotechnology
* $100 invested on 12/31/07 in stock or index, intigdeinvestment of dividends.
Year ended December 31
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Metabolix,
Inc . $ 100.0( $ 534t $ 4647 $ 51.1: $ 19.12 $ 6.22
NASDAQ
Composite 100.0¢ 59.1( 82.1¢ 97.2: 98.8¢ 110.91
NASDAQ

Biotechnolc 100.0( 93.4( 103.1¢ 113.8¢ 129.1: 163.3¢
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected condensed consolidated statevhieperations data for the years ended DeceBibe2012, 2011, and 2010 and balance
sheet data as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 hawedeeived from our consolidated financial statetmend related notes, which are
included elsewhere in this report, and have bednediby PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an indepenggrgtered public accounting firm,
indicated in their report. The selected condensedalidated statement of operations data for tlaesyended December 31, 2009 and 2008
and the balance sheet data as of December 31, 2009,and 2008 have been derived from our auditeedial statements that are not
included in this report. The selected financiabdsdt forth below should be read in conjunctiorheir financial statements, the related notes
and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fied@ondition and Results of Operations" includése@here in this report. The
historical results are not necessarily indicatif’¢he results to be expected for any future period.

Year ended December 31
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands, except share and per share dat

Statement of

operations

data:
Total revenue $ 42,31¢1) $ 1,42 $ 44t $ 1,428 $ 1,55¢
Costs and

expenses
Cost of product

revenue 1,42¢ — — — —
Research and

development

expense: 23,17% 24,44t 23,67 24,47 24,667
Selling, general

and

administrative

expense: 14,11( 15,84 15,71« 15,68 15,78(

Total costs and

expense: 38,718 40,28¢ 39,38’ 40,15¢ 40,44
Income (loss)

from operation 3,60: (38,86 (38,939 (38,729 (38,897
Other income, ne 27 76 13€ 772 2,88
Net income (loss $ 3,630 % (38,78Y) $ (38,809 $ (37,95) $ (36,005

Net income (loss

per share, bas $ 011 $ (1.29) $ (1.45) $ (1.62) $ (1.5¢)
Net income (loss

per share,

diluted $ 011 $ 1.29 $ (1.45) $ (1.62) $ (1.5¢)
Number of share

used in per

share

calculations,

basic 34,217,29 31,257,37 26,773,75 23,435,26 22,839,91
Number of share

used in per

share

calculations,

diluted 34,279,77 31,257,37 26,773,75 23,435,26 22,839,91

Q) In 2012, we recognized $38,885 of deferred reversseciated with the termination of our commerdiarce with
Archer Daniels Midland Compan
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Year ended December 31
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)

Balance Sheet Information:
Cash, cash equivalents and

shor-term investment $ 4377 $ 76,85 $ 61574 $ 92,20: $ 91,09¢
Total asset 53,51( 82,91: 66,77 97,55¢ 96,94¢
Long-term deferred revent — 35,944 36,20% 37,29¢ 32,44(
Other lon¢-term obligations 18¢€ 34C 492 64¢ 80t
Total liabilities 6,17( 43,44¢ 43,09t 42,51( 37,85¢
Accumulated defici (242,03)  (245,66) (206,87) (168,079  (130,11)
Total stockholders' equi 47,34( 39,46: 23,67¢ 55,04« 59,09:

ITEM 7. MANA GEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDIT ION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should belrieaconjunction with the Consolidated Financiaatéments and Notes thereto
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

All dollar amounts are stated in thousands.
Overview

Metabolix is an innovation-driven biosciemmompany focused on delivering sustainable saistio the plastics, chemicals and energy
industries. We have core capabilities in microbiahetics, fermentation process engineering, chémiganeering, polymer science, plant
genetics and botanical science, and we have asséititdse capabilities in a way that has allowei irstegrate our biotechnology research
with real world chemical engineering and industpedctice. In addition, we have created an extenisitellectual property portfolio to protect
our innovations and, together with our technoldgyserve as a valuable foundation for future ingustllaborations.

The markets for petroleum-based plastiesndcals and fuels are among the largest in theagleconomy. Issues associated with the
prolonged use of petroleum-based products incllagtip waste management and pollution, limitedifdasl availability and price volatility,
and global warming and climate change. We belibaed substantial global market opportunity existdevelop and commercialize our
technology to produce sustainable, renewable atimes to petroleum-based products including adediiopolymers, biobased industrial
chemicals and bioenergy.

Metabolix was formed to leverage the apitit natural systems to produce complex biopolynfrens renewable resources. We have
focused on a family of biopolymers found in natoadled polyhydroxyalkanoates, or ("PHAS"), whictcocnaturally in living organisms and
are chemically similar to polyesters. We have destrated the production of PHAs at the industriales¢o produce PHA biopolymers and
biobased industrial chemicals, as well as prodnaioPHB, a subclass of PHA biopolymer, in agriatdlly significant crop plants.

From 2004 through 2011, we developed amgdeommercialization of our PHA biopolymers throwgtechnology alliance and
subsequent commercial alliance with a whallyned subsidiary of Archer Daniels Midland Comp&®DM"), one of the largest agricultur
processors in the world. Under the commercial adéa ADM was responsible for resin manufacturimygl Metabolix was primarily
responsible for product development, compoundirgrketing and sales. Through this alliance, the corgs established a joint venture
company, Telles, LLC ("Telles"), to commercialized /& biopolymer products. ADM completed constructimfithe initial phase of its
commercial manufacturing facility, which began protion of biopolymers for the joint venture in 20T®lles conducted significant product
and commercial development activities with potdrtisstomers,
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marketed and sold product to customers under daetrames Mirel™ and Mvera™, and developed a netefdokisiness partners and
distributors before ADM terminated the commerciibace early in 2012.

In 2012, our objective was to advance kessrdiscussions with third parties with the goasifiblishing a new commercial model for
our PHA biopolymers, to work closely with our cangstomers to provide product from existing invepntduring the transition phase and
ensure ongoing development of PHA biopolymer prégjuo narrow our market development focus to higllne market segments as the
foundation to successfully build the business, tangstablish a new manufacturing and supply cheiopexly sized to our business.

After termination of the Telles joint vernguwe retained significant rights and assets @ssatwith the PHA biopolymers business
consistent with our intent to launch the businessgia new commercial model, continuing businessatjons, marketing biopolymer
products, and identifying alternate manufacturiagability. We hold exclusive rights to the Metakdkchnology and intellectual property
used in the joint venture. We acquired all of T@#igproduct inventory and compounding raw matet@tding more than 5 million pounds,
product certifications and all product trademarididing MirelTM and MveraTM, and we retained alHunded pilot plant equipment in
locations outside of the Commercial Manufacturirgikty in Clinton, lowa. We have no obligationsdan the ledger account totaling
$433 million which was funded by ADM to construsetCommercial Manufacturing Facility and to providerking capital to Telles.

Through Telles, we learned extremely vale@iformation about how customers and brand owasrsenvisioning the use of PHA
biopolymers in their products. Based on these autigrns, we remain confident that Metabolix biopoérs provide an important solution to
those wishing to reduce dependence on petrolewduceeplastic waste in the environment, and utiiee solutions to meet sustainable
packaging goals. We have demonstrated that ouolyiogers, marketed under the Mirel and Mvera braslare the physical properties of
petroleum-based resins for performance and dutyhitid can be processed using existing equipmehpast-processing techniques. The
difference is that Metabolix biopolymers displayigure biodegradability properties. Mirel is certdfieo biodegrade in soil and water
environments, as well as home composting and indusbmposting facilities (in areas where suchlifées are available). Mvera is a
certified compostable film grade biopolymer intedder industrial composting.

After termination of the ADM commercialialhice in early 2012, we restructured the biopolsimrsiness retaining a core team in our
biopolymers group to provide continuity with techogy, manufacturing process, and markets. Durint2@e established Metabolix Gmk
a subsidiary located in Cologne, Germany to sesva facal point for our commercial activities inrBpe. This cost effective location is
intended to enable us to directly access the Earopgarket, which is the largest for bioplastics. &l took steps toward establishing a new
commercial model for our PHA biopolymers busin&¥e. worked closely with our core customers to sugpbduct from existing inventory
as a bridge to new supply. We evaluated the patleayiplications for our biopolymer products androaed our market development focus to
three high value market segments (i) film and bagieations, (i) performance additives, and (fiijpctional biodegradation. In March 2012,
we began directly booking product sales and shgppioduct from inventory to our customers. Durihg second half of the year, we
developed, sampled and launched two new producterdyB5008, a compostable film grade, and 160Qdglgmeric modifier for polyvinyl
chloride ("PVC"). In addition, we signed an agreaifer demonstration production with Antibiotico$\ Sa toll manufacturer, based in Leon,
Spain.

During 2013, we expect to continue to udstig inventory to continue to develop the markedt to supply new and existing customers.
We continue to explore alternative options to dighta new biopolymer manufacturing and supply shabperly sized to our business.
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For our second platform, we are develo@dgand C3 chemicals from biobased sources, ndb#sd fuels that are currently used to
produce most industrial chemicals today. Our predescreating biobased industrial C4 and C3 chalsimvolves engineering metabolic
pathways into microbes that, in a fermentation ess¢ produce specific PHA structures that serygexirsors for the chemicals. Through
PHA technology, we are able to control the micrblmdogy to achieve high concentrations of specifigurally-occurring PHA that
accumulate inside cells as they metabolize su@ais.intracellular accumulation of the biopolymerside the microbes is a unique and
differentiating aspect of our technology. When fém@nentation is completed, we use a novel inteyrddiveloped recovery process known as
"FAST" (fast-acting, selective thermolysis) thaheerts the biopolymer to the target chemical usiegt.

During 2009, we completed all work under OuS. Department of Commerce National Institut&t#ndards and Technology grant, a
$2 million grant aimed at producing C4 chemicatsrfrrenewable sources. We were able to achieve #iledechnical milestones outlined in
this grant. In 2010, we continued to scale up oicBemicals technology and continued efforts omibal recovery and purification. We
made progress toward production of biobased gamuhadiactone ("GBL") samples for shipment to poigihtustomers and we expanded
exploratory partnership discussions.

In 2011, we entered into a joint developtregreement with CJ CheilJedang ("CJ") to contitmuadvance and refine our production
technology and assess investment options for threrercialization of biobased C4 chemicals via fertagon. During this agreement, we
developed a detailed market and economic analysisiming all aspects of an investment to commerediiobased C4 chemicals.

In the C4 program, we have produced GBihddstrial scale and demonstrated a chemical prifidit meets or exceeds the existing
industrial specifications. In 2012, we completee pineliminary design for a commercial scale plargriable production of biobased GBL ¢
through an established conversion process, butaln@BDO"). This plan, which could be implementedder a potential future collaboration,
includes specifications for all of the componerftsur fermentation and recovery process. In cortjonawvith our technical progress, we
expect to continue discussions with industry leadéth the goal of forming the industry alliancescassary to successfully bring our biobi
C4 industrial chemicals, including GBL and BDO amtommercial production.

We believe that developing and commerdiadibiobased C3 chemicals could represent anottracive market for our technology. In
2011, we undertook a market analysis of the glafeket for acrylic acid, a C3 chemical, to asskesnarket participants, renewable
technology competition, economics, intellectualpgendy status, and end markets.

In 2012, we continued scale up of fermeénte&nd optimization of microbial strains to produziobased C3 chemicals. We also
successfully scaled-up recovery of acrylic acidrfrdried biomass using the "FAST" process in our Riéaige laboratory. We also provided
sample quantities of dried biomass for conversiobiobased acrylic acid for customer evaluation.Wlkeve that strategic alliances will be
required to commercialize C3 chemicals, and in 20d8expect to continue to engage in partnerstapudisions.

In our third technology platform, we areriessing the renewable nature of plants to makgdstcs, renewable chemicals and
bioenergy from crops. The focal point of our pleghnology efforts is around polyhydroxybutyratélB), the simplest member of the broad
polyhydroxyalkanoate (PHA) family of biopolymers.hiéé applications for PHAs have focused mainly logitt use as biodegradable
bioplastics, these polymers have a number of athigue features that will allow their use in otaeplications, such as the production of
chemical intermediates and their use as value-addiedal feeds. We are creating proprietary systenpsoduce PHB in high quantity in the
leaves of biomass crops or seeds of oilseed cayghdse multiple applications.
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Our work in crops highlights our leadinggectapabilities and research targeting multi-gesqpeession and transformation of plants.
Researchers at Metabolix have designed novel, 1geite expression systems to increase producti®8fin plant tissue. The science
behind this shift in metabolism is complex since gloal is to significantly increase production éf8°to be viable at industrial scale without
impairing the ability of the plant to thrive in itmtural environment. Using tobacco as a demoimtraystem for proof of concept, our
researchers have published results demonstratgthduction of high levels of PHB, up to 18%eaaves and 9% in the biomass of the
entire tobacco plant, can be achieved. In additidiebacco, we are developing different genetidreggying systems for different plant crops
including switchgrass, oilseeds and sugarcane.

In 2011, Metabolix was awarded a $6 millgmant by the U.S. Department of Energy ("DOE"gtmineer switchgrass producing
10 percent PHB, by weight, in the whole plant amdé@velop methods to thermally convert the PHB-a@imiig biomass to crotonic acid and a
higher density residual biomass fraction for praaucof bioenergy. Crotonic acid is a platform chiemhthat can be readily converted thro
simple, known chemical conversion steps to a rafigemmodity chemical intermediates including prieme, butanol and maleic anhydride.

In 2012, Metabolix was awarded three neanty for leading-edge crop research targeting rgeltie expression and transformation of
plants including important biofuel and food cropanding from these three grants is expected td apiaroximately $1.0 million and will run
through 2014.

In 2013, we expect to continue to advamsearch under our grants, focused on increasinggbtiBiction in switchgrass and develoy
a thermal conversion process for crotonic acid.iiéy also seek to establish alliances with partttecemmercially exploit this platform. We
are in the process of capturing intellectual progpgained in our work in crops and will be evaluagtihe possibilities of monetizing that
intellectual property.

We are developing an extensive portfoliandéllectual property covering our inventions iog-based technology and have been
awarded more than 30 patents in this area to thaseldition, Metabolix researchers and academilabofators have published our research
results in peer reviewed scientific journals.

We have incurred significant losses singeinception. As of December 31, 2012, our accutedl@eficit from inception to date was
$242,032 and total stockholders' equity was $47,8¥@recognized net income of $3,630 in 2012, artdasses of $38,785 and $38,803 in
2011, and 2010, respectively.

Collaborative Arrangements

We are not currently participating in amjl@borative arrangements. Our historical strategycollaborative arrangements has been to
retain substantial participation in the future emmic value of our technology while receiving cutreash payments to offset research and
development costs and working capital needs. By tadure, our collaborative agreements have beempéex, containing multiple elements
covering a variety of present and future activities

ADM Collaboration

From 2004 through 2011, we developed amgateommercialization of our PHA biopolymers thrbwgtechnology alliance and
subsequent commercial alliance with ADM Polymerpooation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ADM, onetbé largest agricultural
processors in the world. The Commercial Alliancadgnent between Metabolix and ADM Polymer speciffeddterms and structure of the
alliance. The agreement governed the activitiesadoigations of the parties to commercialize PHAgdulymers, which have been marketed
under the brand names Mirel™ and Mvera™. Theseitiet included the establishment of a joint veatoompany, Telles, LLC ("Telles"),
market and sell PHA biopolymers, the constructiba manufacturing facility capable of producing
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110 million pounds of material annually (the "Commial Manufacturing Facility"), the licensing ofdienologyto Telles and to ADM, and tl
conducting of various research, development, matwuifilag, sales and marketing, compounding and aditrétive services by the parties.

Telles was formed to: (i) serve as the camumal entity to establish and develop the comna¢roiarket for PHA biopolymers, and
conduct the marketing and sales in accordancethétlyoals of the commercial alliance, (ii) assisthe coordination and integration of the
manufacturing, compounding and marketing activjte® (iii) administer and account for financialttees on behalf of the parties. Metabolix
and ADM each had a 50 percent ownership and vatitegest in Telles.

Under the Commercial Alliance Agreement ADMs permitted, under limited circumstances, tmieate the alliance if a change in
circumstances that was not reasonably within timérobof ADM made the anticipated financial retdrom the project inadequate or too
uncertain. The agreement provided that, upon teatioin by ADM due to a change in circumstances, Bi@ia would be permitted to
continue to produce and sell PHA biopolymers, amivAwould be required to perform manufacturing seesgi for the Company for a period
of time following the termination (subject to centpayment obligations to ADM). On January 9, 204PM notified us that it was
terminating the commercial alliance effective Felyu8, 2012. ADM had undertaken a strategic rexaéws business investments and
activities and made the decision to focus resouratside of Telles. As the basis for the decis®BM indicated to us that the projected
financial returns from the alliance were too unaiert

The Commercial Alliance Agreement with ADidhited the rights of both ADM and Metabolix to wowith other parties or alone in
developing or commercializing certain PHAs produttedugh fermentation. These exclusivity obligati@nded upon termination of the
alliance. Also, upon termination of the alliancegtisbolix intellectual property licenses to ADM Polgr and Telles ended, with Metabolix
retaining all rights to its intellectual properDM retained its Commercial Manufacturing Facilibcated in Clinton, lowa, previously used
to produce PHA biopolymers for Telles.

Under the Technology Alliance and Optiorrédgment and Commercial Alliance Agreement, varfmagnents were made to Metabolix
by ADM as shown in the table below. All of these/pants were recorded as deferred revenue on the&uyis balance sheet and were
expected to be recognized on a straight line lwass a period of approximately ten years in whicatébolix would fulfill its contractual
obligations during the Commercial Phase of the Cencial Alliance Agreement.

Upfront paymen $ 3,00(
Milestone payment 2,00(¢
Support payment 22,05(
Cost sharing payments for pre-commercial manufaxgyslant

construction and operatio 11,83t
Total $ 38,88t

The Company had no further performancegalilbns in connection with the commercial alliaaéter its termination, and as a result, the
entire $38,885 of deferred revenue was recognigettido Company during its fiscal quarter ended M&th2012.

After termination of the Commercial Alliamé&\greement, the parties entered into a Settledgrdement in which the parties agreed to
specific terms related to the winding up and dissoh of Telles. Under this Settlement Agreemerd,purchased certain assets of the joint
venture for $2,982 including Telles's entire inwegt exclusive and perpetual rights to all of Te€kerademarks, and all product registrations,
certifications and approvals for Telles's PHA bilgpeers. Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, ABlguished any claims with respect
to certain co-funded equipment
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previously acquired by Metabolix and situated atteons other than the Clinton, lowa Commercial Manturing Facility, and Metabolix a
Telles waived any rights to post-termination mantifeing and fermentation services under the ComialeAdiance Agreement.

Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, $glied to ADM an amount equal to the aggregate bakinces of Telles totaling $3,778 on
the date of the Settlement Agreement, minus $1@0ned by Telles to settle any remaining tradegattions. The remaining trade obligations
of Telles at the date of execution of the Settlendgreement did not exceed $100. In the eventAlaY is required to repay to Telles or to
pay to any creditor of Telles any amounts incluthethe $2,982 purchase price or the $3,678 diseibto ADM by Telles pursuant to the
Settlement Agreement, Metabolix is obligated tontmirse ADM in an amount equal to 50% of such paysgmovided that in no event
would the amount to be so paid by Metabolix exdbedotal of the $2,982 purchase price and the/@3J@lles cash required to be so repaid
or reimbursed by ADM. In February 2013, ADM notdies that Telles had been formally dissolved aati b third party creditor trade
obligations had been paid. As a result, we beltkaewe are no longer contingently liable for ahniyd party obligations stemming from our
former ADM collaboration.

Government Grants

As of December 31, 2012, expected grossgats of $5,084 remain to be received under ourdh& Canadian government grants,
which include amounts for reimbursement to our sab@ctors, as well as reimbursement for our engdeytime, benefits and other expel
related to performance under the grants.
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The status of our United States and Canagti@ernment grants is as follows:

Total Remaining
received amount
Total through available as of  Contract/Grant
Funding Government December 31, December 31,
Program Title Agency Funds 2012 2012 Expiration
Renewable Enhanced
Feedstocks For
Advanced Biofuels Anc Department
Bioproducts of Energy $ 6,000 $ 1,99 $ 4,00¢ June 201:
Subcontract from
University of California
(Los Angeles) project
funded by ARPA-E
entitled "Plants
Engineered to Replace
Oil: Energy Plant Department September
Design" of Energy 56€ — 56€ 2014
Capacity Building for National
Commercial-Scale PHI Research
Camelina Developmen Council
Canade 261 10 251 March 2014
Subcontract from
University of
Massachusetts
(Amherst) project
funded by ARPA-E
entitled "Development
of a Dedicated High Department
Value Biofuels Crop' of Energy 25¢ 114 14t June 201:
Advanced Technologies Canadian
For Engineering Of Ministry of February
Camelina Agriculture 20% 184 21 2013
Blow Molded Bioproduct: Department
From Renewable of August
Plastics Agriculture 34¢ 34¢ — 2012
Development of a
Sustainable Value National
Added Fish Feed Usini Research
PHB Producing Council
Camelina Canade 95 — 95 March 2014
Total $ 7,73 $ 2,651 $ 5,08¢

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

Our consolidated financial statements aepared in accordance with accounting principlesegaly accepted in the United States of
America. The preparation of these consolidatedhfired statements requires us to make estimategssuinptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, costseapenses, and related disclosures. We evaluatestiotates and assumptions on an ongoing
basis. Our actual results may differ from theseveses.

We believe that of our significant accongtpolicies, which are described in Note 2 to amsplidated financial statements, the
accounting policies described below involve a gredegree of judgment and complexity. Accordinglg, believe that the accounting polic
described below are the most critical to aid imyfunderstanding and evaluating our consolidatedricial condition and results of operations.
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Revenue Recognition

During March 2012, we initiated biopolymmpduct sales to customers for the first time. @alicy is to recognize revenue when
evidence of an arrangement exists, title has passservices have been rendered, the selling jwifieed or determinable and collectability
reasonably assured. Revenue from product salasstoroers is recognized when all elements of tretsale been delivered. During the six
months ended June 30, 2012, we did not providedbts of return to customers on product salesepifor situations where the product did
not meet the technical specifications. We modified product return policy prospectively during thearter ending September 30, 2012 to
allow discretion in accepting returns during a permf sixty days after product delivery. Until safént experience is developed on which to
base an estimate of product returns, we defer réttog of product revenue and related costs uhéllater of (i) the end of the sixty day
period or (ii) when the customer payment has beegived.

We recognize government grants receivagwenue as the grants are central to the Compangtsing operations. Revenue is earned as
research expenses related to the grants are idclueds received from government grants in advaheerk being performed are recorded
as deferred revenue until earned. For revenue quislyi received under our arrangements with ADM re@gnized revenue in accordance
with the accounting guidance on revenue recogndiuth revenue arrangements with multiple delivesable

Our discontinued arrangement with ADM camgd multiple elements including obligations fortagprovide future compounding
services, sales and marketing services, and cegs@arch and development activities. We deterntimatthese elements could not be
separated and accounted for individually as sepanaits of accounting. Therefore payments recefr@md ADM through December 31, 2011
were classified as deferred revenue at the resggelatilance sheet dates. We expected that thisreéfie@venue would begin to be recognized
upon achievement of the contractual First CommEe&aie and all amounts would be recognized onaagstt line basis over the estimated
period, of approximately ten years, in which ouligdtions would be fulfilled in accordance with ttegm of the Commercial Alliance
Agreement. Effective with the termination of théaadce in February of 2012 we recognized all ofdieerred revenue related to the alliance
agreements with ADM in the first quarter of 2012.

Fees to license the use of our propriesa licensed technologies are recognized only kit the license period has commenced and
the licensed technology, if any, has been delivewdate licensee. Royalty revenue is recognizedwhieecomes determinable and
collectability is reasonably assured, otherwisa@agnize royalty revenue upon receipt of payment.

Inventory

During March 2012, we acquired raw mateaiad finished goods inventory of biopolymer fronlg@g, LLC as described above. Our
adopted inventory policies as a result of thisgesntion are to state inventory at the lower of cosharket and to value inventory using the
average cost method. We analyze our inventory deyearterly and write down, to cost of product rexe inventory that has become
obsolete, inventory in excess of expected salasingents or inventory that fails to meet commersddes specifications.

Stock-Based Compensation

The accounting standard for stock-basedpemsation requires that all stock-based awardmfiayees be recognized as an expense in
the consolidated financial statements and that sMphnse be measured at the fair value of the award
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Determining the appropriate fair value mae calculating the fair value of stock-basedmeamt awards requires the use of highly
subjective assumptions, including the expecteddlifthe stock-based payment awards and stock poiedility. We use the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model to value our option grants aedermine the related compensation expense. Huenggions used in calculating the fair
value of stock-based awards represent managerbest'gstimates, but the estimates involve inhenecértainties and the application of
management judgment. As a result, if factors chaage we use different assumptions, our stock-besegbensation expense could be
materially different in the future. See Note 12te consolidated financial statements for furtliscassion on the key assumptions used to
determine the fair values of option grants purstatihe Black-Scholes option pricing model.

We account for stock compensation arranggsngith non-employees in accordance with the atting standard for equity instruments
that are issued to other than employees for aecgyidr in conjunction with selling, goods or seegcusing a fair value approach. For stock
options granted to non-employees, the fair valuta@fstock options is estimated using the Blacke&shvaluation model. Stock-based
compensation expense is recognized over the pefiegpected service by the non-employee. As thécers performed, we are required to
update these assumptions and periodically revaiuested options and make adjustments to the staskdbcompensation expense using the
new valuation. These adjustments may result indrigh lower stock-based compensation expense ttiginally estimated or recorded, with
a corresponding increase or decrease in compensatense in the statement of operations. Ultimateé final compensation charge for
each option grant to non-employees is unknown timdise options have vested or services have beepleted.

Results of Operations

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2012 a@811

Revenue
Year ended
December 31
2012 2011 Change
Revenue from termination of ADM
collaboration $ 38,88t $ — $ 38,88t
Grant revenu 1,971 91¢ 1,05:
Product revenu 1,211 — 1,211
License fee and royalty revenue from relatec
parties 152 447 (295)
License fee and royali 97 6C 37
Total revenu $ 42,31¢ $ 1,42t $ 40,89:

Total revenue was $42,316 and $1,425 feitwrelve months ended December 31, 2012 and 264fectively. During the twelve mon
ended December 31, 2012, we recognized $38,88tewuiqusly deferred revenue related to our Tell@st jeenture with ADM that terminated
effective February 8, 2012. This deferred revemutech was previously expected to be recognized amegstimated ten year period as we
our contractual performance obligations, becameediately recognizable upon termination of the je@nture as we had no further
performance obligations following termination. Dhgithe twelve months ended December 31, 2012 vagnied $1,971 of grant revenue
compared to $918 in 2011. The increase in grarmae for the twelve months ended December 31, @k2primarily attributable to
increased revenue of $1,053 earned from our DOEWRable Enhanced Feedstocks for Advanced BiofuelBawproducts ("REFABB")
grant that commenced in September 2011. Duringwibve months ended December 31, 2012, we alsgneed $1,211 of product revenue
from sales of biopolymer inventory acquired in Ma&012 from our terminated Telles joint
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venture with ADM. There was no product revenuemythe twelve months ended December 31, 2011, beaavenue from Mirel product
sales was recognized by Telles during that pefading the twelve months ended December 31, 2012eamgnized $152 of license fee and
royalty revenue from related parties compared #/%ér the respective period in 2011. License feg @yalty revenue from related parties
decreased due to a decline in royalties receiveléa licensing arrangement with Tepha, Inc. ("B&pha related party.

We expect revenue to substantially decrdaseg 2013 due to the one-time recognition ofdbéerred revenue associated with the
Telles joint venture in 2012. We anticipate thatdarct revenue will increase in 2013 as we plarotttinue to gain market acceptance for our
products, although there will be fluctuations frqoarter to quarter.

Costs and Expenses

Year ended
December 31
2012 2011 Change
Cost of product revent $ 1,42¢ $ — $ 1,42¢
Research and development exper 23,17" 24,44: (1,269
Selling, general, and administrative exper 14,11( 15,84: (1,737
Total costs and expen $ 38,71 $ 40,28t $ (1,579

Cost of Product Revenue

Cost of product revenue was $1,426 forttbedve months ended December 31, 2012. These postarily include inventory product
costs of $474 associated with product revenue rézed during the period, plus current period fréighd warehousing costs of $328 and
$515, respectively. Cost of product revenue alstudes the cost of sample inventory provided tspeative customers. Included in freight
and warehousing costs are charges of approxim@®28§ incurred in connection with our consolidatadrinventory into fewer, lesexpensivi
warehouse locations and the cost of inventory shigsito our European warehouse. We also evaluaetory for impairment on a regular
basis, and at December 31, 2012, we recorded amegmf $138 primarily to reduce inventory for desoraw materials.

Although there will be fluctuations fromayter to quarter, we expect our overall cost oflpat revenue will increase during 2013 and
beyond commensurate with our increasing produessahd as our relatively inexpensive inventory aegurom Telles is depleted and
replaced with new full-cost manufactured inventangjuding new resin grades that will enter the kedduring the upcoming year. During
2013 we may also incur costs for manufacturing destration batches through our suppliers. If thizpict meets commercial specifications,
the cost of these demonstration batches will beggthato inventory. Due to the expected high pet cwst of these smaller manufacturing
batches, any inventory costs in excess of our égdexaleable market price will be immediately exggehas cost of product revenue.

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses (ingudecost of the ADM collaboration in 2011) wa8327 and $24,445 for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respgcfifee decrease of $1,268 was primarily attribleab decreases in contract research,
employee compensation and related benefit expetrags|, consulting, licensing and depreciationange partially offset by an increase in
material production costs. Expenses related tonmahf@oduction costs were $4,455 and $2,054 fertitelve months ended December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively. The increase of $2,401
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was primarily due to expenses incurred in connaactidh the manufacturing demonstration agreemettt wntibioticos. Contract research
was $722 and $2,410 for the twelve months ende@iber 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The decidehk 688 was primarily
attributable to lower contracted research suppmtiged to the University of Massachusetts (Lowafill other parties for biopolymer
research and development, as a result of the tatimimof the Telles joint venture. Employee compgios and related benefit expenses were
$12,047 and $12,847 for the twelve months endeeéiber 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The decie&800 was primarily attributable
to a decrease in employee headcount in resporibe termination of the Telles joint venture. Tragrpenses were $318 and $715 for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2012 and 201decteely. The decrease of $397 was primarily #wult of our reduced headcount and
cost containment measures enacted by the Compamgu@ing costs decreased to $539 from $769 fotwieéve months ended December
2012 and 2011, respectively. The reduction of $286 also primarily due to efforts made to redugeeeses as a result of the termination of
the Telles joint venture. Licensing expense dee@as $271 from $532 for the twelve months endedeb®er 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, as certain licensing fee obligaticeeched their conclusion. Depreciation expense$igkt4 and $1,381 for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectivelyd@beease of $217 was primarily due to propertyemdpment reaching full
depreciation.

We expect our ongoing efforts to closelynage research and development costs will allove usduce our research and development
expenses during 2013. Costs incurred during 2082& million in connection with the demonstrategreement with Antibidticos are not
expected to reoccur at the same levels, if atlaling 2013. Pilot manufacturing costs incurredmyi2012 to produce biopolymer and C4
chemicals are also expected to decrease during 20&3e reductions in research and developmennsgpanay be partially offset by
expenses to complete manufacturing demonstratituinés at Antibiéticos.

Selling, general, and administrative expenses

Selling, general, and administrative expsnsere $14,110 and $15,841 for the twelve monitea December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. The decrease of $1,731 was primattlybutable to decreases in employee compensatidielated benefit expenses, travel and
consulting costs. Employee compensation and relzgedfit expenses were $7,858 and $9,014 for thivéamonths ended December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively. The decrease of $WHEsGprimarily due to reduction of headcount irpmesse to the termination of the Telles
joint venture. Travel expense decreased to $508 $3887 for the twelve months ended December 312 20d 2011, respectively. T
decrease of $285 was primarily as a result of costainment measures enacted by the Company irectian with the Telles joint venture
termination. Consulting expense decreased to $92 $965 for the twelve months ended December @12 2nd 2011, respectively. The
decrease of $173 was attributable to a reductiondrketing and sales consulting services, also rimadennection with the terminated joint
venture.

We expect our selling, general and adnmiatliste expenses to increase during 2013 as werantd expand our biopolymer sales and
marketing activities, primarily in Europe.

Other Income (Net)

Year ended

December 31,

2012 2011 Change
Total other income (ne $ 27 $ 76 $ (49
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Other income (expense) during both pergmissisted primarily of income from our investmemt§set by investment management and
custodial fees.

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2011 a2810

Revenue
Year ended
December 31
2011 2010 Change
Grant revenus $ 91 $ 64 $ 854
License fee and royalty revenue from related
parties 447 122 32t
License fee and royali 60 5C 1C
Research and development reve — 212 (212)
Total revenue $ 142t $ 448 $ 977

Total revenue was $1,425 and $448 forwevie months ended December 31, 2011 and 201Gateeply. During the twelve months
ended December 31, 2011 we recognized $918 of ggaahue compared to $64 for the respective péni@d10. The increase in grant
revenue for the twelve months ended December 311 @@&s primarily generated from our DOE RenewalsleaBced Feedstocks for
Advanced Biofuels and Bioproducts ("REFABB") gramd our Blow Molded Bioproducts from Renewable titaggrant. During the twelve
months ended December 31, 2011 we recognized ¥4&ense fee and royalty revenue from relatedipatompared to $122 for the
respective period in 2010. License fee and roy@ityenue from related parties increased primarilgt essult of a royalty earned under a
licensing agreement with Tepha, Inc., a relatetypdihere was no research and development revamiregdthe twelve months ended
December 31, 2011. During the twelve months endeckBhber 31, 2010 research and development revesmidavived primarily from the
delivery of product samples to potential customBrging the twelve months ended December 31, 28¢énue from Mirel product samples
was recognized by Telles.

Expense

Year ended

December 31
2011 2010 Change

Research and development expenses, inclut

cost of revenu $ 24,44 $ 23,67 $ 77z
Selling, general, and administrative exper 15,84: 15,71« 127
Total operating expen: $ 40,28¢ $ 39,387 $ 89¢

Research and development expenses, including cost of revenue

Research and development expenses, indudist of revenue, were $24,445 and $23,673 fotwktve months ended December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively. The increase of $7d2mimarily attributable to an increase in cortrdaesearch, employee compensation
related benefit expenses and consulting servieetially offset by a decrease in material produtitosts. Expenses related to contracted
research and development services were $2,410JAdGfor the twelve months ended December 31, 20812010, respectively. The
increase of $700 was primarily due to an increaggoduct development work related to Mirel, indiadtchemicals and plant science work
performed in conjunction with our Department of EjyeREFABB grant. A portion of expenses relateth®s REFABB grant are reimbursed
to us by the U.S. Department of Energy and recoadegkant revenue.
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Employee compensation and related benefit expemses$12,847 and $12,561 for the twelve monthseémeember 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The increase of $286 was primarilsitattable to annual compensation merit increaseshéring of new personnel to support
our manufacturing process and research prograeiading employees for our Canadian subsidiary. @ling) expenses were $769 and $383
for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 8i6,2espectively. The increase of $386 was prisneglated to increased product
development activities within our biobased indadtchemicals platform. Material production costsréased to $2,054 from $2,693 for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2011 and 201fectgely. The reduction of $639 was primarily daeshifting activity at our pre-
commercial manufacturing facility to ADM's CommexcManufacturing Facility, partially offset by amcrease in material production costs
incurred to produce C4 chemicals.

Selling, general, and administrative expenses

Selling, general, and administrative expsngere $15,841 and $15,714 for the twelve mombtee December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Selling, general, and administraéixpenses were generally consistent for the two ematipe years. The small increase was
primarily due to employee recruiting and compemsaéxpenses incurred during the year ended DeceBdh@011.

Other Income (Net)

Year ended
December 31
2011 2010 Change

Total other income (ne $ 76 $ 13¢ $ (60)

Other income (net) during both periods ésted of interest income.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Currently, we require cash to fund our wagkcapital needs, to purchase capital assetscapayt our operating lease obligations.

The primary sources of our liquidity haweeh:

. equity financing;

. our strategic alliance with ADM,;

. government grants; and

. interest earned on cash and short-term investments.

We have incurred significant expenses irgdab our research and development efforts. Assalt, we have incurred net losses since our
inception. As of December 31, 2012, we had an actated deficit of $242,032. Our total unrestrictadh, cash equivalents and investments
as of December 31, 2012 were $46,281 as compai®Bt858 at December 31, 2011. As of December @12 2ve had no outstanding debt.

Our cash and cash equivalents at Decenthet(3 2 were held for working capital purposes. denot enter into investments for trading
or speculative purposes. The primary objectivewfiovestment activities is to preserve our capAal of December 31, 2012, we had
restricted cash of $594. Restricted cash consistd® held in connection with the lease agreerfamur Cambridge, Massachusetts facility
and $100 held in connection with our corporate itreatd program. Investments are made in accordaitbeour corporate investment polic
as approved by our Board of Directors. Investmangdimited to high quality corporate debt, U.Sedsury bills and notes, bank debt
obligations, municipal debt obligations and asseatkied securities. The policy establishes maturity
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limits, concentration limits, and liquidity requments. As of December 31, 2012, we were in compdiamith this policy.

The Company held unrestricted cash, caslvalgnts and investments of $46,281 at Decembge2@I12. We believe that these resources
and the cash to be generated from existing gramtt®gpected product sales will be sufficient to e projected operating requirements for
at least the next twelve months. We continue te fagnificant challenges and uncertainties and, @sult, our available capital resources
may be consumed more rapidly than currently expledte to (a) lower than expected sales of our yoper products as a result of slow
market adoption; (b) increases in costs relataddastart-up and operation of commercial manufaeguoperations with third parties;

(c) changes we may make to the business that affegting operating expenses; (d) changes we mayw toadur business strategy;

(e) changes in our research and development spgeptiins; and (f) other items affecting our foreeddevel of expenditures and use of cash
resources. Accordingly, we may need to raise aafthtifunds to support our operating and capitatiagand longer term, we will require
significant additional financing to continue to tuour operations. We may attempt to obtain addififunnding through public or private
financing, collaborative arrangements with stratqgirtners, or through additional credit lines threo debt financing sources to increase the
funds available to fund operations. However, we matybe able to secure such financing in a timedyner and on favorable terms, if at all.
Furthermore, if the Company issues equity or debtisties to raise additional funds, our existitmckholders may experience dilution, and
the new equity or debt securities may have rigisferences and privileges senior to those of gisting stockholders. If we raise additional
funds through collaboration, licensing or otheriamarrangements, it may be necessary to relitguaguable rights to our potential products
or proprietary technologies, or grant licensesesms that are not favorable to the Company. Witlagigitional funds, we may be forced to
delay, scale back or eliminate some of our saldsaarketing efforts, research and developmentitieSy or other operations and potentially
delay product development in an effort to provid#isient funds to continue our operations. If asfythese events occurs, our ability to
achieve our development and commercialization goaldd be adversely affected.

Net cash used in operating activities wak, $36 for the year ended December 31, 2012 comdpaneet cash of $31,731 and $31,995
used in operating activities during 2011 and 20&8pectively. Although cash used for operatingvitis during 2012 was consistent with
prior years, the Company acquired $3,204 of prodweintory, net of sales and adjustments, primdrdyn its purchase of inventory from
Telles in early 2012. This cash usage for inventag offset during 2012 by reduced operating castscash received from higher
government grant and product revenues.

Net cash of $25,018 was provided by inwgstictivities during the twelve months ended Decem®i, 2012, compared to net cash of
$8,908 used in investing activities during 2011 &8d,377 provided by investing activities durindl@0Net cash provided by investing
activities during the twelve months ended Decen®ie2012 included $84,303 provided by the saleraatlrity of investments, partially
offset by $58,933 used to purchase investmentscagt used in investing activities during the twatvonths ended December 31, 2011
included $107,477 used to purchase investment$898 used to purchase capital equipment, paridibet by $99,464 provided by the sale
and maturity of investments.

Net cash of $19 was provided by financiativities during the twelve months ended Decemtgr2B12, compared to net cash of
$49,407 and $2,339 provided by investment actwitiering 2011 and 2010, respectively. Net cashigeavby financing activities during
2012 and 2010 was solely attributable to the prdgeeceived from the exercise of stock options.ddsh provided by financing activities
during 2011 was primarily attributable to net preds of $49,333 provided from our common stock affgthat was completed during May
2011.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2012, we had no offdedasheet arrangements as defined in Item 303(@f)(4E Securities and Exchange
Commission's Regulation S-K.

Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our contmatbbligations at December 31, 2012:

Payments Due by Perioc

Less than More than
Total 1 year 1-3years 3-5years 5 years
Operating lease
obligations $ 229 $§ 1,74 $ 55C $ — 9 —
Purchase obligatiol 50 25 25 — —
Total $ 2,34 $ 1,76¢ $ 57t $ — $ —

Our lease obligations relate to curreniceftind laboratory space. The lease for our prirfadity located on Erie Street in Cambridge
Massachusetts will expire in May 2014. We havedpton to extend this lease for two additional fixear periods at then current market
rates.

In March 2007, we entered into a rentakagrent to lease office and laboratory space in Lpiassachusetts to support our Telles
joint venture with ADM. The lease was extended @bitiary 2012 for an additional two years at itgenir rental rate and now will expire
May 2014.

In connection with the Telles terminationthe first quarter of 2012, the Company restrreuits biopolymers business and downsized
its operations to more appropriately align its 2@18iness priorities and strategic plans with atroash and investment resources. In
September 2012, the Company terminated the leases former corporate office located at One Keh8gluare, Cambridge, Massachusetts,
paying an early termination fee of $43. The leaa lheen contracted to end in May 2014.

During August 2010, we began to conductaesh operations through a wholly-owned subsidisigtabolix Oilseeds, Inc. ("MOI"),
located in Saskatoon, Saskatchewan, Canada. MOéased office, laboratory and greenhouse spaBaskatoon and conducts its industrial
oilseed research there. These leases will expifeigust 2013.

During March 2012, we initiated biopolynm@oduct sales to customers for the first time. Gpport sales operations, we entered into a
lease for office space in Cologne, Germany. Thasdebegan in April 2012 for approximately 2,500asgfeet of office space, and has a
termination provision that allows the GMBH to ehe fease at any fiscal quarter end with a six maotite period.

Related Party Transactions

We entered into sublicense agreements3® &&d 2003 with Tepha Inc. ("Tepha"), a relatedyp#o sublicense certain technology to
Tepha. The sublicenses contains provisions foo uedeive sublicense maintenance fees, milestoyraguats and royalties on sublicense
product and sublicensing revenues received by Tepha

See Note 8 to our consolidated financiaeshents for a full description of our related paransactions.
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Effects of Inflation

Our assets are primarily monetary, congjstif cash, cash equivalents and investments. Beaafutheir liquidity, these assets are not
directly affected by inflation. Since we intendr&tain and continue to use our equipment, furniaume fixtures and leasehold improvements,
we believe that the incremental inflation relatedeplacement costs of such items will not matigriffect our operations. However, the rate
of inflation affects our expenses, such as thosertployee compensation, which could increase exellof expenses and the rate at which
we consume our financial resources.

Recent Accounting Standards Changes

For a discussion of recent accounting stedglplease read Note 2, Summary of Significanbénting Policies, to our consolidated
financial statements included in this report.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE  ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our exposure to market risk is confinedto cash, cash equivalents and marketable sesurfiie unrestricted cash and cash equive
and marketable securities are held for workingtehdpurposes. Our primary investment objectiveaigital preservation, with a secondary
objective of generating income on such capital.dé/@ot enter into investments for trading or spaiive purposes.

Interest Rate Ris

We invest in high-quality financial instremts, primarily money market funds, federal agemmes, U.S. treasury notes, investment-
grade commercial paper, and corporate debt sexsirail of our interest-bearing securities are sabfo interest rate risk and could decline in
value if interest rates fluctuate. Because of tietsterm maturities of our cash equivalents araftsterm investments, we do not believe that
an increase in market rates would have any sigmifionpact on the realized value of our marketabkurities. However, in a declining
interest rate environment, as short-term investmerature, reinvestment occurs at less favorabdedst rates which would negatively impact
our investment income. Exposure to market ratefaskhanges in interest rates relates to our tmce=d cash, cash equivalents and
investments, totaling $46,281 at December 31, 2B&2ed on a hypothetical 10% adverse movementenest rates, the potential annual
losses in future earnings and cash flows are esiirta be $12.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA

The consolidated financial statements atated financial statement schedules required fidldoeare indexed on page F-1 and are
incorporated herein.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by thismiual Report on Form 10-K, under the supervigibour Chief Executive Officer and our
Chief Financial Officer, we evaluated the effectiges of our disclosure controls and proceduresyas term is defined in Rule 13&{e) anc
Rule 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act. Based anethdluation, our Chief Executive Officer and otie® Financial Officer concluded that
as of December 31, 2012 our disclosure controlspaodedures are effective to provide reasonablgrasse that information we are required
to disclose in reports that we file or submit unter Exchange Act (1) is recorded, processed, suin@tband reported within the time
periods specified in Securities and Exchange Cosionigules and forms, and (2) is accumulated angheonicated to our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chighancial Officer, as appropriate to allow timelgcisions regarding required disclosure.
Our disclosure controls and procedures include @orepts of our internal control over financial repay. Management's assessment of the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahcegporting is expressed at the level of reasonasdeirance because a control system, no
matter how well designed and operated, can prasidie reasonable, but not absolute, assurancettbatantrol system's objectives will be
met.

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control overFinancial Reporting

Our management is responsible for estahlishnd maintaining adequate internal control divemcial reporting, as defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Matr internal control over financial reporting ipacess designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financigdoging and the preparation of financial statemémt&xternal purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. Our irdkecontrol over financial reporting includes th@sdicies and procedures that (i) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonablél dstaurately and fairly reflect the transacti@ms dispositions of our assets; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are redorgednit preparation of financial statementsdncadance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and exiperesd of the company are made only in accordantteauthorizations of our management
and directors; and (iii) provide reasonable assigangarding prevention or timely detection of uhatized acquisition, use or disposition of
our assets that could have a material effect orfioancial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventletect misstatements. Projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadégibecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness aftemal control over financial reporting as aéd@mber 31, 2012. In making this
assessment, management used the criteria setrfdriternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

Based on its assessment of internal cootret financial reporting, management has conclullat] as of December 31, 2012, our
internal control over financial reporting was effee to provide reasonable assurance regardingetiability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples.

The effectiveness of our internal contre¢iofinancial reporting as of December 31, 2012een audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registmiblic accounting firm, as stated in their rémdrich is included herein.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There have been no changes in our intewratol over financial reporting identified in cagetion with the evaluation required by
Rule 13a-15(d) of the Exchange Act that occurrehduour last fiscal quarter in the period covebgdhis Annual Report on Form 10-K that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, our internal control overdimcial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART IlI

Pursuant to General Instructions G to Fb0sK, the information required for Part Ill, Iter®, 11, 12, 13 and 14, is incorporated herein
by reference from the Company's proxy statementi@irAnnual Meeting of Stockholders to be held aayM0, 2013 which is expected to be
filed not later than 120 days after the fiscal yexad covered by this Form 10-K.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) The following documents are filed as partha$ Report:
(1) Financial Statements
See Index to Financial Statements on page F-1.

(2)  Supplemental Schedule

All schedules have been omitted because the retjnfermation is not present in amounts sufficientequire
submission of the schedule, or because the reqguifednation is included in the consolidated finehstatements or
notes thereto.

(3)  Exhibits
See Item 15(b) below.

(b)  The following exhibits are filed as part of, or amporated by reference into, this annual repofform 10-K:

Exhibit
Number Description
3.1(1) Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiohe Registrant

3.3(1) Amended and Restated -laws of the Registran

3.4(5) Certificate of Designations, Preferences arghiof a Series of Preferred Stock of
Metabolix, Inc. classifying and designating thei€&2A Junior Participating
Cumulative Preferred Stoc

4.1(1) Specimen Stock Certificate for shares of the Reggiss Common Stocl

4.2(5) Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated as of JUAP09, between Metabolix, Inc. and
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, agtlRé Agent

4.3(9) Amendment No. 1 to Shareholder Rights Agreendated as of February 6, 2012,

between the Company and American Stock Transfer&tiICompany, LLC, as
Rights Agent
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Exhibit
Number Description

10.11(1) 1995 Stock Plar

10.1.71(1) 1995 Stock Plan, Form of Incentive Stock Optione&gnent
10.1.21(1) 1995 Stock Plan, Form of N-Qualified Stock Option Agreemer
10.21(1) 2005 Stock Plar
10.2.71(1) 2005 Stock Plan, Form of Incentive Stock Option&amnent
10.2.21(1) 2005 Stock Plan, Form of N-Qualified Stock Option Agreemer
10.21(1) 2006 Stock Option and Incentive Pl
10.3.21(1) 2006 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, Form of ItisenStock Option Agreemer

10.3.21(1) 2006 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, Form of Naral@ied Stock Option
Agreement

10.3.i1(1) 2006 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, Form of Oiwe&on-Qualified Stock Option
Agreement

10.4#(1) License Agreement between the Registrant and Massatts Institute of Technology
dated July 15, 1993, as amenc

10.5#(1) Commercial Alliance Agreement by and among the &eayit, ADM/Metabolix Sales
Company, LLC and ADM Polymer Corporation dated Jidy 2006

10.€#(1) Operating Agreement of ADM/Metabolix Sales CompdryC by and between the
Registrant and ADM Polymer Corporation dated July2006.

10.7(1) Letter Agreement by and between the RegistxadtArcher Daniels Midland
Company dated November 3, 20i

10.& Joint Commercial Alliance Settlement Agreement dafiarch 6, 2012, among the
(11) Registrant, ADM Polymer Corporation, Telles, LL@daTelles (Europe) BV

10.¢t(8) Amended and Restated Employment Agreement betweeRéegistrant and Richard
Eno dated March 17, 201

10.1(f(1) Employment Agreement between the Registrant anceOR. Peoples dated July 20,
2006.

10.10.:1(7) First Amendment to Employment Agreement betweerRibgistrant and Oliver P.
Peoples executed December 19, 2(

10.10.:1(7) Second Amendment to Employment Agreement betweeRé#gistrant and Oliver P.
Peoples executed February 25, 2(

10.111(4) Employment Agreement between the Registrant angpdoB. Hill executed
March 21, 2008

10.11.:1(7) First Amendment to Employment Agreement betweerRibgistrant and Joseph D.
Hill executed December 23, 20(

10.121(7) Change of Control Severance Agreement betweenelhéestant and Sarah P. Cecil
executed December 18, 20l

10.13(7) Employment Agreement between the Registrant anc&eR&b Engle executed
December 19, 200i
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Exhibit
Number Description
10.141(6) Employment Agreement between the Registrant andnJeain Walsem executed

July 9, 2009

10.1ff  Employment Agreement between the Registrant aneshiéyh Brum executed
(10)November 14, 201:

10.1¢t  Employment Agreement between Registrant and Mae 8wl executed May 1, 2012.
(12)

10.1% (1) Form of Employee Noncompetition, Nondisclosure Bnentions Agreement with
Oliver P. Peoples and Johan van Wals

10.1¢(1) Form of Noncompetition, Nondisclosure and Invergiédigreement between the
Registrant Richard P. Eno, Joseph D. Hill, RobeiEkgle, Lynne Brum, Max
Senechal and Sarah P. Ce

10.1¢t(2) Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Regig and its Directors and
Officers.

10.2((1) Lease Agreement between the Registrant andi21Realty Trust dated as of
December 29, 2003 for the premises located at Bl $reet, Cambridge,
Massachusetts 0213

10.21(2) Lease between Fortune Wakefield, LLC and Metabdtig, dated March 30, 200

10.22(11)First Amendment of Lease dated February 29, 20d@yden Fortune Wakefield, LLC
and Metabolix, Inc. dated March 30, 20

10.2#(1)License Agreement between the Registrant and Téphadated as of October 1,
1999.

10.24#(1)License Agreement between the Registrant and Tépbhadated as of September 9,
2003.

10.2%#(3)Exclusive License Agreement between the RegisamadtAbbott Laboratories dated
November 12, 200’

10.2¢(9) Letter Agreement, dated as of February 6, 206¢2nd among the Company, Jack W.
Schuler, Renate Schuler and the Schuler Family dration.

10.27*  Confidential Disclosure Agreement dated Februar30d,3, between the Company ¢
Jack W. Schulel

14.1(10)Metabolix, Inc. Code of Business Conduct and Ett
21.7*  Subsidiaries of the Registra

23.* Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an indégetregistered public accounting
firm.

24.1 Power of Attorney (incorporated by referencehm signature page of this Annual
Report on Form 1-K).

31.7* Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rutel-14(a) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934.

31.2¢ Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rubel-14(a) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934.

32.1* Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350adopted pursuant to Section 90
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002
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Exhibit
Number Description

101.1 The following financial information from the Mddalix Inc. Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 ditted in XBRL;
(i) Consolidated Balance Sheets, December 31, aatiZDecember 31, 2011;
(ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations, Yeardddl December 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010; (iii) Consolidated Statements of Compnshwe Income (Loss), Years
Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010; (iv) Cateteld Statements of Cash
Flows, Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and; 20itD(v) Consolidated
Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the YearddenDecember 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010; and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Stants.*

101.INS* XBRL Instance Documen

101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schen

101.CAL*  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkba:

101.DEFF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas

101.LAB*  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbas

101.PRFF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbe

Tt

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

()

(6)

(7)

(8)

Indicates a management contract or any compamgsaian, contract or arrangement.

As provided in Rule 406T of Regulation S-Tstimformation is furnished and not filed for purpe®f Sections 11 and
12 of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 1&efSecurities Exchange Act of 1934.

Confidential treatment has been granted for cegaitions of this document pursuant to a Commissiaier. Such
provisions have been filed separately with the Cdgaion.

Filed herewith

Incorporated by reference herein to the exhibithéoCompany's Registration Statement on FormBld No. 333-
135760)

Incorporated by reference herein to the exhitoi the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 1@QHe quarter ended
March 31, 2007 (File No. 001-33133)

Incorporated by reference herein to the exhibithéoCompany's 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-KdfNéarch 13,
2008 (File No. 001-33133)

Incorporated by reference herein to the exhibithéoCompany's Report on Form 8-K filed March 20& (File
No. 001-33133)

Incorporated herein by reference to the exhitoi the Company's Registration Statement on Befkon July 8, 2009
(File No. 001-33133)

Incorporated by reference herein to the exhibithéoCompany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fergharter ended
June 30, 2009 (File No. 001-33133)

Incorporated by reference herein to the exhibithéoCompany's 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-Kdféarch 12,
2009 (File No. 001-33133)

Incorporated by reference herein to the exhitoi the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 1@QHe quarter ended
March 31, 2011 (File No. 0-33133)
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9 Incorporated by reference herein to the exhibithéoCompany's Report on Form 8-K filed February2l 2 (File
No. 001-33133)

(10) Incorporated by reference herein to the exhibithéoCompany's 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-Kdféarch 12,
2012

(11) Incorporated by reference herein to the ashitb the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 1f®:Qhe quarter ended
March 31, 2012 (File No. 001-33133)

(12) Incorporated by reference herein to the exhibithéoCompany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fergharter ended
June 30, 2012 (File No. 0-33133)
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has dalysed this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

METABOLIX, INC.

March 28, 2013 By: /s RICHARD P. ENO

Richard P. Eno
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that eackrgon whose signature appears below constituteagpaints Richard P. Eno,
Joseph D. Hill, and Sarah P. Cecil, jointly andesally, his or her attorney-in-fact, with the povedrsubstitution, for him or her in any and all
capacities, to sigh any amendments to this AnnegloR on Form 10-K and to file the same, with ekhithereto and other documents in
connection therewith, with the Securities and ExggaCommission, hereby ratifying and confirmingth#it each of said attorneys-in-fact, or
his or her substitute or substitutes, may do oseda be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seearict of 1934, this report has been signed bdipwthe following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the datéisated.

Name Title Date
/sl RICHARD P. ENO President and Chief Executive Officer
and Director (Principal Executive March 27, 2013
Richard P. En Officer)
/s/ JOSEPH D. HILL Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Financial Officer and Principal March 28, 2013
Joseph D. Hil Accounting Officer)
/sl PETER N. KELLOGG
Director March 28, 2013
Peter N. Kellogc
/sl JAY KOUBA
Director March 28, 2013
Jay Koubeg
/s/ STEPHEN J. LARGE
Director March 27, 2013

Stephen J. Larg
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Name

/s/ CELESTE B. MASTIN

Celeste B. Mastil

/s/ OLIVER P. PEOPLES

Oliver P. People

/sl ANTHONY J. SINSKEY

Anthony J. Sinskey, Sc.I

/sl MATTHEW STROBECK

Matthew Strobecl

/s/ ROBERT L. VAN NOSTRAND

Robert L. Van Nostran

/sl BARBARA H. WELLS

Barbara H. Well:

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Title
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March 28, 2013

March 28, 2013

March 28, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Metixh Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consobkdabalance sheets and the related consolidatenrstats of operations, comprehensive
income (loss), stockholders' equity and cash flpresent fairly, in all material respects, the ficiahposition of Metabolix, Inc. and its
subsidiaries at December 31, 2012 and 2011, anck$udts of their operations and their cash flowrsglach of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2012 in conformity with accawgnfirinciples generally accepted in the UnitedeStatf America. Also in our opinion,
the Company maintained, in all material respedfsctve internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2012, based on criteria
established itnternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiditke Treadway Commission
(COSO0). The Company's management is responsibtbdse financial statements, for maintaining effecinternal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectissmd internal control over financial reportingclided in Management's Annual Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting appeatimgler Item 9A. Our responsibility is to expresgams on these financial statements and
on the Company's internal control over financiglarting based on our integrated audits. We condumte audits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdiglard (United States). Those standards requatevtk plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether thecfalatatements are free of material misstatemeaitvehether effective internal control o
financial reporting was maintained in all materidpects. Our audits of the financial statemermdsiied examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the éilahstatements, assessing the accounting prirsciled and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financé&éstent presentation. Our audit of internal cordxa@r financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal control dugaincial reporting, assessing the risk that aemaltweakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectivenégsternal control based on the assessed risk.aldits also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the @tanoes. We believe that our audits provide a redde basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over finanaigborting is a process designed to provide redderassurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over fica reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financatkestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeipnrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; anda(iiyide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the compangsets that could have a material effect on theniisd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future perioassabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
March 28, 2013
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METABOLIX, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

December 31 December 31

2012 2011
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 1457: $ 21,27
Shor-term investment 29,20 55,57¢
Accounts receivabl 83¢ 14€
Due from related partie 75 311
Unbilled receivable 372 304
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 692 823
Inventory 3,20¢ —
Total current asse 48,95¢ 78,43¢
Restricted cas 594 622
Property and equipment, r 1,35¢ 2,27¢
Long-term investment 2,50¢ 1,50¢
Other asset 95 72
Total asset $ 5351 $ 8291
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 1,23 % 512
Accrued expense 3,51¢ 3,57¢
Current portion of deferred re 16E 16&
Shor-term deferred revent 1,067 2,914
Total current liabilities 5,98¢ 7,16¢
Deferred rent, net of current porti 55 221
Long-term deferred revent — 35,94«
Other lon¢-term liabilities 131 11¢
Total liabilities 6,17(C 43,44¢
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholders' Equity
Preferred stock ($0.01 par value per share); 500@0shares
authorized; no shares issued or outstan — —
Common stock ($0.01 par value per share); 100,000s6ares
authorized at December 31, 2012 and 2011, 34,30&6d
34,115,798 shares issued and outstanding at Dec&hp2012
and 2011, respective 343 341
Additional paic-in capital 289,05( 284,79¢
Accumulated other comprehensive | (27) (12
Accumulated defici (242,03) (245,667
Total stockholders' equit 47,34( 39,46:
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 5351 $ 8291

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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METABOLIX, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Revenue
Revenue from termination of ADM collaborati $ 38,88: $ — 3 —
Grant revenu 1,971 91¢ 64
Product revenu 1,211 — —
License fee and royalty revenue from related
parties 152 447 122
License fee revent 97 60 50
Research and development reve — — 212
Total revenue 42,31¢ 1,42t 44¢
Costs and expense
Cost of product revent 1,42¢ — —
Research and developme 23,17 24,44: 23,67
Selling, general, and administrati 14,11( 15,84: 15,71«
Total costs and expens 38,71 40,28t 39,38
Income (loss) from operatiol 3,60: (38,86 (38,939
Other income (expense
Interest income, ne¢ 27 76 13€
Net income (loss $ 3,63( $ (38,78H $ (38,809
Net income (loss) per shal
Basic $ 0.11 $ 1.29 $ (2.45)
Diluted $ 0.11 $ (1.29) $ (1.45)
Number of shares used in per share calculat
Basic 34,217,29 31,257,37 26,773,75
Diluted 34,279,77 31,257,37 26,773,75

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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METABOLIX, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Net income (loss)
Other comprehensive income (lo $ 3,630 $ (38,78H $ (38,809
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investm 3 20 (29
Change in foreign currency translation adjustn (6) a7 9
Total other comprehensive income (lo 9 3 (37)
Comprehensive income (los $ 3,621 $ (38,78) $ (38,840

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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METABOLIX, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss $ 3,63 $ (38,78Y) $ (38,809
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to azs#d in

operating activities

Depreciatior 1,29¢ 1,507 1,645
Charge for 401(k) company common stock m: 40¢ 52¢ 44z
Stoclk-based compensatic 3,801 4,63: 4,69¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (699) (14€) 19
Unbilled receivable (68) (29€) 5)
Due from related partie 23€ (77) (15
Prepaid expenses and other as 10¢ 68 (109
Inventory (3,209 —
Accounts payabl 721 273 (387)
Accrued expense (39 (623) 32¢
Deferred rent and other lo-term liabilities (159 (159 (15¢€)
Deferred revenu (37,79) 1,33: 341
Net cash used in operating activit (31,736 (31,73) (31,999
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipm (392) (89%) (90¢€)
Proceeds from sale of equipmi 12 — —
Change in restricted ca 28 — (29
Purchase of investmer (58,939 (107,47 (83,819
Proceeds from sale and maturity of s-term investment 84,30: 99,46¢ 116,12¢
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi 25,01¢ (8,909 31,37:
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from options exercis 19 74 2,33¢
Proceeds from public stock offering, net of issieaoosts — 49,33: —
Net cash provided by financing activiti 19 49,40 2,33¢
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents (6) () 9
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (6,705 8,751 1,71z
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 21,27" 12,52¢ 10,81«
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 1457. $ 21,270 $ 12,52¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part obthessolidated financial statements
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Balance,
December :
2009

Exercise of
common
stock
options

Non-cash
stock-basec
compensati
expense

Issuance of
common
stock for
401k matct

Change in
unrealized
gain on
investments

Effect of
foreign
currency
translation

Net loss

Balance,
December
2010

Exercise of
common
stock
options

Non-cash
stock-basec
compensati
expenst

Issuance of
common
stock for
401k matct

Issuance of
common
stock upon
public
offering, ne
of offering
costs of
$2,360

Change in
unrealized
loss on
investments

Effect of
foreign
currency
translation

METABOLIX, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In thousands, except share amounts)

Accumulated

Common Stock Agiiitzif&al Comgrtzﬁgnsive Accumulated StocT(%?llders'
Shares Par Value Capital Income (loss) Deficit Equity
26,514,07 $ 265 $ 222,83 $ 22 $ (168,07) $ 55,04«
346,16 4 2,33¢ — — 2,33¢
_ 4,69¢ — — 4,69¢
35,15: — 437 — — 437
_ — — (29) — (29)
_ — — 9) 9
— — — — (38,809 (38,809
26,895,38 $  26¢ $ 230,29¢ $ (15) $ (206,87) $  23,67¢
21,85: — 74 — — 74
— — 4,63: — — 4,63¢
68,55¢ 1 52¢€ — — 52¢
7,130,001 71 49,26 — — 49,33:
_ — — 20 — 20

(17) — a7



Net loss

Balance,
December !
2011

Exercise of
common
stock
options

Non-cash
stock-basec
compensati
expense

Issuance of
common
stock for
401k matct

Change in
unrealized
loss on
investments

Effect of
foreign
currency
translation

Net income

Balance,
December :
2012

— — — — (38,78%) (38,785
34,115,79 341 $ 284,79¢ $ (12) $ (24566) $  39,46:
11,43¢ — 19 — — 19
— — 3,807 — — 3,807
179,33 2 42¢ — — 43¢
— — — ©) — ©)

— — — (6) — (6)

— — — — 3,63( 3,63(
34,306,57 34z $ 289,05( $ (21) $ (242,03) $  47,34(

The accompanying notes are an integralgiahtese consolidated financial statements
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METABOLIX, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(In thousands, except for share and per share amots)
1. Nature of Business

Metabolix, Inc. (the "Company") is an inmdion-driven bioscience company which is focusediinging environmentally friendly
solutions to the plastics, chemicals and energystres. The Company has core capabilities in rbietaenetics, fermentation process
engineering, chemical engineering, polymer scieplamt genetics and botanical science, and hasndrbseé these capabilities in a way that
has allowed the integration of biotechnology wittemical engineering and industrial practice. Thenany is subject to risks common to
companies in the biotechnology industry includingt not limited to, development by the Companympetitors of new technological
innovations, dependence on key personnel, protecfiproprietary technology, the need to obtainitaaithl funding, and compliance with
government regulations.

The Company held unrestricted cash, caslvalgnts and investments of $46,281 at Decembg2@I12. The Company believes that
these resources and the cash to be generated fistimg grants and expected product sales willufBcient to meet its projected operating
requirements for at least the next twelve monti& Tompany continues to face significant challersgebuncertainties and, as a result, the
Company's available capital resources may be coedumore rapidly than currently expected due tdofagr than expected sales of the
Company's new biopolymer products as a resultavi sharket adoption; (b) increases in costs relaidte start-up and operation of
commercial manufacturing operations with third jgat(c) changes the Company may make to the bassthat affect ongoing operating
expenses; (d) changes the Company may make instedss strategy; (e) changes in the Company'angtsand development spending pl;
and (f) other items affecting the Company's fortazhtevel of expenditures and use of cash resoutaedrdingly, the Company will need to
raise additional funds to support its operating eayital needs. The Company may attempt to obtiditianal funding through public or
private financing, collaborative arrangements \gittategic partners, or through additional creditdi or other debt financing sources to
increase the funds available to fund operationsvéd@r, the Company may not be able to secure snghding in a timely manner and on
favorable terms, if at all. Furthermore, if the Gmany issues equity or debt securities to raisetiatdi funds, its existing stockholders may
experience dilution, and the new equity or debtigges may have rights, preferences and privilegasor to those of its existing
stockholders. If the Company raises additional futldough collaboration, licensing or other simdarangements, it may be necessary to
relinquish valuable rights to its potential produot proprietary technologies, or grant licenseseoms that are not favorable to the Company.
Without additional funds, the Company may be fortedelay, scale back or eliminate some of itsssaled marketing efforts, research and
development activities, or other operations anemiilly delay product development in an efforptovide sufficient funds to continue its
operations. If any of these events occurs, the Gaylp ability to achieve its development and conaimaéization goals would be adversely
affected.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements idelthe accounts of the Company and its wholly-owswdssidiaries. All significant
intercompany transactions were eliminated. Tetles Company's former joint venture with Archer BdsiMidland Company ("ADM"), was
not consolidated by the Company.
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METABOLIX, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Con tinued)
(In thousands, except for share and per share amots)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cornihued)
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America
("GAAP") requires management to make estimatesaasdmptions that affect the reported amounts eftsssd liabilities and the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the datéheffinancial statements and the reported amaifiiesvenues and expenses during the
reporting periods. Actual results could differ fréhose estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquidéstments purchased with an original maturity dét@reety days or less at the date of
purchase to be cash equivalents.

Investments

The Company considers all highly liquidéstments purchased with an original maturity dét@reety days or less at the date of
purchase to be cash equivalents, and all invessyemthased with an original maturity date of njirddlys or more at the date of purchase
a maturity date of one year or less at the balaheet date to be short-term investments. All otinegstments are classified as long-term. At
December 31, 2012, investments consisted of U.&asliry securities and debt securities of the Lb%empment. At December 31, 2011,
investments consisted of corporate debt and debtisies of the United States government. All inwesnts were classified as available for
sale as of December 31, 2012 and 2011. See Natefdrther discussion on investments.

Unrealized gains and temporary losses wasiiments are included in accumulated other conepigtie income (loss) as a separate
component of stockholders' equity. Realized gantslasses, dividends, interest income and declimealue judged to be other-than-
temporary credit losses are included in other inedexpense). Any premium or discount arising atlpase is amortized and/or accreted to
interest income.

Restricted Cash

The Company had restricted cash in the anafu$594 and $622 at December 31, 2012 and 2@%pectively. At December 31, 2012
restricted cash consisted of $494 held in connedtith the lease agreement for the Company's CalgériMassachusetts facility and $100
held in connection with the Company's corporatélitiard program. At December 31, 2011 restricishaconsisted of $522 held in
connection with two lease agreements for facilitiested in Cambridge, Massachusetts and $100imelohnection with the Company's
corporate credit card program.

Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign denominated assets and liabildgfdgletabolix Oilseeds, Inc., the Company's whollyred Canadian subsidiary, are translated
into U.S. dollars at the prevailing exchange ratesffect on the balance sheet date. Revenuesxgahges are translated at average exchangg
rates prevailing during the period. Any resultirgrislation gains or losses are recorded in thenaglated other comprehensive income (loss)
in the consolidated balance sheet.
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METABOLIX, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Con tinued)
(In thousands, except for share and per share amots)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cornihued)
Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is comprisemediincome (loss) and certain changes in stocldnsl@équity that are excluded from net
income (loss). The Company includes unrealizedsgaind losses on marketable securities and foreigemcy translation adjustments in
other comprehensive income (loss).

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially dbjthe Company to concentrations of credit risknprily consist of cash and cash equivalents
and short-term investments. The Company primanilsgsts its excess cash and cash equivalents inyrmoakket funds, corporate debt,
federal agency notes and U.S. treasury notes. timeeds are acquired in accordance with the Compamyestment policy which establishes
a concentration limit per issuer.

The Company provides credit to custometténnormal course of business. The Company pegfamyoing credit evaluations of its
customers' financial condition and limits the amtonircredit extended when deemed necessary. Atibieee31, 2012, the Company's
accounts and unbilled receivables include $561666 #om U.S. and Canadian government grants anél 8634% from customer product
sales. At December 31, 2012, one customer repexsdi®s of accounts receivable due from productsale

Fair Value Measurements

The carrying amounts of the Company's famrinstruments as of December 31, 2012 and 28hich include cash equivalents,
investments, accounts receivable, unbilled recébdgaldue from related parties, accounts payabtkaaorued expenses, approximate their
values due to the short-term nature of these imsnis. See Note 15 for further discussion on falue’ measurements.

Segment Information

The accounting guidance for segment repgristablishes standards for reporting informatioperating segments in annual financial
statements. The Company operates in one segmeigt) ighthe business of developing and commercigdizechnologies for the productior
polymers and chemicals in plants and in microbés. Company's chief operating decision-maker doesianage any part of the Company
separately, and the allocation of resources aresaggent of performance are based on the Compamgsldated operating results. As of
December 31, 2012 and 2011 less than 10% of thep@oy's combined total assets were located out$itteedJnited States. In addition, the
reported net income (loss) outside of the UnitedeStwas less than 10% of the combined net inctoss) (of the consolidated Company.

Inventory

During March 2012, the Company acquired naaterial and finished goods inventory of biopolyrfrem Telles, LLC as described in
Note 17. The Company's adopted inventory policgea gesult of this transaction are to state inwgrabthe lower of cost or market and
value inventory using the average cost method.ddmapany analyzes its inventory levels quarterly anites down, to

F-10




Table of Contents

METABOLIX, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Con tinued)
(In thousands, except for share and per share amots)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cornihued)

cost of product revenue, inventory that has becobselete, inventory in excess of expected salasn@gents or inventory that fails to meet
commercial sales specifications.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at egstdccumulated depreciation. Repairs and mainteraae charged to operations as incurred.
Gains and losses on the disposition of equipmentesrorded in net income or loss and the relatetiasod accumulated depreciation are
removed from the respective accounts. Depreciasicomputed using the straight-line method overetstenated useful lives as follows:

Asset Description Estimated Useful Life
Equipment 2.5- 3 years

Furniture and Fixture 5

Software 3

Leasehold improvemen Shorter of useful life or term of lea

The Company accounts for operating leaseritive payments received from a lessor in accalaith the accounting standard on
accounting for leases. The Company records landitmehtive payments received as deferred rent amatt&zes these amounts as reductions
to lease expense over the lease term.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company accounts for the impairmentdiagosal of londived assets in accordance with accounting guidancaccounting for tr
impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. Thiglgnice requires that long-lived assets, such gseptypand equipment be reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circurastaimdicate that the carrying amount of an assgtmot be recoverable. The guidance
further requires that companies recognize an impait loss only if the carrying amount of a longelivasset is not recoverable based on its
undiscounted future cash flows and measure an impat loss as the difference between the carryinguat and fair value of the asset.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accoedatith accounting standards on revenue recogniBoncipal sources of revenue are
government research grants, product sales, lideese royalty revenues and research and developmagnients that are primarily derived
from collaborative agreements with other companies.

During March 2012, the Company initiatedgmlymer product sales to customers for the finset The Company's policy is to recogn
revenue when evidence of an arrangement exiséshtis passed or services have been rendereatllihg grice is fixed or determinable and
collectability is reasonably assured. Revenue fpoodluct sales to customers is recognized whereatients of the sale have been delivered.
During the Company's six months ended June 30,,20d®2l not provide for rights of return to custera on product sales, except for
situations where the product did not meet
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METABOLIX, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Con tinued)
(In thousands, except for share and per share amots)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cornihued)

technical specifications. The Company modifiecpitsduct return policy prospectively during its fisquarter ending September 30, 2012 to
allow discretion in accepting returns during a permf sixty days after product delivery. Until safént experience is developed on which to

base an estimate of product returns, the Compafieysdecognition of product revenue and relatedscostil the later of the sixty day period

or the customer payment has been received. As céiiber 31, 2012, the Company deferred product tevand associated cost of product

revenue of $786 and $219, respectively, undemlisy.

Fees to license the Company's proprietadyligensed technologies are recognized only &ftén the license period has commenced and
the technology has been delivered. Royalty revésuecognized when it becomes determinable anéatability is reasonably assured;
otherwise the Company recognizes royalty revenwa ueceipt of payment.

The Company follows authoritative guidanocerevenue recognition for multiple-element arrangets entered into or materially
modified on or after January 1, 2011. The guidaaroends the criteria for separating and allocatorgsitieration in a multiple-element
arrangement by modifying the fair value requirersdat revenue recognition and eliminating the usthe residual method. The fair value of
deliverables under the arrangement may be derigied) @ "best estimate of selling price" if vendpesific objective evidence and thipérty
evidence is not available. Deliverables under thengement will be separate units of accountingyigied (i) a delivered item has value to
customer on a standalone basis; and (ii) if thermement includes a general right of return redatiivthe delivered item, delivery or
performance of the undelivered item is considerathg@ble and substantially within the Company's iint

The Company recognizes funds received ftontractual research services and developmentcesrand from government grants as
revenue. These contracts and grants are considaredgoing major and central operation of the Camisebusiness. For government grants,
revenue is earned as research expenses relatesldgceaints are incurred.

Research and Development Expenses

All costs associated with internal reseamtl development as well as research and develdmaeisices conducted for others are
expensed as incurred. Research and developmemsegpmclude direct costs for salaries, employeefits, subcontractors, facility related
expenses, depreciation and stock-based compensalided to employees and non-employees involvédarCompany's research and
development. Costs related to revempueducing grants are also recorded as researcHessdopment expenses. Prior to the terminatiohe
Telles joint venture in February 2012, the Compmpy'rtion of the costs incurred by ADM relatinghe pre-commercial manufacturing of
Mirel were netted against amounts due from ADM eewbrded as due from related party on the Comp&ayésice sheets.

In 2012, the Company entered into an aearent with Antibioticos S.A. for demonstration puation of biopolymers at the Antibiotic
facility in Leon, Spain, with the intention, upoacgessful completion of the demonstration phasenter into a commercial manufacturing
agreement under which Antibioticos would providi teanufacturing of our PHA biopolymers. During Z)the Company made payment:
$2,258 to Antibioticos for facility improvementsamufacturing equipment
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METABOLIX, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Con tinued)
(In thousands, except for share and per share amots)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cornihued)

and for raw materials related to the demonstrgtimaluction. These costs were recorded as reseadctiesrelopment expense since it is not
certain that these costs will have a future benefihe Company beyond the current demonstratiogemgent. Costs associated with future
manufacturing demonstration batches of PHA biope@swill be recorded as research and developmeeinse until the product produced
meets commercial specifications when it will beitdjzed as saleable inventory.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expenses

The Company's selling, general and adnmatise expense line item includes costs for sadasenployee benefits, facilities expenses,
consulting fees, travel expenses, depreciationresgse and office related expenses incurred to supposelling and administrative
operations of the Company.

Intellectual Property Costs

The Company includes all costs associaitftive prosecution and maintenance of patentsmwiélling, general and administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of opegation

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based cosgiiEm costs in accordance with the accountingdstals for stock-based compensation,
which require that all share-based payments to @yepk be recognized in the statement of operaliassd on their fair values.
Compensation cost is based on the grant-datedaievof the award, adjusted for estimated forfeguand is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the period during which an employeedgiired to provide service in exchange for the dw8@ee Note 12 for a description of the
types of stock-based awards granted, the compensatpense related to such awards and detail dfyelosed awards outstanding.

Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Share

Basic net income (loss) per share is coetpby dividing net income (loss) by the weighte@rage number of common shares
outstanding. Common stock equivalents include stgtlons and warrants. Diluted net loss per shaowimputed by dividing net income by
the weighted-average number of dilutive commoneshautstanding during the period. Diluted shardstanding is calculated by adding to
the weighted shares outstanding any potential $ueid) shares of common stock from outstanding siptibns and warrants based on the
treasury stock method. In periods when a net bssgorted, all common stock equivalents are excliftbm the calculation because they
would have an anti-dilutive effect, meaning theslper share would be reduced. Therefore, in pexidas a loss is reported there is no
difference in basic and dilutive loss per share.

F-13




Table of Contents

METABOLIX, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Con tinued)
(In thousands, except for share and per share amots)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cornihued)

Shares used to calculate diluted earniegsipare for the three years ended December 32, 2011 and 2010, respectively, are shown
below:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Numerator:
Net income (loss $ 3,63( $ (38,78%) $ (38,807
Denominator:
Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding 34,217,29 31,257,37 26,773,75
Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options 62,48! — —
Dilutive potential common shar 62,481 — —

Shares used in calculating diluted earnings pt

share 34,279,77 31,257,37 26,773,75

The number of shares of potentially dilatsommon stock related to options and warrantswileag excluded from the calculation of
dilutive shares since the inclusion of such sharasld be anti-dilutive for the years ended Decen8igr2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively,
are shown below:

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Options 5,579,04. 3,858,688  3,246,07!

Warrants 4,08¢ 4,08¢ 4,08¢
Total 5,583,121 3,862,77. 3,250,16!

Income Taxes

The Company follows the accounting guidameeccounting for income taxes which requires geémn of deferred tax assets and
liabilities for the expected future tax consequanzievents that have been included in the findustaements or tax returns. Under this
method, deferred tax assets and liabilities arerdehed based on the difference between the fiahatatement and tax basis of assets and
liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect foe year in which the differences are expecteduerse. A valuation allowance is provided to
reduce the deferred tax asset to a level whicherilkely than not, will be realized. See Note 1Bffather discussion of income taxes.

Recent Accounting Standards Changes

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting 8tads Board ("FASB") issued an accounting standapdste that eliminates the option to
present components of other comprehensive incomarasf the statement of changes in equity andireg an entity to present items of net
income and other comprehensive income either inglescontinuous statement of comprehensive income two separate but consecutive
statements. This guidance also requires an entjpyesent on the face of the financial statemesttassification adjustments from other
comprehensive income to net income. This guidaecaine effective for fiscal years beginning aftec&maber 15, 2011. In December 2011,
the
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METABOLIX, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Con tinued)
(In thousands, except for share and per share amots)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cornihued)

FASB issued an accounting standards update thatsdife presentation requirement for other commshie income reclassifications on the
face of the financial statements. The Company adbitite provisions of the guidance in its first qermof 2012 and elected to present items of
net income and other comprehensive income in tywarsge but consecutive statements.

3. Significant Collaborations

The Company follows the accounting guidafecesollaborative arrangements which require teatain transactions between
collaborators be recorded in the income statemerither a gross or net basis, depending on thexcteaistics of the collaboration
relationship, and provides for enhanced disclos@iellaborative relationships. The Company evalsdts collaborative agreements for
proper income statement classification based onalere of the underlying activity. If paymentsatod from collaborative partners are not
within the scope of other authoritative accountiterature, the income statement classificationtlier payments is based on a reasonable,
rational analogy to authoritative accounting litara that is applied in a consistent manner. Dutliregthree years ended December 31, 2012,
the Company had one significant collaboration ayemment with Archer Daniels Midland Company wheréi®y Company received payments
and applied revenue recognition accounting guidamt¢iee payments received and recorded correspgraists as operating expenses.

We are not currently participating in amji@borative arrangements. Our historical strategycollaborative arrangements has been to
retain substantial participation in the future emmic value of our technology while receiving cutreash payments to offset research and
development costs and working capital needs. By tzdure, our collaborative agreements have beempéex, containing multiple elements
covering a variety of present and future activities

ADM Collaboration

From 2004 through 2011, the Company deeslggnd began commercialization of its PHA biopolgtirough a technology alliance
and subsequent commercial alliance with ADM Poly@erporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ADM, ooiethe largest agricultural
processors in the world. The Commercial Alliancedgment between Metabolix and ADM Polymer speciffeddterms and structure of the
alliance. The agreement governed the activitiesadoigations of the parties to commercialize PHAgdulymers, which have been marketed
under the brand names Mirel™ and Mvera™. Theseitiet included the establishment of a joint veatoompany, Telles, LLC ("Telles"),
market and sell PHA biopolymers, the constructiba manufacturing facility capable of producing Ihlion pounds of material annually
(the "Commercial Manufacturing Facility"), the lieging of technology to Telles and to ADM, and tbeducting of various research,
development, manufacturing, sales and marketingpoonding and administrative services by the partie

Telles was formed to: (i) serve as the camuial entity to establish and develop the comna¢roiarket for PHA biopolymers, and
conduct the marketing and sales in accordancethatlyoals of the commercial alliance, (ii) assisthe coordination and integration of the
manufacturing, compounding and marketing activjtée® (iii) administer and account for financialttees on behalf of the parties. Metabolix
and ADM each had a 50% ownership and voting inténegelles.
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Under the Commercial Alliance Agreement ADMs permitted, under limited circumstances, tmbeate the alliance if a change in
circumstances that was not reasonably within ti¢robof ADM made the anticipated financial retdram the project inadequate or too
uncertain. The agreement provided that, upon teatioin by ADM due to a change in circumstances, Bi@ta would be permitted to
continue to produce and sell PHA biopolymers, ambivAwould be required to perform manufacturing seesgi for the Company for a period
of time following the termination (subject to centpayment obligations to ADM). On January 9, 208PM notified Metabolix that it was
terminating the commercial alliance effective Feloyu8, 2012. ADM had undertaken a strategic revoéws business investments and
activities and made the decision to focus resousaéside of Telles. As the basis for the decisbM indicated to the Company that the
projected financial returns from the alliance w&e uncertain.

The Commercial Alliance Agreement with ADidhited the rights of both ADM and Metabolix to vowith other parties or alone in
developing or commercializing certain PHAs produttedugh fermentation. These exclusivity obligai@nded upon termination of the
alliance. Also, upon termination of the alliancegtigbolix intellectual property licenses to ADM Puolgr and Telles ended, with Metabolix
retaining all rights to its intellectual properDM retained its Commercial Manufacturing Facilibcated in Clinton, lowa, previously used
to produce PHA biopolymers for Telles.

Under the Technology Alliance and Optiorrédgment and Commercial Alliance Agreement, varfmagnents were made to Metabolix
by ADM as shown in the table below. All of these/pents were recorded as deferred revenue on the&uyis balance sheet and were
expected to be recognized on a straight line lmags a period of approximately ten years in whicatabolix would fulfill its contractual
obligations during the Commercial Phase of the Cencial Alliance Agreement.

Upfront paymen $ 3,00C
Milestone payment 2,00(¢
Support payment 22,05(
Cost sharing payments for pre-commercial manufaxgyslant

construction and operatio 11,83t
Total $ 38,88¢

The Company had no further performancegalibns in connection with the commercial alliaaéter its termination, and as a result, the
entire $38,885 of deferred revenue was recognigetido Company during its fiscal quarter ended M&th2012.

After termination of the Commercial Alliamé&greement, the parties entered into a Settledgrdement in which the parties agreed to
specific terms related to the winding up and dissoh of Telles. Under this Settlement Agreemengtaiolix purchased certain assets of the
joint venture for $2,982 including Telles's entingentory, exclusive and perpetual rights to allTefles's trademarks, and all prod
registrations, certifications and approvals forl@gs PHA biopolymers. Pursuant to the Settlemgreément, ADM relinquished any claims
with respect to certain co-funded equipment presipacquired by Metabolix and situated at locatiotieer than the Clinton, lowa
Commercial
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Manufacturing Facility, and Metabolix and Tellesiveal any rights to post-termination manufacturimgl &rmentation services under the
Commercial Alliance Agreement.

Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, $glied to ADM an amount equal to the aggregate bakinces of Telles totaling $3,778 on
the date of the Settlement Agreement, minus $1@0ned by Telles to settle any remaining tradegattions. The remaining trade obligations
of Telles at the date of execution of the Settledgreement did not exceed $100. In the eventAlaY is required to repay to Telles or to
pay to any creditor of Telles any amounts incluthethe $2,982 purchase price or the $3,678 diseibto ADM by Telles pursuant to the
Settlement Agreement, Metabolix is obligated tontmirse ADM in an amount equal to 50% of such pays)gmovided that in no event
would the amount to be so paid by Metabolix exdbedotal of the $2,982 purchase price and the@3J@lles cash required to be so repaid
or reimbursed by ADM. In February 2013, ADM notiithe Company that Telles had been formally dissbland that no third party creditor
trade obligations had been paid. As a result, th@@any believes that it is no longer contingeridiple for any third party obligations
stemming from its former ADM collaboration.

4. Investments

Investments consist of the following:

Amortized Unrealized Market
Cost Gain (Loss) Value
December 31, 201
Shor-term investment
Government sponsored enterpri $ 29,18 $ 12 $§ — $ 29,20
Long-term investment
Governmer-sponsored enterpris 2,501 1 — 2,50¢
Total $ 3169% $ 13 $ — $ 31,70¢
December 31, 201.
Shor-term investment
Corporate dek $ 2985 $ 13 $ (1) $ 29,86¢
Governmer-sponsored enterpris 25,70¢ 5 (2) 25,71.
Long-term investment
Governmer-sponsored enterpris 1,50:¢ — — 1,50:
Total $ 57,066 $ 18 $ (3) $ 57,08:

The average maturity of our marketable gtes available-for-sale as of December 31, 20i@ 2011 was four and seven months,
respectively.
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Property and equipment consisted of thiefiohg:

Year ended
December 31
2012 2011

Equipment $ 5,151 $ 5,054
Furniture and fixture 227 232
Leasehold improvemen 2,641 2,56¢
Software 381 34¢
Total property and equipment, at ¢ 8,40( 8,20(
Less: Accumulated depreciati (7,042 (5,929
Property and equipment, r $ 1,35¢ $ 2,27¢

Depreciation expense for the years endextdber 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 was $1,298, $hb80H1,647 respectively. The Company
had no equipment under capital leases as of Deaedih@012 or 2011.

6. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

Year ended
December 31
2012 2011

Employee compensation and bene $ 2,37¢ $ 1,74(
Professional service 301 18t
Intellectual propert 10E 24C
Other 734 1,40¢
Total accrued expens $ 3,51¢ $ 3,57«

7. Commitments and Contingencies
Leases

The Company rents its facilities under agieg leases, which expire through May 2014. Rgragiments under operating leases for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 W24 $1,808 and $1,674, respectively. The dedaent liability recorded on tk
Company's balance sheet at December 31, 2012 dridirgfludes the unamortized balance of the landlmrdntive payments and the
cumulative difference between actual facility lepagments and lease expense recognized ratably
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over the operating lease period. At December 3122the Company's future minimum payments requiredker operating leases are as
follows:

Minimum

Year ended December 31 lease paymen
2013 $ 1,744
2014 55C
2015 —
2016 —
2017 and thereaftt —

Total $ 2,29¢

Litigation

On February 17, 2012, a purported sharehaldss action, Hilary Coyne v. Metabolix, Incictrard P. Eno, and Joseph Hill, Civil
Action 1:12-cv-10318 (the "class action™), wasdila the United States District Court for the Digtof Massachusetts, naming the Company
and certain officers of the Company as defenddifits.class action alleges that the Company maderialatgsrepresentations and/or
omissions of material fact in the Company's disales during the period from March 10, 2010 throitgldanuary 12, 2012 press release
announcing that ADM had given notice of terminatadrihe Telles joint venture for PHA biopolymerd,ia violation of Sections 10(b) and
20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act and Rule 10bRg class action seeks certification as a cleésra compensatory damages in an
unspecified amount, plaintiff's costs and attorhégess, and unspecified equitable or injunctivéefelhe plaintiff filed an amended compla
on October 15, 2012 that supersedes the initiaptaimt and demands identical relief based on suakistly similar allegations. On
December 14, 2012, the defendants filed a motiatigmiss the amended complaint, which plaintiffpaged, and on which the court has not
yet ruled.

On March 7, 2012, a purported derivatiwedait, Childs v. Kouba et al., Civil Action 12-08%the "derivative action"), was filed in
Massachusetts Superior Court for Middlesex Coumtyhehalf of the Company against members of thefaoyls Board of Directors for
alleged breaches of their fiduciary duties and thasea nearly identical set of alleged facts aseatasserted in the class action. The derivative
action seeks compensatory damages in an unspeaifiednt, plaintiff's costs and attorneys' fees, @amgpecified equitable or injunctive
relief. The parties in the derivative action filedd the court granted a joint motion to stay thévdéve action until after resolution of the
anticipated motion to dismiss in the class action.

We are currently unable to assess the pilityeof loss or estimate a range of potentiakla$ any, associated with these matters because
they are at an early stage.

8. Related Party Transactions
Tepha Inc.

During 1999 and 2003, the Company entarerisublicense agreements with Tepha Inc. ("Tepha'jublicense technology to Tepha.
The Company's directors, Matthew Strobeck and
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Anthony J. Sinskey, serve on the Board of Directdr§epha. The agreements with Tepha contain pimssfor sublicense maintenance fees
to be paid to the Company upon Tepha achievingicefinancing milestones and for product relatetéstones. Under the agreement, the
Company also receives royalties on net sales efisied products and sublicensing revenues recew@&éfha, subject to a minimum paym
each year.

The Company engaged in various transactidtis Tepha, and recognized license and royaltgmees of $149, $444 and $122, from
Tepha for the years ended December 31, 2012, 20112010, respectively. The Company had outstangicgjvable balances of $75 at
December 31, 2012. There were no Tepha receivatdates at December 31, 2011.

ADM

The Company's former collaborative parBiM made a $5,000 investment in the Company asgfate redeemable convertible
preferred stock issuance in January 2006. Conduwwigimthe Company's initial public offering, ADMupchased 535,714 shares of the
Company's stock in a private placement. ADM madeua payments to the Company under the collab@agreements signed during 2004
and 2006. See Note 3 for further discussion reggrdollaborative agreements with ADM. The Compaag bn outstanding receivable
balance of $203 due from ADM at December 31, 20dtich was recorded as due from related partieheronsolidated balance sheet. No
receivables remain outstanding with ADM at Decen8ier2012.

Telles

Telles was a limited liability company, fieed and equally owned by the Company and ADM, wihiak intended to: (i) serve as the
commercial entity to establish and develop the ceneial market for Mirel, and conduct the marketargl sales in accordance with the goals
of the commercial alliance, (ii) assist in the aipation and integration of the manufacturing, coonpding and marketing activities, and
(iii) administer and account for financial mattersbehalf of the parties. The Company and ADM daah 50% ownership and voting interest
in Telles. The Company had an outstanding recedvab$108 due from Telles at December 31, 2011redsivables remain outstanding with
Telles at December 31, 2012. The Company recogtiizeaise and royalty revenue of $3 for the yearendecember 31, 2011. No license
and royalty revenue from Telles was recognizedthree 2010 or 2012.

Telles was formally dissolved in Februa@j 2.
9. Preferred Stock

The Company's certificate of incorporatian,amended and restated, authorizes it to isste%000,000 shares of $0.01 par value
preferred stock. As of December 31, 2012 and 284 referred stock was issued or outstanding.
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Common Stock Issuances

During May 2011, the Company completed llipwoffering of 7,130,000 shares of its commorcktat a price of $7.25 per share. Net
proceeds were $49,333 after deducting underwriisgounts, commissions and offering costs of $2,36@ Company intends to use the
proceeds from the offering for working capital attler general corporate purposes.

Warrants

In connection with signing a lease agrednmeB004, the Company issued the landlord warrampsirchase 4,086 shares of common
stock at an exercise price of $3.30 per sharevildreants expire ten years from the lease term cameraeent date. The fair value of these
warrants is immaterial. At December 31, 2012, theagants were all outstanding and exercisable.

11. Shareholder Rights Plan

On July 7, 2009, the Company adopted aeblndder Rights Plan, the purpose of which is, amathgr things, to enhance the Board's
ability to protect shareholder interests and taiemhat shareholders receive fair treatment irethent any coercive takeover attempt of the
Company is made in the future. The ShareholdertRiBlan could make it more difficult for a thirdrppato acquire, or could discourage a
third party from acquiring, the Company or a labjgck of the Company's common stock.

In connection with the adoption of the &enlder Rights Plan, the Board of Directors of @empany declared a dividend distributior
one preferred stock purchase right (a "Right")dach outstanding share of common stock to sharetsotd record as of the close of business
on July 8, 2009. The Rights currently are not eisatde and are attached to and trade with theamdsig shares of common stock. Under the
Shareholder Rights Plan, the Rights become exdieisica person becomes an "acquiring person” lopiging 15% or more of the
outstanding shares of common stock or if a persomeences a tender offer that would result in tleas@n owning 15% or more of the
common stock. If a person becomes an "acquiringgmet each holder of a Right (other than the adegiiperson) would be entitled to
purchase, at the then-current exercise price, sustber of shares of the Company's preferred stdnkhnare equivalent to shares of common
stock having twice the exercise price of the Ritfithe Company is acquired in a merger or othesifess combination transaction after any
such event, each holder of a Right would then ligleshto purchase, at the then-current exercigzepshares of the acquiring company's
common stock having a value of twice the exercigeef the Right.

On February 6, 2012, the Company enteredaretter agreement (the "Schuler Agreement"h d#ck W. Schuler, Renate Schuler and
the Schuler Family Foundation, a tax-exempt privgterating foundation of which Jack W. Schuler Rathate Schuler serve as two of the
three directors (collectively, the "Schuler Stocklees™). The Schuler Stockholders may be deemédte aggregate beneficial ownership of
up to 5,091,295 shares, or approximately 14.9%h@fCompany's outstanding common stock, par vadugl$per share (the "common
stock™).

Pursuant to the Schuler Agreement, the I8cl8tockholders have made certain representatindsovenants regarding ownership,
voting support arrangements, standstill arrangesnamd rights of
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first refusal. In exchange for these representatand covenants, the Company agreed to amend énelttider Rights Plan to allow the
Schuler Stockholders, under certain circumstartogacrease their beneficial ownership up to 19.98%e outstanding common stock
without becoming Acquiring Persons (as definechmmRights Agreement).

On February 6, 2012, contemporaneously thighexecution of the Schuler Agreement, the Comppamended the Shareholder Rights
Plan to provide that, generally, so long as theufetStockholders and their respective affiliated associates do not at any time have Ca
Intent (as defined in the Shareholder Rights Pldagy may acquire additional shares of common stattilout becoming acquiring persons
under the Rights Plan, provided that their collextieneficial ownership does not at any time equalkceed 20% of the then outstanding
shares of common stock.

12. Stock-Based Compensation

The Company adopted a stock plan in 1985'(1995 Plan"), which provided for the grantingrafentive stock options, nonqualified
stock options, stock awards, and opportunitiesa&erdirect purchases of stock, to employees, offiairectors and consultants of the
Company. In June 2005, the 1995 Plan was termiraaiddhe Company adopted a new plan (the "2005PIdo further grants or awards
were subsequently made under the 1995 Plan. Adb807,679 options were awarded from the 1995,Rlad as of December 31, 2012,
86,619 of these options remain outstanding andb&idor future exercise and continue to be govermgthe terms of the 1995 Plan.

The 2005 Plan provided for the grantingnokntive stock options, nonqualified stock optiosteck awards, and opportunities to make
direct purchases of stock, to employees, officdirectors and consultants of the Company. In Novam2006, the 2005 Plan was terminated
and the Company adopted a new plan (the "2006 PInn"further grants or awards were subsequentlyenader the 2005 Plan. A total of
1,619,134 options were awarded from the 2005 Rlad,as of December 31, 2012, 250,046 of thesergptemain outstanding and eligible
for future exercise and continue to be governethbyterms of the 2005 Plan.

The 2006 Plan provides for the grantingnoéntive stock options, nonqualified stock optiosteck appreciation rights, deferred stock
awards, restricted stock awards, unrestricted sd@ckds, cash-based awards and dividend equivddgrs. The 2006 Plan states that not
more than 10,000,000 shares shall be issued uhelgian. A total of 7,022,912 options have beenrdedfrom the 2006 Plan and as of
December 31, 2012, 5,242,377 of these options remastanding and eligible for future exercise.

Options granted under the Plans generaky katably over periods of two to four years frina date of hire for new employees, or date
of award for existing employees, or date of comneement of services with the Company for nonemployaed generally expire ten years
from the date of issuance. The Company's politg issue new shares upon the exercise of stockropti
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A summary of the activity related to theusds of common stock covered by outstanding opfiolitsys:

Remaining
Number of Weighted Average Contractual Term Aggregate
Shares Exercise Price (in years) Intrinsic value

Balance at December 31, 20 3,858,68! $ 10.3¢
Grantec 2,529,701 2.14
Exercisec (12,436 1.6F
Cancellec (797,90 10.2(
Balance at December 31, 20 5,579,04. 6.6¢ 7.3t $ —
Vested and expected to vest a

December 31, 201 5,349,77! 6.8< 7.31 —
Exerciseable at December 31,

2012 2,954,37 9.41 5.8¢ —

The weighted average grant date fair vpkreshare of options granted during fiscal yead2@011, and 2010 was $1.46, $5.02 and
$8.08, respectively. The total intrinsic value pfions exercised was $15, $81 and $2,439 for thesyended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively.

A summary of information about the sharesoznmon stock covered by outstanding and exerldsaiitions under the option plans at
December 31, 2012 follows:

Stock Options Outstanding Stock Options Exercisable
Weighted
average Weighted Weighted
remaining average average
Range of Number contractual life  exercise price  Number of exercise price
exercise prices of shares (in years) per share shares per share
$1.55- 1.55 960,00( 9.72 $ 1.5 120,00( $ 1.5t
1.64- 2.46 683,06 6.81 1.8¢ 289,38¢ 1.7C
2.66- 2.66 936,82! 9.07 2.6€ 176,95: 2.6€
2.72- 8.25 975,32¢ 7.0t 6.1z 664,60: 6.3(C
8.69-11.22 1,026,53 6.3€ 9.84 816,09! 9.9¢
11.75- 24.97 997,28! 5.2¢ 15.9¢ 887,33¢ 16.1%
5,579,04. 7.3¢ 6.6¢ 2,954,37 9.41

Expense Information for Employee Stock Option Award

The Company recognized stock-based comfiensaxpense, related to employee stock option dsyanf $3,825, $4,621 and $4,663 for
the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2€dkatively. At December 31, 2012, there was apprately $5,638 of pre-tax stock-
based compensation expense; net of estimatedtfodsj related to unvested awards not yet recodnidech is expected to be recognized
over a weighted average period of 2.23 years.
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For the years ended December 31, 2012, a0d 2010, the Company determined the fair valustak options using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model with the following assumptidias option grants, respectively:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Expected dividend yiel — — —
Risk-free rate 0.67%- 1.15% 0.88%- 2.38% 1.41%- 2.59%
Expected option term (in

years) 5.3-5.5 5.5-5.6 5.4-5.6
Volatility 84%- 87% 77%- 80% 79%- 80%

For the year ended December 31, 2012, tmepany determined its volatility assumption base@ctual market price fluctuations
experienced during its trading history. For thergemded December 31, 2011 and 2010 expectedliplats estimated based on the
Company's historical volatility benchmarked agathsthistorical volatilities of a peer group of dem public companies. Due to the
Company's limited trading history prior to 2012 fBompany believed that this approach providedtiaa@i information about future stock
price movements when compared to analyzing theriist volatility of the Company on its own.

The risk-free interest rate used for eaemyis equal to the U.S. Treasury yield curveffact at the time of grant for instruments with a
term similar to the expected life of the relatediap

For the years ended December 31, 2012, a0d 2010, the expected term of the options iscbapen evaluation of historical and
expected future exercise behavior.

The stock price volatility and expectednsrutilized in the calculation involve managemebést estimates at that time, both of which
impact the fair value of the option calculated uritte Black-Scholes methodology and, ultimatelg, éipense that will be recognized over
the life of the option. The accounting standardstock-based compensation requires that the Compeaagnize compensation expense for
only the portion of options that are expected tstvEherefore, the Company has estimated expectégitlires of stock options for the grants
valued. In developing a forfeiture rate estiméte, Company considered its historical experiencesatahl forfeitures for the year. The
Company will continue to evaluate its forfeituréeras compared to the actual number of forfeitimdsture periods to determine if
adjustments to compensation expense may be required

Expense Information for Non-employee Stock Option wvards

During the years ended December 31, 208112840, the Company granted stock options to pged,500, and 3,500 shares of
common stock, respectively, to non-employee coastst No stock options were awarded to non-empkgeeng the year ended
December 31, 2012, and all remaining non-employeeds were cancelled in early 2012 in connectidh Wie Company's restructuring.
Compensation expense related to non-employee appi@viously awarded were recognized over a peariddur years and vested quarterly,
contingent upon future services being providedheydonsultants to the Company. The amount of nople@mae stock compensation expense
recorded by the Company for each of the three yeraated December 31, 2012 was insignificant.
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The fair value of each unvested option tgdno non-employees was revalued at year end tisinBlack-Scholes option pricing model
with the following assumptions:

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010
Expected dividend yiel — —
Risk-free rate 1.89%- 3.47% 2.53%- 3.84%
Expected option term (in yeal 10 10
Volatility 76%- 78% 79%- 80%

13. Income Taxes

There is no provision for income taxes lseathe Company has incurred tax losses sincetinoeprhe reported amount of income tax
expense for the years differs from the amountwmatid result from applying domestic federal statytiax rates to pretax losses primarily
because of changes in valuation allowance. Sigmificomponents of the Company's net deferred setaare as follows:

December 31

2012 2011
Net operating loss carryforwa $ 72,01¢ $ 61,26¢
Capitalization of research and development expe 2,76: 3,60¢
Credit carryforward: 7,024 6,762
Depreciatior 2,60: 2,66¢
Nonr-Qualified Stock Option 4,21z 3,86¢
Deferred Revenu 417 15,24
Other temporary differenct 1,541 1,261
Total deferred tax asse 90,571 94,67:
Valuation allowanct (90,577  (94,677)
Net deferred tax asse $ — $ —

The items accounting for the differencensstn the income tax benefit computed at the fedgatlitory rate of 34% and the provision
income taxes were as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Federal income tax at statutory federal 34.(% 34.% 34.(%
State taxe 7.8% 5.C% 4.1%
Permanent difference 19.6% 249% (1.59%
Tax credits (10.5% 2.4% 2.C%
State rate change on deferred balal 3.1% 1.4% (6.5)%
Expiration of net operating losses and cre 49.2% (1.6©% (0.39%
Other 9.8% 1.C% (3.0%
Change in valuation allowan (113.0% (39.9)% (28.8%
Total 0.0% 0.0% 0.0(%
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The Company follows the accounting guidaiecencome taxes including guidance, which add¥esccounting for uncertainty in
income taxes. This guidance prescribes a thregholtie financial statement recognition and measerg of a tax position taken or expected
to be taken in a tax return. It also provides gndaon de-recognition, classification, interest padalties, accounting in interim periods,
disclosures and transitions. The Company had naiatagecorded for any unrecognized tax benefitsf &ecember 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010.

The tax years 2009 through 2012 remain ¢p@&xamination by major taxing jurisdictions toialinthe Company is subject, which are
primarily in the U.S. Additionally, the Company che audited for any loss year up to three yeaes #fe year in which the loss is utilized to
offset taxable income. This would include loss gganior to 2009.

The Company's policy is to record estimatderest and penalties related to uncertain tasitjpos as income tax expense. As of
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company tvadcrued interest or penalties recorded relatedi¢ertain tax positions.

At December 31, 2012, the Company had petating loss carryforwards (NOLs) for federal atate income tax purposes of $211,016
and $148,611, respectively. Included in the fedanal state net operating loss carryforwards is@apmrately $19,213 of deductions related to
the exercise of stock options subsequent to thptamoof amended accounting guidance related ckdbased compensation. This amount
represents an excess tax benefit as defined umel@ntended accounting guidance related to stoddasmpensation and has not been
recorded as a deferred tax asset. The Compangtingxiederal and state net operating loss camydaods begin to expire in 2013. The
Company also had available research and developenettits for federal and state income tax purposepproximately $4,502 and $3,577,
respectively. The federal and state research avelajament credits will begin to expire in 2014 &6, respectively. As of December 31,
2012, the Company also had available investmentriadits for state income tax purposes of $100ckvhiso begin to expire in 2013.
Management of the Company has evaluated the pesitid negative evidence bearing upon the realigabflits deferred tax assets, which
are comprised principally of net operating lossyfarwards and research and development creditdebUtine applicable accounting stande
management has considered the Company's histéogs#s and concluded that it is more likely thanthat the Company will not recognize
the benefits of federal and state deferred taxt&s&ecordingly, a full valuation allowance has bestablished against the deferred tax as

Utilization of the net operating loss ardaarch and development credit carryforwards maubgect to a substantial annual limitation
under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Cod®86 Hue to ownership change limitations that haxsoed previously or that could occur
in the future. These ownership changes may lingitatmount of net operating loss and research arelaj@went credit carryforwards that can
be utilized annually to offset future taxable in@and tax, respectively. The Company completedsaluation of its ownership changes
through December 31, 2011 and has determinedtth®tOL and R&D credit carryforwards originating onbefore that date are not subjec
an annual limitation under Section 382. The Comgaas/not currently completed an evaluation of owiigrchanges through December 31,
2012. To the extent an ownership change occutseiriuture, the net operating loss and credit carvydrds may be subject to limitation.

No additional provision has been made f@.lihcome taxes related to the undistributed agmof the wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Metabolix, Inc. or for unrecognized deferred taabillities for
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13. Income Taxes (Continued)

temporary differences related to investments irsgliries. As such, earnings are expected to lrageently reinvested, the investments are

essentially permanent in duration, or the Compas/doncluded that no additional tax liability valise as a result of the distribution of such

earnings. A liability could arise if amounts arstdbuted by such subsidiaries or if such subsigaare ultimately disposed. It is not practical

to estimate the additional income taxes relatquetnanently reinvested earnings or the basis diffegs related to investment in subsidiaries.
Unremitted earnings at December 31, 2012 and Deeefith 2011 approximated $252 and $128, respegtivel

14. Employee Benefits

The Company maintains a 401(k) savings plamhich substantially all of its regular U.S. eloyees are eligible to participate.
Participants may contribute up to 60% of their aimompensation to the plan, subject to eligibitéguirements and annual IRS limitations.
The Company's plan provides for a matching contidioun common stock of up to 4.5% of a participatdtal compensation dependent upon
the level of participant contributions made durihg plan year. Pursuant to this plan, the Compsswyed 179,336, 68,558 and 35,151 shares
of common stock during the twelve months ended Bées 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, anorded $408, $529 and $443,
respectively, of related expense. Company coniohatare fully vested upon issuance.

15. Fair Value Measurements

The Company has certain financial assewrded at fair value which have been classifiedeag!l 1or 2 within the fair value hierarchy
as described in the accounting standards for &irevmeasurements. Fair value is the price thatdumeireceived from the sale of an asset or
the price paid to transfer a liability in an orgetlansaction between independent market partitipanthe measurement date. Fair values
determined by Level 1 inputs utilize observableadatch as quoted prices in active markets for id@nhstruments. Fair values determined
by Level 2 inputs utilize data points other thawotgal prices in active markets that are observatiieredirectly or indirectly. Fair values
determined by Level 3 inputs utilize unobservatdedgoints in which there is little or no marketajavhich require the reporting entity to
develop its own assumptions. The fair value hidnatevel is determined by the lowest level of sfigaint input.

The Company's financial assets classifielevel 2 have been initially valued at the tratisagprice and subsequently valued typically
utilizing third party pricing services. Because @@mpany's investment portfolio may include se@sithat do not always trade on a daily
basis, the pricing services use many observabl&eharputs to determine value including reportabdeles, benchmark yields and
benchmarking of like securities. The Company vaéiddhe prices provided by the third party pricéegvices by reviewing their pricing
methods and obtaining market values from othelirggisources. After completing the validation prases, the Company did not adjust or
override any fair value measurements provided bgatpricing services as of December 31, 2012 ahd.20
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15. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The tables below present information altbbetCompany's assets that are measured at fag vala recurring basis as of December 31,
2012 and December 31, 2011 and indicate the fhievasierarchy of the valuation techniques utilizedletermine such fair value.

Fair value measurements at reporting date usin

Quoted prices in Significant
active markets for Significant other unobservable Balance as o
identical assets observable inputs inputs December 31,
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2012
Cash equivalent:
Money market fund $ 11,157 $ — 3 — 3 11,157
Government securitie — 2,01 — 2,01t
Shor-term investments
Government securitie — 29,20 — 29,20
Long-term investments
Government securitie — 2,50¢ — 2,50¢
$ 11,157 $ 33,72 $ — $ 44,88
Fair value measurements at reporting date usin
Quoted prices in Significant
active markets for Significant other unobservable Balance as o
identical assets observable inputs inputs December 31,
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2011
Cash equivalent:
Money market fund $ 18,26: $ — 3 — 3 18,26:
Shor-term investments
Corporate dek — 29,86¢ — 29,86¢
Government securitie — 25,71 — 25,71
Long-term investments
Government securitie — 1,50:¢ — 1,50z
Total $ 18,26: $ 57,08. $ — $ 75,34

16. U.S. Department of Energy Grant

In 2011, the Company entered into a mwgty$6.0 million grant agreement entitl@knewable Enhanced Feedstocks for Advanced
Biofuels and Bioproductwith the U.S. Department of Energy for the develeptof switchgrass. The Company will use the fuadserform
research to enhance the yield of bio-based prodoicigower, or fuels made from switchgrass to poeddenser biomass and other products
that can be further processed to make fuels sublitasol, chemicals such as propylene, and othé&riats to improve the economic
competitiveness of future biorefineries. Continueckipt of grant proceeds is contingent upon ttaélavility of government appropriated
funds and the Company's ability to make substapti@jress towards meeting the objectives of thadwidne Company will recognize
revenue from the grant over the term of the agre¢me it incurs related research and developmests @nd provided it meets its prorated
cost-sharing obligation of
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16. U.S. Department of Energy Grant (Continued)

approximately $3.9 million. The Company may electdtain rights to inventions it conceives or reghito practice in the performance of
work under the award, subject to certain rightthefU.S. Government.

During the years ended December 31, 20812811, the Company recognized $1,578 and $51&vienue related to this grant,
respectively.

17. Inventory

During the quarter ended March 31, 201€ Gbmpany acquired raw material and finished gaogantory of biopolymer from Telles,
a result of the termination of the joint ventureghwADM. As of December 31, 2012, inventory congisté the following:

December 31, 201,

Raw materials $ 64C
Work-in-process 2
Finished good 2,56:

Total inventory $ 3,20

The Company did not own inventory at Decengi, 2011.
18. Restructuring

In connection with the Telles terminationthe first quarter of 2012, the Company restrrguits biopolymers business and downsized
its operations to more appropriately align its 20L8iness priorities and strategic plans with atroash and investment resources. The
Company recognized $920 of restructuring chargesglits fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, Hevig:

Original
Charges and (Reversals) or Amounts Paid Amounts
Amounts Adjustments through Accrued at
Accrued to Charges December 31, 2012 December 31, 2012
Employee severance, benef
and related cos $ 837 $ 18 $ 85t $ —
Contract termination cos 22 43 65 —
$ 85¢ $ 61 $ 92C $ —
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19. Geographic Information

The geographic distribution of the Compamgvenues and long-lived assets from continuiregatfons is summarized as follows:

U.S. Canada Eliminations Total

Year Ended December 31, 20

Net revenues to unaffiliated custom $ 42,13t $ 18C $ — $ 42,31¢

Inter-geographic revenue — 737 (737) —

Net revenue $ 42,13t $ 917 $ (737) $ 42,31¢

Identifiable lon¢lived asset: $ 130¢ $ 49 $ — $ 1,35¢
Year Ended December 31, 20

Net revenues to unaffiliated custom $ 1,300 $ 12t $ — $ 1,42t

Inter-geographic revenue — 85¢ (859) —

Net revenue $ 130C $ 984 $ (85%) $ 1,42¢

Identifiable lon¢lived asset: $ 2,18 $ 91 $ — $ 2,27¢
Year Ended December 31, 20

Net revenues to unaffiliated custom $ 44 3 — 3 — $  44¢

Inter-geographic revenue — 44¢ (449) —

Net revenue $ 448 $ 44¢ 3 (449) $  44c¢

Identifiable lon¢lived asset: $ 269 $ 8C $ — $ 2,77¢

Foreign revenue is based on the countwhich the Company's legal subsidiary is domiciled.
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20. Summary of Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)
The following tables summarize the unautidearterly financial data for the last two fisgahrs.

Quarter ended

March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31

2012

Total revenue: $ 39,32(1)$ 92 $ 674 $ 1,39i
Income (loss) from operatiol 28,82 (7,957%) (7,749 (9,520
Net income (loss 28,84( (7,949 (7,745 (9,517
Basic net income (loss) per shi 0.8¢ (0.23) (0.23) (0.2¢)
Diluted net income (loss) per sh: 0.8¢ (0.23) (0.23) (0.2¢)
2011

Total revenue: $ 32¢ $ 191 $ 46S $ 43¢
Loss from operation (9,660 (20,00 (9,579 (9,617%)
Net loss (9,640 (9,987) (9,560) (9,607)
Basic net loss per sha (0.36) (0.39) (0.2¢) (0.2¢)
Diluted net loss per sha (0.36) (0.33) (0.2 (0.2¢)

Full year amounts may not sum due to rounding.
(1) In 2012, we recognized $38,885 of deferre@nere associated with the termination of our comiakadliance with

Archer Daniels Midland Compan
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Exhibit 10.27
CONFIDENTIAL DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

Metabolix, Inc. , with a principal address at 21 Erie Street, Cadgie, Massachusetts 02139 ("Metabolix") desiredigolose talack
W. Schuler (the "Recipient"), with an address at 28161 Nor#iti Drive, Lake Forest, Illinois 60045, certaiméidential and proprietary
business information.

It is agreed that all disclosures of Coeffitlal Information of Metabolix to the Recipientadltbe governed by the following terms and
conditions:

1. Purpose. Metabolix shall disclose to the Recipient sotlts Confidential Information as Metabolix, irsisole discretion, deems
necessary or desirable for the Recipient to prostcetegic advice to Metabolix (the "Purpose™).

2. Confidential Information. As used herein, the term "Confidential Inforimat means information and/or materials which
Metabolix considers to be confidential or propnigten nature including, but not limited to, tradecgets, know-how, inventions,
improvements, chemical compounds and compositieabniques, research and development data, firlasalas or marketing plans and
data, technical data, drawings, photographs, psacésrmation, samples, equipment, specificatiolesigns, apparatus, inventions,
improvements and/or discoveries, whether or nallggrotectable, and the like.

3. Exceptions. This Agreement imposes no obligation upon Renipwith respect to information that:

a. is in the public domain at the time of disclosurdéater becomes part of the public domain througlbreach of this Agreeme!

b. the Recipient can demonstrate, by competenirdentary proof, was in his possession without albiagn of confidentiality
prior to disclosure hereunder;

C. is acquired by the Recipient without obligationcohfidentiality from a third party who has a legght to disclose such
information; or

d. is independently developed by the Recipient's eygas without knowledge of or access to Metabolddsfidential
Information.

Specific Confidential Information is notthin one of the above exceptions merely becausesitcompassed by a more general
disclosure or can be assembled by selection ofadigies from multiple sources that are individualithin the exceptions.

4. Use and Confidentiality. Except as otherwise agreed in writing by Metiabthe Recipient shall not use Metabolix's Coefitial
Information for any purpose other than the Purpeseribed above. The Recipient shall use the saged of care to preserve the
confidentiality of Metabolix's Confidential Inforrtian as he employs with respect to his own Confiidinformation, but no less than a
reasonable amount of care. The Recipient shalllivatge, in whole or in part, to any third partyyaosf Metabolix's Confidential Information
or the fact that discussions may be occurring betvibe Recipient and Metabolix or any of the teofihis Agreement without the prior
written consent of Metabolix, except to the Reaigeprofessional advisors and attorneys (togetRapresentatives™) who reasonably
require knowledge of such Confidential Informatidhe Recipient shall inform his Representativethefconfidential nature of such
Confidential Information, shall cause his Repreatws to treat the Confidential Information coefidially, and shall be responsible for a
breach of this agreement by his Representativesvitthiatanding the foregoing, in the event thatRezipient or any of his Representatives
receive a request or are required by depositidaerrnogatory, request for documents, subpoena, ioivstigative demand or similar process to
disclose Confidential Information, the Recipiendlshand shall cause his Representatives to, @apptly notify Metabolix of the existence,
terms and circumstances surrounding such requstofisult with Metabolix on the advisability oktag legally available steps to resist or
narrow such request, and (c) assist Metabolixsabipense, in seeking a protective order or appropriate remedy. In the event that such
protective




order or other remedy is not obtained or that Metialwaives compliance with the provisions hergb& Recipient or any of his
Representatives, as the case may be, may disd@sw tribunal only that portion of the Confidehtisformation which the Recipient or his
Representatives are advised by counsel is legadjyired to be disclosed, and the Recipient an&efresentatives shall exercise reasonable
best efforts to obtain assurance that confidetrgatment will be accorded such Confidential Infation .

5. Return of Confidential Information. Upon request, the Recipient shall return otrdgsall of Metabolix's Confidential Informatic
provided that a single copy can be retained irR&eipient's archives for the sole purpose of moimigocompliance with this Agreement.

6. Acknowledgement. The Recipient hereby acknowledges that he rbtgim material nonpublic information as a resulMstabolix
disclosures hereunder. Recipient agrees that \Whiis in possession of material, nonpublic infoioraabout Metabolix, the Recipient, his
spouse, children or other family members livingha same household, and any investment fund, tetsement plan, partnership,
corporation or other entity over which Recipiens liae ability to influence or direct investmentideans concerning securities (collectively,
"Affiliates"), are prohibited from the following &uities:

. trading in Metabolix securities (including tragdiin options, puts, calls or other derivative si@s of Metabolix);

. having others trade for Recipient in Metabolix sd®s;

. giving trading advice of any kind about Metabolix;

. disclosing the material, nonpublic information abbletabolix to anyone else who might then tradggihg"); and

. trading in the securities of any other company aldich Recipient learns of material nonpublic imf@tion through

discussions with Metabolix.

7. Limitation on Certain Actions. For a period of 12 months from the date of &gseement, neither the Recipient nor any of his
Representatives shall make any public announcewigmtespect to, or submit a proposal for, or ofie(with or without conditions) (x) any
merger, consolidation, business combination, tendexchange offer, purchase of Metabolix's asselgisinesses, or similar transactions
involving Metabolix or (y) any recapitalization steucturing, liquidation or other extraordinaryrtsaction involving Metabolix or any of its
securities or assets. Recipient's obligations utideiParagraph 7 shall survive the terminatiothef Agreement pursuant to Paragraph 8 and
continue through the first anniversary of the dstthis Agreement.

8. Term. This Agreement shall have a term of one (1) @ the effective date of this Agreement; praddhat either party may
terminate this Agreement upon ten (10) days writtetice to the other, and provided further thatRieeipient's obligations under
Paragraphs 4 and 5 shall survive for five (5) yadtier the expiration or termination of this Agresmh

9. No Implied Contract or License. No rights or obligations, including third parights, other than those expressly recited heagsn
to be implied from the terms hereof. Nothing irsthAigreement shall be construed to establish oriretfie establishment of any contract or
arrangement of any kind, other than regarding éistrictions on disclosure and use as set forthimareluding without limitation any
contract or arrangement for the supply of prodoctservices, or any transfer, license, or purclsisechnology by the parties hereto.

10. Right to Disclose. Metabolix makes no representations or warranggpress or implied, with respect to its Confiden
Information, including but not limited to warrardgief merchantability and fitness for a particulargnse, nor any representation or warranty
with respect to the accuracy or completeness @atsfidential Information. Metabolix shall have Imability to Recipient or his
Representatives relating to or arising from useratliance on the Confidential Information.




11. Governing Law. This Agreement is entered into under, and sfettonstrued in accordance with, the laws of then@onwealtt
of Massachusetts.

12. Entire Agreement; Specific PerformanceThis Agreement contains the entire agreemethuaderstanding between the parties
with respect to the subject matter hereof. No nicaliion or alteration of this Agreement shall bieefive unless made in writing and signed
by both parties. Neither the discontinuation otdissions between the parties nor any other facefexpress written modification hereof)
shall relieve either party from its obligations éx@nder. This Agreement shall inure to the benéfitnal be binding upon the parties hereto,
their successors and assigns. The Recipient ackdget and agrees that money damages would nalfcgent remedy for any breach (or
threatened breach) of this letter agreement bRé@pient or his Representatives and that Metalstladl be entitled to equitable relief,
including injunction and specific performance, asmedy for any such breach (or threatened breadthput proof of damages, and each
party further agrees to waive, and use his besttsffo cause his Representatives to waive, anyiragent for the securing or posting of any
bond in connection with any such remedy. Such réesezhall not be the exclusive remedies for a bredithis letter agreement, but will be
in addition to all other remedies available at @wn equity. The illegality, invalidity or unenfoeability of any provision hereof under the
laws of any jurisdiction shall not affect its leiy| validity or enforceability under the laws afiyaother jurisdiction, nor the legality, validity
or enforceability of any other provision.

[signature page follows]

Accepted and Agreed to:

RECIPIENT: METABOLIX, INC.
/s/ JACK W. SCHULER By: /sl SARAH P. CECIL
Jack W. Schule Sarah P. CeciGeneral Counse

Date: Feb. 6, 201 Date: Feb. 6, 201
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Exhibit 21.1
Subsidiary Name Jurisdiction of Organization
Metabolix Securities Corp MA

Metabolix Oilseeds, Inc

Canade
Metabolix GmbH

Germany
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporationdfgrence in the Registration Statement on Forn(I$e3333-172725) and S-8 (Nos. 333-
138631, 333-145232, 333-155115, 333-157869, 333055333-172724 and 333-181268) of Metabolix, bfour report dated March 28,
2013 relating to the financial statements and ffectveness of internal control over financial oging, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
March 28, 2013
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Richard P. Eno certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual reporfForm 10-K of Metabolix, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsdnot contain any untrue statement of a mat@galor omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finanstatements, and other financial information ineldiéh this report, fairly present in all mate|
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifyinfjagr(s) and | are responsible for establishing araihtaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls@odedures, or caused such disclosure controlprarngdures to be designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control ovealfficial reporting, or caused such internal cordxar financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thggsteant's disclosure controls and procedures aesepted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coueyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changéhie registrant's internal control over financggorting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahmeport) that has materially affected,
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the r&gant's internal control over financial reportiagd

5. The registrant's other certifyin§jadr(s) and | have disclosed, based on our mastteevaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and miad weaknesses in the design or operation of alezontrol over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materialat involves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: March 28, 2013 /s/ RICHARD P. ENO

Name: Richard P. Ent

Title: President and Chief Executi
Officer
(Principal Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Joseph D. Hill certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual reporfForm 10-K of Metabolix, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsdnot contain any untrue statement of a mat@galor omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finanstatements, and other financial information ineldiéh this report, fairly present in all mate|
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifyinfjagr(s) and | are responsible for establishing araihtaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls@odedures, or caused such disclosure controlprarngdures to be designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control ovealfficial reporting, or caused such internal cordxar financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thggsteant's disclosure controls and procedures aesepted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coueyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changéhie registrant's internal control over financggorting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahmeport) that has materially affected,
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the r&gant's internal control over financial reportiagd

5. The registrant's other certifyin§jadr(s) and | have disclosed, based on our mastteevaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and miad weaknesses in the design or operation of alezontrol over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materialat involves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: March 28, 2012 /s/ JOSEPH D. HILL

Name Joseph D. Hil

Title: Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting
Officer)
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report onrRrdi0-K of Metabolix, Inc. (the "Company") for thear ended December 31, 2012 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the "Report"), we, Richard P. Enosident, Chief Executive Officer and
Principal Executive Officer of the Company and {bsB. Hill, Chief Financial Officer and Principairfancial and Accounting Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, agptatl pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Gxdepf 2002, to my knowledge that:

1. the Report fully complies with thequirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as appleadfithe Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, and

2. the information in the Report faidgesents, in all material respects, the finargmaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

This certification is being provided puratito 18 U.S.C. 1350 and is not to be deemed agbdine Report, nor is it to be deemed to be
"filed" for any purpose whatsoever.

METABOLIX, INC.

March 28, 2013 By: /sl RICHARD P. ENO

Richard P. Eno
President and Chief Executive Officer (Princi
Executive Officer

March 28, 2013 By: /s/ JOSEPH D. HILL

Joseph D. Hill
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer
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OXLEY ACT OF 2002



